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Financial Statements

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Santander UK plc

We have audited the financial statements of Santander UK plc for the year ended 31 December 2009 which comprise the
Consclidated Income Statement, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and
Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated and Company
Cash Flow Statements, the Accounting Policies and the related Notes 1 to 51. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and treland). Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessrnent of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and the parent company's circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion:

> the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and the parent company's affairs as at 31
December 2009 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended;

> the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union;

> the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

> the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs as issued by the IASB

As explained in the Accounting Policies section of the financial statements, the group in addition to applying IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, has also applied IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). In our opinion the
group “inancial statements comply with IFRSs as issued by the IASB.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in
our opinion:

> adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

> the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

> certain disclosures cf directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

> we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

(fvh e THUO~

Caroline Britton (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, UK

27 Apr:l 2010
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Income Statement

For the years ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007

2009 2008 2007
Notes £m fm fm
Interest and similar income 2 7.318 7,915 7,043
Interest expense and similar charges 2 (3,906) (6,143) (5,544)
Net interest income 3,412 1.772 1,499
Fee and commission income 3 986 768 785
Fee and commission expense 3 (162) (97) (90)
Net fee and commission income 824 671 695
Dividend income - - 1
Net trading and other income 4 460 561 587
Total operating income 4,696 3,004 2,782
Administration expenses 5 (1,848) (1,343) (1,369)
Depreciation and amortisation 6 (260) (202) (205)
Total operating expenses excluding provisions and charges (2,108) (1,545) (1.574)
Impairment losses on loans and advances 8 (842) (348) (344)
Provisions for other liabilities and charges (56, (17) -
Total operating provisions and charges (898 (365) (344)
Profit before tax 1,690 1,094 864
Taxation charge 9 (445) (275) (179)
Profit for the year 1,245 819 685
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 1,190 811 685
Non-controlling interest 55 8 -
The Notes on pages 124 to 188 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
All profits during the year were generated from continuing operations.
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007
2009 2008 2007
Notes £m fm fm
Profit for the year 1,245 819 685
Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial losses on retirement benefit obligations 36 (606) (44) (113)
(Losses)/gains on available-for-sale securities 18 (6) 8 19
Excharge differences on translation of foreign operations (L)} 28 M
Tax on items taken directly to equity 171 8 9
Net loss recognised directly in equity (445) - (86)
Gains on available-for-sale securities transferred to profit or loss on sale (2) - M
Tax on items transferred to profit or loss 1 -
Net transfers to profit 4] - M
Total other comprehensive expense for the year before tax (618 (8) (96)
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 172 8 9
Total comprehensive income for the year 799 819 598
Attr butable to:
Equity holders of the parent 744 811 598
Non-controlling interest 55 8 -
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As at 31 December 2009 and 2008

Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheet

2009 2008
Notes £m £m

Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 11 4,163 4,017
Trading assets 12 33,290 26,264
Derwative financial instruments 13 22,827 35,125
Financial assets designated at fair value 14 12,358 11,377
Loans and advances to banks 15 9,151 16,001
Loans and advances to customers 16 186,804 180,176
Available for sale securities 18 797 2,663
Loans and receivables securities 19 9,898 14,107
Macro hedge of interest rate risk 1,127 2,188
Investment in associated undertakings 21 75 35
Intangiole assets 22 1,446 1,347
Property, plant and equipment 23 938 854
Operating lease assets 24 312 348
Curren® tax assets 85 212
Deferred tax assets 25 946 1,274
Other assets 26 1,074 1,322
Total assets 285,291 297,310

Liabilities

Deposits by banks 27 5811 14,488
Deposits by customers 28 143,893 130,245
Derivat ve financial instruments 13 18,963 27,810
Trading liabilities 29 46,152 40,738
Financial liabilities designated at fair value 30 4,423 5,673
Debt securities in issue 31 47,758 58,511
Othar borrowed funds 32 1,352 2,076
Subordinated liabilities 33 5,597 6,787
Other liabilities 34 2,323 2,342
Provisicns 35 91 207
Current tax liabilities 300 518
Deferred tax liabilities 25 336 405
Retiremrent benefit obligations 36 1,070 813
Total liabilities 278,069 290,613

Equity
Share capital 39 2,709 1,148
Share premium account 39 1,857 3,121
Retained earnings 1,911 1,678
Other reserves 29 39
6,506 5,986
Non-controlling interests 38 716 11
Total shareholders’ equity 7,222 6,697
Total liabilities and equity 285,291 297,310

(1) Amended for the transfer of Alliance & Leicester pic to the Company as described in Note 47.

The Notes on pages 124 to 188 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements on pages 102 to 188 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 27 April 2010 and signed

on its behalf by:

Antonio Lorenzo
Chief Financial Officer

Company Registered Number: 2294747
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the years ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007

Other reserves

Foreign
Available currency Non-
Share Share for sale translation  Retained controlling
Capital  Premium reserve reserve earnings Total interest  Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
1 January 2007 148 1,857 1 (6) 1,116 3,116 - 3,116
Total comprehensive income (gross) - - 18 (1 572 589 - 589
Tax relating to components of other
comorehensive income - - (6) - 15 9 - 9
Dividends declared 40 - - - - (370) (370) - (370)
Arising through business part-disposal - - - - - - 98 98
31 December 2007 148 1,857 13 ) 1,333 3,344 98 3,442
1 January 2008 148 1,857 13 (7) 1,333 3,344 98 3,442
Total comprehensive income (gross) - - 8 28 767 803 8 811
Tax relating to components of other
comprehensive income - - (3) - " 8 - 8
Dividerds declared 40 - - - - (450) (450) - (450)
Issued share capital 39 1,000 - - - - 1,000 - 1,000
Capitai contribution 39 - 1,264 - - 17 1,281 - 1,281
Assumed through business combinations 38 - - - - - - 605 605
31 December 2008™ 1,148 3,121 18 21 1,678 5,986 711 6,697
1 January 2009 1,148 3,121 18 21 1,678 5,986 711 6,697
Total comprehensive income (gross) - - (8) @) 584 572 55 627
Tax relating to components of other
corrprehensive income - - 2 - 170 172 - 172
Div.derds declared 40 - - - - (521) (521) (50) (571)
Reclassification of RCls 39 297 - - - - 297 - 297
Transfer to share capital 39 1,264 (1,264) - - - - - -
31 December 2009 2,709 1,857 12 17 1,911 6,506 716 7,222

(1) Amended for the transfer of Alliance & Leicester plc to the Company as described in Note 47.
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For the years ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007

Financial Statements

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

2009 2008 2007
Notes fm fm fm
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities
Profit for the year 1,245 819 685
Adjustments for:
Non cash items included in net profit (24) 1,297 1,307
Change in operating assets 7,776 (30,381) (12,411)
Change in operating liabilities (2,351) 209 696
Income taxes received/(paid) 2 43 (5)
Effects of exchange rate differences (3,719) 6,569 396
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities 41 2,929 (21,444) (9.332)
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities
Acauis zion of businesses, net of cash acquired 41 - 18,667 -
Dividends received from associates - 2 -
Investment in associates (35) (8) (8)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 41 - 1,605 5
Disposal of non-controlling interest in subsidiaries - - 203
Purchase of tangible and intangible fixed assets (463) (278) (407)
Proceeds from sale of tangible and intangible fixed assets 60 15 8
Purchase of non-trading securities (1,133) (891) -
Proceeds from sale of non-trading securities 3,004 290 3
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities 1,433 19,402 (196)
Net cash flow (used in)/from financing activities
Issue of ordinary share capital - 1,000 -
Issue of loan capital 1,556 - 13,363
Preterence dividend paid (19) - -
Interes” paid on Tier 1 (17) - -
Repayrent of loan capital (5,895) (7,786) (8,587)
Dividends paid (246, (595) -
Net cash flow (used in)/from financing activities (4,621 (7,381) 4,776
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (259) (9,423) (4,752)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 27,675 34,056 39,082
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (1,052) 3,042 (274)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 41 26,364 27,675 34,056

(1) Amended for the transfer of Alliance & Leicester plc to the Company as described in Note 47.

The Notes on pages 124 to 188 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Financial Statements

Company Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
Notes £m fm
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 1 3,266 2,456
Dervative financial instruments 13 2,539 2,735
Financial assets designated at fair vatue 14 37,145 47,525
Loans and advances to banks 15 109,658 116,486
Loans and advances to customers 16 131,749 123,319
Available for sale securities 18 30 25
Loans and recewvables securities 19 2 -
Investrnent in subsidiary undertakings 20 7,038 5,147
investrnent in associated undertakings 21 76 741
Intangible assets 22 552 484
Prope-ty, plant and equipment 23 561 569
Current tax assets - 194
Deferred tax assets 25 428 458
Other assets 26 651 987
Total assets 293,695 301,126
Liabifities
Deposits by banks 27 116,414 124,846
Deposits by customers 28 159,187 155,466
Derivative financial instruments 13 3,353 5,393
Trading liabilities 29 - 739
Other borrowed funds 32 539 905
Subordinated liabilities 33 5,580 7,030
Other liabilities 34 1,611 1,283
Provisions 35 74 99
Current tax liabilities 92 128
Defer-ed tax liabilities 25 - 6
Retirement benefit obligations 36 922 797
Total liabilities 287,772 296,692
Equity
Skare capital 39 2,709 1,148
Skare premium account 39 1,857 1,857
Retained earnings 1,350 1,422
Available for sale reserve 7 7
Total shareholders’ equity 5,923 4,434
Total liabilities and equity 293,695 301,126

The Notes on pages 124 to 188 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements on pages 102 to 188 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 27 April 2010 and signed

on its behalf by:

Antonio Lorenzo
Chief Financial Officer

Company Registered Number: 2294747
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Financial Statements

Company Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007

2009 2008 2007
Notes £m fm fm
Profit for the year 747 1,328 351
Other comprehensive income/(expenses):
Actuarial losses on retirement benefit obligations 36 (414) (43) (116)
(Losses)/gains on available-for-sale securities - (4) 18
Tax on items taken directly to equity 116 12 10
Net loss recognised directly in equity (298) (35) (88)
Gains on available-for-sale securities transferred to profit or loss on sale - - m
Tax on items transferred to profit - . -
Net transfers to profit - - 4
Total other comprehensive expense for the year before tax (414) 47) (99)
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 116 12 10
Total comprehensive income for the year 449 1,293 262
Atiributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 449 1,293 262
Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the years ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007
Share Share Available for Retained
Capital Premium sale reserve earnings Total
Notes £fm £m fm £m £m
1 ranuary 2007 148 1,857 - 694 2,699
Tctal comprehensive income {(gross) - - 17 235 252
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income - - (6) 16 10
Dividends declared 40 - - - (370) (370)
31 December 2007 148 1,857 11 575 2,591
1 Jan.ary 2008 148 1,857 " 575 2,59
Total comprehensive income (gross) - - (4) 1,285 1,281
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income - - - 12 12
Issuec: share capital 39 1,000 - - - 1,000
Dividends declared 40 - - - (450) (450)
3% December 2008 1,148 1,857 7 1,422 4,434
1 January 2009 1,148 1,857 7 1,422 4,434
Total comprehensive income (gross) - - - 333 333
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income - - - 116 116
Capital contribution 39 1,264 - - - 1,264
Dwidends declared 40 - - - (521) (521)
Reclassification of Reserve Capital Instruments 39 297 - - - 297
31 December 2009 2,709 1,857 7 1,350 5,923
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Financial Statements

Company Cash Flow Statement

For the years ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007

2009 2008 2007
Notes £m fm £fm
Net cash flow (used in)/from operating activities
Profit “or the year 747 1,328 351
Adjustments for:
Non cash items included in net profit (207) 2,038 446
Changa in operating assets 1,103 (80,636) (8,761)
Change in operating liabilities (6,166) 128,109 13,865
Income taxes received 21 80 48
Effects of exchange rate differences (268) 897 -
Net cash flow {used in)/from operating activities 41 (4,770) 51,816 5,949
Net cash flow (used in)/from investing activities
Increase in investment in subsidiaries (598) (418)

Investrnent in associates (35) (708) (8)

Dicposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 1M1 415
Disposal of non-controlling interest in subsidiaries - - 203
Pu-chase of tangible and intangible fixed assets (209) (174) (181)
Proceeds from sale of tangible ard intangible fixed assets 18 1 -
Purchase of non-trading securities (9 9 -
Proceeds from sale and redemption of non-dealing securities 3 8 3
Net cash flow (used in)/from investing activities (232) (1,359) 14
Net cash flow (used in)/from financing activities

Issue of ordinary share capital - 1,000 -
Issue of loan capital - - 65
Repayment of loan capital (557) (253) (641)
Dividends paid (246 (595) -
Net cash flow (used in)/from financing activities (803 152 (576)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (5,805) 50,609 5,387
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 61,203 10,594 5,207
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents - - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 41 55,398 61,203 10,594

The Notes on pages 124 to 188 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Financial Statements
Accounting Policies
International Financial Reporting Standards

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS") as approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘1ASB’), and interpretations issued by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC’) of the IASB that, under European Regulations, are effective and available
for early adoption at the reporting date. Santander UK pic (formerly Abbey National plc) (the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries
(together the ‘Group’) have complied with IFRS as issued by the IASB in addition to complying with its legal obligation to comply
with IFRS as adopted for use in the European Union.

Disclosures required by IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure’ relating to the nature and extent of risks arising from
financial instruments can be found in the Risk Management section on pages 49 to 85 which form part of these Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Recent developments
In 2009, the Group adopted the following new or revised IFRS:
a) IAS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs’ - On 29 March 2007, the IASB issued an amendment to IAS 23 'Borrowing costs’ which

removes the option to expense borrowing costs incurred during the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset. The adoption of the amendment to IAS 23 did not have a material impact on the Group's profit or loss
or financial position.

b) IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ - On 6 September 2007, the IASB issued an amendment to 1AS 1
‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ which changes the way in which non-owner changes in equity are required to be
presented. As a result, a ‘Statement of Changes in Equity’ has been included as a separate primary financial statement
showing changes in equity during the periods presented. In addition, the Statement of Recognised Income and Expense
has been replaced with a ‘Statement of Comprehensive Income’. The adoption of the amendment to I1AS 1 did not have
any impact on the Group’s profit or loss or financial position.

@] IFRS 2 ‘Share based payments - vesting conditions and cancellations’ - On 17 January 2008, the IASB issued an
amendment to IFRS 2 ‘Share based payments’ which requires share option awards lapsing due to a failure to meet the
service condition to be treated as cancellations rather than forfeitures. The adoption of the amendment to IFRS 2 did
not have a material impact on the Group's profit or loss or financial position.

d) IFRS 7 ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures - Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments’ - On 5 March 2009, the
IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ which requires enhanced disclosures about fair
value measurements and liquidity risk. Among other things, the amendment (1) requires disclosure of any change in the
method for determining fair value and the reasons for the change; (2) establishes a three-level hierarchy for making fair
value measurement disclosures: (3) requires disclosure for each fair value measurement in the balance sheet of which
level in the hierarchy was used, and any transfers between levels, with additional disclosures whenever level 3 of the
hierarchy is used including a measure of sensitivity to a change in input data; (4) clarifies that the current maturity
analysis for non-derivative financial liabilities should include issued financial guarantee contracts; and (5) amends the
required disclosure of a maturity analysis for derivative financial liabilities. The disclosures required by the amendment to
IFRS 7 may be found on pages 177 to 185 and pages 59 and 60.

Future developments

The Group has not yet adopted the following new or revised IFRS or IFRIC interpretations, which have been issued but which are

not yet effective for the Group:

a) IERS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ - On 10 January 2008, the IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’
which dlarifies and changes certain elements of accounting for a business combination, including measurement of
contingent consideration, step acquisition and intangible assets and also widens the scope of this standard. There are
also associated amendments to 1AS 27, IAS 28 and IAS 31. The amendment to IFRS 3 is effective for periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009.

b) IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ - On 12 November 2009, the IASB issued IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’, which significantly
overhauls the accounting requirements for financial instruments under IFRS. IFRS 9 is mandatory for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with early application permitted. IFRS 9 requires that a financial asset be classified
into one of three categories for measurement and income recognition: (1) Amortised cost, (2) Fair value through profit
or loss (EVTPL) and (3) Fair value through other comprehensive income. The standard requires reclassification between
amortised cost and FVTPL (or vice versa) if a financial asset no longer meets the criteria for its original classification. IFRS
9 replaces the existing classification and measurement requirements in IAS 39 for financial assets. It changes the
manner in which entities classify and measure investments in debt and equity securities, loan assets, trade receivables
and derivative financial assets by requiring entities to classify financial assets as being measured at either amortized cost
or fair value depending on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash fiow characteristics of the asset. The
Group is currently evaluating the requirements of IFRS 9.
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Financial Statements
Accounting Policies continued

Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss and all derivative contracts,
and on the going concern basis as disclosed in the Directors’ statement of going concern set out in the Directors’ Report on
pages 89 and 90.

As described in Note 47, the Group has accounted for the transfer of Alliance & Leicester plc retrospectively from 10
Octcber 2008, the date on which Alliance & Leicester plc was acquired by the Company’s parent Banco Santander, S.A..

As described in Note 48, the Group has finalised the purchase price allocation in respect of the acquisition of Bradford
& Bingley's savings business. As permitted by IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”, the final allocation has been accounted for
retrospectively from September 2008, the date on which Bradford & Bingley’s savings business was acquired.

IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ requires the presentation of a balance sheet as at the beginning of the
earliest period when a company applies an accounting policy retrospectively. In respect of both the above matters, for the Group,
this balance sheet would be as at 31 December 2006. However, the retrospective accounting for the transfer of Alliance &
Leicester plc and the finalisation of the purchase price allocation in respect of the acquisition of Bradford & Bingley's savings
business had no impact on the balance sheet as at 31 December 2006, and so that balance sheet has not been represented in
these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidation

a) Subs.diaries

Subsidiaries, which are those companies and other entities (including Special Purpose Entities) over which the Group, directly or
indirectly, has power to govern the financial and operating policies, are consolidated. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are presently exercisable or presently convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another
entity. The Company recognises investments in subsidiaries at cost less impairment.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are no longer consolidated
from the date that control ceases. The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The
cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets given up, shares issued or liabilities undertaken at the date of
acquisition, plus directly attributable acquisition costs. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the tangible and
intangible net assets of the subsidiary acquired is recorded as goodwill. Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the cost cannot be
recovered. The accounting reference date of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings is 31 December, with the exception of
those leasing, investment, insurance and funding companies which, because of commercial considerations, have various
accounting reference dates. The Financial Statements of these subsidiaries have been consolidated on the basis of interim
Financial Statements for the period to 31 December.

Transactions between entities under common control are outside the scope of IFRS 3 — Business Combinations, and
there is no other guidance for such situations under IFRS. Business combinations between entities under common control
transacted for non-cash consideration are accounted for by the Group in a manner consistent with group reconstruction relief
under UK GAAP.

b) Associates
Investments in associates are accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. Under this
metnod, the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of associates is recognised in the income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the cost of the investment. The Company recognises investments in associates at cost less impairment.
Associates are entities in which the Group has between 20% and 50% of the voting rights, or over which the Group
has significant influence, but which it does not control. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are presently
exercisable or presently convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant influence over another
entity. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates; unrealised fosses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill on acquisition. When the Group's share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate the Group does not recognise further losses unless the Group has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

Foreign currency translation

ltemns included in the Financial Statements of each entity of the Group are measured using the currency that best reflects the
economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to that entity (‘the functional currency’). The
Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the functional currency of the parent.

Income statements and cash flows of foreign entities are translated into the Group’s reporting currency at average
exchange rates for the year and their balance sheets are translated at the exchange rates ruling on 31 December. Exchange
differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign
entity is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.



Financial Statements
Accounting Policies continued

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the entity involved at the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement unless
deferred in equity under the cash flow hedge.

The amount of exchange rate differences recognised in profit or loss on items not at fair value through profit and loss
was £2.570m income (2008: £5,850m charge, 2007: £505m charge). This was offset by income/charges on items held at fair
value.

Revenue recognition

(a) Interest income and expense

Income on financial assets that are classified as loans and receivables or available-for-sale, and interest expense on financiat
liabilities other than those at fair value through profit and loss are determined using the effective interest method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the future cash flows are estimated after considering all the contractual terms of the instrument excluding
future credit losses. The calculation includes all amounts paid or received by the Group that are an integral part of the overall
return, direct incremental transaction costs related to the acquisition, issue or disposal of the financial instrument and all other
premiums or discounts. Interest income on assets classified as loans and receivables or available-for-sale, interest expense on
liabilities classified at amortised cost and interest income and expense on hedging derivatives are recognised in interest and
simitar income and interest expense and similar charges in the income statement,

(b) Fee and commissions income

Feec and commissions that are not an integral part of the effective interest rate are recognised when the service has been
provided. For retail products, fee and commission income consists principally of collection services fees, commission on foreign
currencies, and fees for non-banking financial products. Revenue from these income streams is recognised as earned when the
service Is provided.

For insurance products, fee and commission income consists principally of commissions earned on the sale of building
and contents insurance, life protection insurance and payment cover insurance.

Asset management fee and commission income comprises portfolio and other management advisory and service fees,
investment fund management fees, and fees for private banking, financial planning and custody services. Portfolio and other
management advisory and service fees are recognised based on the applicable service contracts. Asset management fees related
to investment funds are recognised rateably over the period the service is provided. The same principle is applied for private
banking, financial planning and custody services that are continuously provided over an extended period of time.

(c) Dividend income
Except for equity securities classified as trading assets or financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss, described below,
dividerd income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. This is the ex-dividend date for equity securities.

(d) Net trading and other income

Net trading and other income comprises all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities held
at fair value through profit or loss (including financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading and designated as fair value
through profit or loss), together with related interest income, expense and dividends. It also includes income from operating
lease assets, and profits/(losses) on the sales of fixed assets and subsidiary undertakings.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities held for trading, including trading derivatives, are recognised
in the income statement as net trading and other income together with dividends and interest receivable and payable. Changes
in the fair value of assets and liabilities designated as fair value through profit or loss are recognised in net trading and other
income together with dividends, interest receivable and payable and changes in fair value of derivatives managed in conjunction
with these assets and liabilities. Changes in fair value of derivatives in a designated hedging relationship are recognised in net
trading and other income along with the fair value of the hedged item.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, including computer
software, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to develop for their intended use, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are
recogrised in profit or loss in the period in which they occur.

Pensions and other post retirement benefits

Group companies have various pension schemes. The schemes are generally funded through payments to insurance companies
or trustee-administered funds as determined by periodic actuarial calculations. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that
defines an amount of pension benefit to be provided, usually as a function of one or more factors such as age, years of service or
compensation. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions as they fall due into
a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.
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The liability recognised in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
balance sheet date, less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent
actuaries using the projected unit credit method. Full actuarial valuations of the Group’s principal defined benefit schemes are

unless the changes are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of time, known as the vesting

period. In this case, the past-service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become
vested.

operating expenses in profit or loss for the year from discontinued operations.

Post-retirement medical benefit liabilities are determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial
valuations updated at each year-end. The expected benefit costs are accrued over the period of employment using an accounting
methodology similar to that for the defined benefit pension scheme.

Share-based payments

The Group engages in cash-settled and equity-settled share-based payment transactions in respect of services received from
certan of its employees. Shares of the Group’s parent, Banco Santander, S.A. are purchased in the open market by the Group
(for tne Executive Share Option Scheme, the Employee Sharesave scheme and awards granted under the Medium Term incentive
Plan) or are purchased by Banco Santander, S.A. or another group company (for awards granted under the Long Term Incentive
Plan} to satisfy share options as they vest. The Executive Share Option scheme, the Employee Sharesave scheme and awards
granted under the Medium Term Incentive Plan are accounted for as cash-settled share-based payment transactions. Awards
granted under the Long Term Incentive Scheme are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions. Prior to
the acquisition of the Company by Banco Santander, S.A., share options were satisfied by issue of new shares of the Company.
These options were accounted for as equity settled share-based payments. The fair value of the services received is measured by
reference to the fair value of the shares or share options initially on the date of the grant and then subsequently at each
reporting date. The cost of the employee services received in respect of the shares or share options granted is recognised in the
income statement within administration expenses, over the period that the services are received, which is the vesting period. A
liability equal to the portion of the goods or services received is recognised at the current fair value determined at each balance
sheet date for cash-settled, share-based payments. A liability equal to the amount to be reimbursed to Banco Santander, S.A. is
recognised at the current fair value determined at the grant date for equity-settled share based payments. The fair value of the
options granted under the Executive Share Option scheme, the Employee Sharesave scheme and awards granted under the
Medium Term Incentive Plan is determined using an option pricing model, which takes into account the exercise price of the
option, the current share price, the risk free interest rate, the expected volatility of the Banco Santander, S.A. share price over the
life of the option, the dividend growth rate and other relevant factors.

The fair value of the awards granted for the Long Term Incentive Plan were valued at the grant date using an option
pricing model, which takes into account the expected life of the options, interest rates, volatility of the Banco Santander, S.A.
share price over the life of the option, exercise price, market price and dividends. Except for those that include terms related to
market conditions, vesting conditions included in the terms of the grant are not taken into account in estimating fair value.

Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of shares or share options included in
the measurement of the cost of employee service so that ultimately, the amount recognised in the income statement reflects the
number of vested shares or share options.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary, associate, or business at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
businesses is included in Intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included as part of Investment in associates.
Goodwill is tested for impairment at each balance sheet date, or more frequently when events or changes in circumstances
dictate. and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity or business include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity or business sold.

Other intangible assets are recognised if they arise from contracted or other legal rights or if they are capable of being
separated or divided from the Group and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged. The value of such intangible assets is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful economic life of the assets in question, which ranges from 9 to 20 years. Other
intangible assets are reviewed annually for impairment indicators and tested for impairment where indicators are present.
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Software development costs are capitalised when they are associated with identifiable and unique software products that are
expected to provide future economic benefits and the cost of these products can be measured reliably. Internaily developed
software meeting these criteria and externally purchased software are classified in intangible assets on the balance sheet and
amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful life of 3-7 years, unless the software is an integral part of the related computer
hardware, in which case it is treated as property, plant and equipment as described below. Costs associated with maintaining
software programmes are expensed as incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment include owner-occupied properties, office fixtures and equipment and computer software.
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. A review
for indications of impairment is carried out at each reporting date. Gains and losses on disposal are determined by reference to
the carrying amount and are reported in net trading and other income. Repairs and renewals are charged to the income
statement when the expenditure is incurred.

Software development costs are capitalised when they are associated with identifiable and unigue software products
that are expected to provide future economic benefits and the cost of these products can be measured reliably. Internally
developed software meeting these criteria and externally purchased software are classified in property, plant and equipment on
the balance sheet where the software is an integral part of the related computer hardware. Costs associated with maintaining
software programmes are expensed as incurred. Classes of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their useful life as follows:

Owner-occupied properties Not exceeding 50 years
Office fixtures and equipment 3 to 15 years
Cemguter software 3 to 7 years

Depreciation is not charged on freehold land and assets under construction.
Financial assets

The Group dlassifies its financial assets as: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition. Financial assets that
are classified at fair value through profit or loss, which have not been designated as such or are not accounted for as derivatives,
or assets classified as available-for-sale, may subsequently in rare circumstances, be reclassified from the fair value through profit
or loss category to the loans and receivables, available-for-sale or held to maturity categories. In order to meet the criteria for
reclassification, the asset must no longer be held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term and must also meet
the definition of the category into which it is to be reclassified had it not been required to classify it at fair value through profit or
loss at initial recognition. The reclassified value is the fair value of the asset at the date of reclassification. The Group has not
utilised this option and therefore has not reclassified any assets from the fair value through profit or loss category that were
classified as such at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss if they are either held for trading or otherwise designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is a derivative or it is
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term, or forms part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of short-term profit taking.

In certain circumstances financial assets other than those that are held for trading are designated at fair value through
profit or loss where this results in more relevant information because it significantly reduces a measurement inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or recognising the gains or losses on them on a different basis, where the assets are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, or where a financial asset contains one or more embedded
deriva*ives which are not closely related to the host contract.

Trading assets, derivative financial instruments and financial assets designated at fair value are classified as fair value
through profit or loss, except where in a hedging relationship. They are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset have expired or when the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments, that are not quoted in an active
market and which are not classified as available-for-sale or fair value through profit or loss. They arise when the Group provides
money or services directly to a customer with no intention of trading the loan. Loans and receivables are initially recognised at
fair value including direct and incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently valued at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. They are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or the Group has transferred
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables consist of Loans and advances to banks, Loans and
advances to customers and Loan and receivable securities.
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(¢) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale and are not
categorised into any of the other categories described. They are initially recognised at fair value including direct and incremental
transaction costs. They are subsequently held at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included as a
separate component of equity until sale when the cumulative gain or loss is transferred to the income statement. Interest is
determined using the effective interest method

Income on investments in equity shares and other similar interests is recognised in the income statement as and when
dividends are declared and interest is accrued. Impairment losses and foreign exchange translation differences on monetary items
are recognised in the income statement. The investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale securities are classified as
available-for-sale.

(d) Held to maturity investments

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that an
entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held to maturity investments are initially recognised at fair value
including direct and incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently valued at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. They are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or the Group has transferred substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership. Were the Group to sell other than an insignificant amount of held to maturity assets, the
ertire category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.

The Group does not hold any held to maturity financial assets.

Valuation of financial instruments

Financial instruments that are classified at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL", including those held for trading purposes, or
available-for-sale, and all derivatives, are stated at fair value. The fair value of such financial instruments is the estimated amount
at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing, knowledgeable parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

Initial measurement

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price unless the instrument is
eviderced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include significant data from observable markets. Any difference between the transaction price and
the value based on a valuation technique where the inputs are not based on data from observable current markets is not
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition. Subsequent gains or losses are only recognised to the extent that they arise
from & change in a factor that market participants would consider in setting a price.

Subsequent measurement
The Group applies the following fair value hierarchy that prioritises the inputs to valuation techniques used in measuring fair
value. The hierarchy establishes three categories for valuing Financial Instruments, giving the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. The three
categories are: quoted prices in active markets {Level 1), internal models based on observable market data (Level 2) and internal
models based on other than cbservable market data (Level 3). If the inputs used to measure an asset or a liability fall to different
levels within the hierarchy, the classification of the entire asset or liability will be based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the overall fair value measurement of the asset or liability.

The Group categorises assets and liabilities measured at fair value within the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs to
the va:uation techniques as follows:

Level 1:  Unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active market that the Group has the ability to access at
the measurement date. Level 1 positions include debt securities, equity securities, exchange traded derivatives and
short positions in securities.

Level 2. Quoted prices in markets that are not active, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, recent market transactions,
inputs other than quoted market prices for the asset or liability that are observable either directly or indirectly for
substantially the full term, and inputs to valuation techniques that are derived principally from or corroborated by
observable market data through correlation or other statistical means for substantially the full term of the asset or
liability. Level 2 positions include loans and advances to banks, loans and advances to customers, equity securities,
exchange rate derivatives, interest rate derivatives, equity and credit derivatives, debt securities, deposits by banks,
deposits by customers and debt securities in issue.

Level 3 Inputs to the pricing or valuation techniques that are significant to the overall fair value measurement of the asset or
liability are unobservable. Level 3 positions include equity securities, exchange rate derivative, equity and credit
derivatives, loans and advances to customers, debt securities, and debt securities in issue.
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update given by each business at the start of the trading day. This information, together with the observation of active trading
and the magnitude of the bid-offer spreads allow consideration of the liquidity of a financial instrument.

All underlying assets and liabilities are reviewed to consider the appropriate adjustment to mark the mid price reported
in the trading systems to a realisable value. This process takes into account the liquidity of the position in the size of the
adjustment required. These liquidity adjustments are presented and discussed at the monthly Risk Forum.

In determining the appropriate measurement levels, the Group performs regular analyses on the assets and liabilities. All
underlying assets and liabilities are regularly reviewed to determine whether a position should be regarded as illiquid; the most
important practical consideration being the observability of trading. Where the bid-offer spread is observable, this is tested
agairst actual trades. Changes in the observability of significant valuation inputs during the reporting period may result in a
reclassification of certain assets and liabilities within the fair value hierarchy.

Financial instruments valued using observable market prices
If a quoted market price in an active market is available for an instrument, the fair value is calculated based on the market price.

Financial instruments valued using a valuation technique

In the absence of a quoted market price in an active market, management uses internal models to make its best estimate of the
price that the market would set for that financial instrument, In order to make these estimations, various techniques are
employed, including extrapolation from observable market data and observation of similar financial instruments with similar
characteristics. Wherever possible, valuation parameters for each product are based on prices directly observable in active
markets or that can be derived from directly observable market prices. Valuation parameters for each type of financial instrument
are discussed in Note 49 of the Consclidated Financial Statements.

Unrecognised gains as a result of the use of valuation models using unobservable inputs (‘Day One profits)

The timing of recognition of deferred day one profit and loss is determined individually. 1t is deferred until either the instrument's
fair value can be determined using market observable inputs or is realised through settlement. The financial instrument is
subsequently measured at fair value, adjusted for the deferred day one profit and loss. Subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement without immediate reversal of deferred day one profits and losses.

“Regular way” purchases of financial assets

A regular way purchase is a purchase of a financial asset under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the
timeframe established generally by regulation or convention in the market place concerned.

Regular way purchases of financial assets classified as loans and receivables are recognised on settlement date; all other
regular way purchases are recognised on trade date. The assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have
expired or the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities including derivatives are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Sale and repurchase agreements (including stock borrowing and lending)

Securities sold subject to a linked repurchase agreement (‘repos’) are retained in the Financial Statements as trading assets and
the counterparty liability is included in amounts 'Deposits by banks’ or ‘Deposits by customers’ within trading liabilities as
appropriate, Securities purchased under agreements to resell (‘reverse repos’) are recorded as ‘Loans and advances to banks’ or
‘Loans and advances to customers’ within trading assets as appropriate. The difference between the sale and repurchase price is
treateg as trading income in the income statement. Securities lent to counterparties that are collateralised by cash are also
retained in the balance sheet. Securities borrowing and lending transactions collateralised with other securities are not
reccgrused in the balance sheet.

Derivative financial instruments

Transactions are undertaken in derivative financial instruments ('derivatives’), which include interest rate, cross currency, equity,
residential property and other index-related swaps, forwards, caps, floors, swaptions, as well as credit default and total return
swaps, equity index contracts and exchange traded interest rate futures and equity index options.

Derivatives are contracts or agreements whose value is derived from one or more underlying indices or asset values
inherent in the contract or agreement, which require no or little initial net investment and are settled at a future date.
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Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market
transactions, and valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models as appropriate. All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative, except where netting is
permitted.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such as the conversion option in a convertible bond, are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract
ard the hybrid contract is nct carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement. Contracts containing embedded derivatives are not subsequently
reassessed for separation unless there has been a change in the terms of the contract which significantly modifies the cash flows,
or where assets have been reclassified where they are reassessed at the time of reclassification.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm
commitments (fair value hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are
met.

At the time a financial instrument is designated as a hedge, the Group formally documents the relationship between
the hedging instrument(s) and hedged item(s). Documentation includes risk management objectives and the strategy in
undertaking the hedge transaction, together with the methods that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging
relationship. Accordingly, the Group formally assesses, both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, whether the
hedging derivatives have been and will be highly effective in offsetting changes in the fair value of the hedged items. A hedge is
normally regarded as highly effective if, at inception and throughout its life, the Group can expect, and actual results indicate,
that changes in the fair value of the hedged items are effectively offset by changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument,
and actual results are within a range of 80% to 125%.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting when it is determined that: a derivative is not, or has ceased to be, highly
effective as a hedge; when the derivative expires, or is sold, terminated or exercised: or when the hedged item matures or is sold
or repaid. On discontinuance of hedge accounting amortisation of the adjustment to the hedged item is included in net trading
and other income.

The hedge adjustment for fair value hedges is classified in the balance sheet in the same category as the hedged item,
unless it relates to a macro hedging relationship where the hedge adjustment is recognised as a macro hedge on the face of the
balance sheet. For fair value hedges, changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument and hedged item are recognised in net
trading and other income. Hedge ineffectiveness represents the amount by which the changes in the fair value of the hedging
derivative differ from changes in the fair value of the hedged item. Such gains and losses are recorded in current period earnings
within net trading and other income.

Gains and losses on components of a hedging derivative that are excluded from assessing hedge effectiveness are also
included in net trading and other income.

Securitisation transactions

The Group has entered into certain arrangements where undertakings have issued mortgage-backed securities or have entered
into funding arrangements with lenders in order to finance specific loans and advances to customers. As the Group has retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the underlying assets, all such financial instruments continue to be held on the Group
balance sheet, and a liability recognised for the proceeds of the funding transaction.

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date the Group assesses whether, as a result of one or more events occurring after initial recognition,
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets classified as available-for-sale or loans and receivables
have become impaired. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or group of borrowers have defaulted,
are experiencing significant financial difficulty, or the debt has been restructured to reduce the burden to the borrower.

(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Retail assets
Impairment losses are assessed individually for the financial assets that are individually significant and individually or collectively
for assets that are not individually significant. Balance sheet provisions are maintained at the level that management deems
sufficient to absorb probable incurred losses in the Group’s foan portfolio from homogeneous portfolios of assets and individually
identified loans.

A provision for observed losses is established for all past due loans after a specified period of repayment default where
it 15 probable that some of the capital will not be repaid or recovered through enforcement of any applicable security. Once a
loan misses a payment (breach of contractual terms) an assessment of the likelihood of collecting the principal and overdue
payments is made. This assessment is generally made using statistical techniques based on historic experience. These
determinations are supplemented by various formulaic calculations and the application of management judgement.
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Fer individually assessed assets, the Group measures the amount of the loss as the difference between the carrying amount of
the asset or group of assets and the present value of the estimated future cash flows from the asset or group of assets
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the asset.

In making collective assessment for impairment, financial assets are assessed for each portfolio segmented by similar
risk characteristics. For each risk segment, future cash flows from these portfolios are estimated through the use of historical foss
experience. The historical loss experience is adjusted for current observable data, including estimated current property prices, to
reflect the effects of current conditions not affecting the period of historical experience. The loss is discounted at the effective
interest rate, except where portfolios meet the criteria for short-term receivables. The unwind of the discount over time is
reoorted through interest receivable within the income statement, with the provision on the balance sheet increasing.

Loans that are part of a homogeneous pool of similar loans are placed on default status based on the number of
months in arrears, which is determined through the number of missed payments or the number of months in collection. Loans
that are not part of a homogeneous pool of similar loans are analysed based on the number of months in arrears on a case-by-
case basis and are placed on default status when the probability of default is likely.

Generally, the length of time before an asset is placed on default status for provisioning is when one payment is missed.
Repayment default periods vary depending on the nature of the collateral that secures the advances. On advances secured by
residential or commercial property, the default period is three months. For advances secured by consumer goods such as cars or
computers, the default period is less than three months, the exact period being dependent on the particular type of loan in this
category.

On unsecured advances, such as personal term loans, the default period is generally four missed payments (three
months in arrears). Exceptions to the general rule exist with respect to revolving facilities, such as bank overdrafts, which are
placed on default upon a breach of the contractual terms governing the applicable account, and on credit card accounts where
the default period is three months.

A provision for inherent losses is made for loan losses that have been incurred but have not been separately identified
at the balance sheet date because the loan is not yet past due. An example of this situation is where a borrower has not yet
missed a payment but is experiencing financial difficulties at the reporting date, e.g. due to loss of employment or divorce. In
these circumstances, an inherent loss had been incurred at the reporting date. The provision for inherent losses is determined on
a portfolio basis based on management’s best estimate of the current position based on past experience adjusted by current
trends. These statistical techniques involve the following (i) estimation of a period of time called the emergence period, which is
discussed below, (i) assessment of the number of accounts that go into arrears over the emergence period, and (ii)) application
of the provision methodology outlined for observed provisions to these accounts identified as impaired as a result of this exercise.
Accounts that suffered credit deterioration after the reporting date are accordingly excluded from the statistical analysis.

The emergence period

This is the period which the Group's statistical analysis shows to be the period in which losses that had been incurred but have
not been separately identified at the balance sheet date, become evident as the loans turn into past due. Based on the Group's
statistical analysis at 31 December 2009, the emergence period was two to three months for unsecured lending and twelve
months for secured lending. The longer emergence period for secured lending reflects the fact that a customer is more likely to
default on unsecured debt before defaulting on secured lending. The factors considered in determining the length of the
emergence period for unsecured lending are recent changes in customers’ debit/credit payment profiles and credit scores. The
factors considered for secured lending are the frequency and duration of exceptions from adherence to the contractual payment
schedule.

Once a financial asset or a group of financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss, the assets
are not placed onto a non-accrual status. Subsequent interest income continues to be recognised on an effective interest rate
basis though on the asset value after provisions have been deducted.

impairment losses are recognised in the income statement and the carrying amount of the financial asset or group of
financial assets is reduced by establishing an allowance for impairment losses. If in a subsequent period the amount of the
impairment loss reduces and the reduction can be ascribed to an event after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance. For secured loans, a write-off is only made when all collection procedures
have been exhausted and the security has been sold. For unsecured loans, a write-off is only made when all internal avenues of
collecting the debt have been exhausted and the debt is passed over to external collection agencies. Write-offs are charged
against previously established provisions for impairment.

Recoveries of loan losses are not included in the loan loss allowance, but are taken to income and offset against
charges for loan losses. Loan loss recoveries are classified in the income statement as ‘Impairment losses on loans and advances’.

Corporate assets

impairments for these assets are assessed on both an individual and a collective basis. For individual assets impairment reviews
are conducted monthly for those assets on the Group’s ‘Watchlist' of new, emerging and serious circumstances relating to the
portfolio, with a particular focus on the following scenarios: (1) where an asset has a payment default which has been
outstanding for 90 days or more; (2) where non-payment defaults have occurred and/or where it has become evident that some
sort of workout or rescheduling exercise is to be undertaken; or (3) where, for example with Real Estate Finance, it has become
evident that the value of the Group's security is no longer considered adequate.

In such situations the file is transferred to the Corporate Banking Workouts team within Credit Risk. As part of their
assessment, a full review of the expected future cash flows in relation to the relevant asset, appropriately discounted, will be
undertaken and the result compared to the current net book value of the asset. Any shortfall evidenced as a result of such a
review, particularly where the shortfall is likely to be permanent, will lead to a suitable impairment recommendation.
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Collective impairments are also looked at for portfolios where it is felt that market events, either specific or general, are likely to
determine that losses are already inherent in a portfolio notwithstanding that these events may not have manifested themselves
in specific defaults or other triggers that would lead to an individual impairment assessment. The amount of any such collective
impairment will, for each portfolio concerned, represent management’s best estimate of likely loss levels and will take into
account inter alia estimates of future actual default rates and likely recovery levels.

Once a financial asset or a group of financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss, the assets
ara not placed onto a non-accrual status. Subsequent interest income continues to be recognised on an effective interest rate
basis though on the asset value after provisions have been deducted.

For secured loans, a write-off is made when all collection procedures have been exhausted and the security has been
sold. For unsecured loans, a write-off is made when all avenues for collecting the debt have been exhausted. There may be
occasions where a write-off occurs for other reasons, for example, following a consensual restructure of the debt or where the
debt is sold for strategic reasons into the secondary market at a value lower than the face value of the debt. Write-offs are
charged against previously established provisions for impairment.

Lcans and receivables securities

Leans and receivables securities are assessed individually for impairment. An impairment loss is incurred if there is objective
evidence that an event has occurred since initial recognition of the assets that has an impact in the estimated future cash flows
of the loans and receivables securities.

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In assessing whether assets are impaired, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered evidence. The cumulative loss is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously reported in the income statement and is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement.

if in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase is
due o an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement (with objective evidence to support
this), the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, or more frequently when events or changes in circumstances dictate, property plant and equipment
(including operating lease assets) and intangible assets (including goodwill) are assessed for indicators of impairment. if
indications are present, these assets are subject to an impairment review. The impairment review comprises a comparison of the
carrying amount of the asset or cash generating unit with its recoverable amount: the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Net selling price is calculated by reference to the amount at which the asset
coule be disposed of in a binding sale agreement in an arm’s length transaction evidenced by an active market or recent
transactions for similar assets, less costs to sell. Value in use is calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
obtamable as a result of the asset's continued use, including those resulting from its uitimate disposal, at a market based
discount rate on a pre tax basis.

The carrying values of fixed assets and goodwill are written down by the amount of any impairment and the loss is
recognised in the income statement in the period in which it occurs. Impairment of a cash generating unit is allocated first to
goodwill and then to other assets held within the unit on a pro-rata basis. An impairment loss recognised in an interim period is
not reversed at the balance sheet date. A previously recognised impairment loss relating to a fixed asset may be reversed in part
o7 in full when a change in circumstances leads to a change in the estimates used to determine the fixed asset's recoverable
amount. The carrying amount of the fixed asset will only be increased up to the amount that would have been had the original
impairment not been recognised. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. For conducting impairment reviews, cash
generating units are the lowest level at which management monitors the return on investment on assets.

Leases

The Group as lessor - Operating lease assets are recorded at deemed cost and depreciated over the life of the asset after taking
into account anticipated residual values. Operating lease rental income and depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the life of the asset. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases and hire purchase contracts are recorded as receivables
at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases and hire purchase
contracts.

The Group as lessee - The Group enters into operating leases for the rental of equipment or real estate. Payments made
under such leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. When an operating
lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as
an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

If the lease agreement transfers the risk and rewards of the asset, the lease is recorded as a finance lease and the
related asset is capitalised. At inception, the asset is recorded at the lower of the present value of the minimum Jease payments
or fair value and depreciated over the lower of the estimated useful life and the life of the lease. The corresponding rental
chligations are recorded as borrowings. The aggregate benefit of incentives, if any, is recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Income taxes, including deferred taxes

The tax expense represents the sum of the income tax currently payable and deferred income tax.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law in each jurisdiction, is recognised as an expense in the
period in which profits arise. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible.

The liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date. Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on income tax losses available to carry forward and
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the assets may be utilised as
they reverse. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill and the
initial recognition of other assets (other than in a business combination) and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the lisbility is settled or the asset is realised based on rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that it will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at each balance sheet date and reduces it to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred and current tax assets and liabilities are only offset when they arise in the same tax reporting group and where
there is both the legal right and the intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Fo- the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition, including cash and non-restricted balances with central banks, treasury bills and other eligible bills,
loans and advances to banks and short-term investments in securities.

Financial liabilities

Firancial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes contractually bound to the transfer of economic benefits in
the future.

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Firancial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss if they are either held for trading or otherwise designated at
fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition. A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is a derivative or it is
incurred principally for the purpose of selling or being unwound in the near term, or forms part of a portfolio of financial
instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of short-term profit taking.

In certain circumstances financial liabilities other than those that are held for trading are designated at fair value
through profit or loss where this results in more relevant information because it significantly reduces a measurement
inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets and liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on a
different basis, or where a financial liability contains one or more embedded derivatives which are not closely related to the host
contract. These liabilities are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are taken directly to the income statement.
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included directly in the income statement,

Derivative financial instruments, Trading liabilities and Financial liabilities designated at fair value are classified as fair
vaue through profit or loss.

(b) Other financial liabilities
All other financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs incurred. They are subsequently stated at
amortised cost and the redemption value recognised in the income statement over the period of the liability using the effective
interest method.

Deposits by banks, Deposits by customers, Debt securities in issue (unless designated at fair value), Other borrowed
funds and Subordinated liabilities are classified as amortised cost.
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Equity index-linked deposits

Contracts involving the receipt of cash on which customers receive an index-linked return are accounted for as equity index-
linked deposits, and classified as deposits by customers within trading liabilities. Equity index-linked deposits are managed within
the equity derivatives trading book as an integral part of the equity derivatives portfolio. There are two principal product types.
(a) Capital at Risk

These products are designed to replicate the investment performance of an equity index, subject to a floor. In the event the index

falls under a certain predetermined level, customers forfeit a predetermined percentage of principal up to a predetermined
amount.

(b) Capital Guaranteed/Protected:
These products give the customers a limited participation in the upside growth of an equity index. In the event the index falls in
price, a cash principal element is guaranteed/protected.

Equity index-linked deposits are remeasured at fair value at each reporting date with changes in fair values recognised
in the income statement. The equity index-linked deposits contain embedded derivatives. These embedded derivatives, in
combination with the principal cash deposit element, are designed to replicate the investment performance profile tailored to the
return agreed in the contracts with customers, Other than new capital guaranteed products, which are treated as deposits by
custorners with any associated embedded derivatives bifurcated, embedded derivatives are not separated from the host
instrument and are not separately accounted for as a derivative instrument, as the entire contract embodies both the embedded
derivative and the host instrument and is remeasured at fair value at each reporting date. As such, there is no requirement to
bifurcate the embedded derivatives in the equity index-linked deposits.

Borrowings

Borrowings, including subordinated liabilities, are recognised initially at fair value, being the proceeds (fair value of consideration
received) net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost or fair value dependent on
designation at initial recognition.

Preference shares which carry a contractual obligation to transfer economic benefits are classified as other financial
liabilities and are presented in other borrowed funds. The dividends on these preference shares are recognised in the income
statement as interest expense on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method.

Share capital
Incremental external costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are deducted from equity net of related income taxes.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised for present obligations arising as consequences of past events where it is more likely than not that a
transfer of economic benefits will be necessary to settle the obligation, and it can be reliably estimated. When a leasehold
property ceases to be used in the business, provision is made where the unavoidable costs of the future obligations relating to
the lease are expected to exceed anticipated rental income. The net costs are discounted using market rates of interest to reflect
the long-term nature of the cash flows.

Provision is made for the anticipated cost of restructuring, including redundancy costs, when an obligation exists. An
okligation exists when the Group has a detailed formal plan for restructuring a business, and has raised valid expectations in
those affected by the restructuring and has started to implement the plan or announce its main features.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by certain future events or present
obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is uncertain or cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not
recognised but are disclosed unless they are remote.

Financial guarantee contracts

The Group accounts for guarantees that meet the definition of a financial guarantee contract at fair value on initial recognition.
In subsequent periods, these guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial fair value less cumulative amortisation and the
arount that would be recognised as a provision as described in the Accounting Policies above.

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which the right to receive payment is established.
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Critical accounting policies and areas of significant management judgement

The preparation of the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make estimates and judgements that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements and the reported amount of income
and expenses during the reporting period. Management evaluates its estimates and judgements on an ongoing basis.
Management bases its estimates and judgements on historical experience and on various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
The following estimates and judgements are considered important to the portrayal of the Group's financial condition.

(a) Provisions for loans and advances

The Group estimates provisions for loans and advances to customers, treasury asset portfolio securities and loans and advances
to banks with the objective of maintaining balance sheet provisions at the level believed by management to be sufficient to
absorb actual losses (‘observed provisions’) and inherent losses (‘incurred but not yet observed provisions') in the Group's loan
portfolio from homogeneous portfolios of assets and individually identified loans in connection with loans and advances to banks
and loans and advances to customers. The calculation of provisions on impaired loans and advances is based on the likelihood of
the asset being written off (or repossessed in the case of mortgage loans) and the estimated loss on such a write-off. These
assessments are made using statistical techniques based on historic experience. These determinations are supplemented by
various formulaic calculations and the application of management judgement.

The Group considers accounting estimates related to provisions for loans and advances ‘critical accounting estimates’
because: (i} they are highly susceptible to change from period to period as the assumptions about future default rates and
valuation of potential losses relating to impaired loans and advances are based on recent performance experience, and (ii) any
significant difference between the Group’s estimated losses (as reflected in the provisions) and actual losses would require the
Group to take provisions which, if significantly different, could have a material impact on its future income statement and its
balance sheet, The Group's assumptions about estimated losses are based on past performance, past customer behaviour, the
credit quality of recent underwritten business and general economic conditions, which are not necessarily an indication of future
fosses.

Provisions for loans and advances, less amounts released and recoveries of amounts written off in previous years are
charged to the line item ‘Impairment losses on loans and advances’ in the income statement. The provisions are deducted from
the "Loans and advances to banks’ and the ‘Loans and advances to customers' line items on the balance sheet. If the Group
believes that additions to the provisions for such credit losses are required, then the Group records additional provisions for credit
losses, which would be treated as a charge in the line item ‘Impairment losses on loans and advances’ in the income statement.
The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 include a net provision charge (i.e. after recoveries)
for loans and advances in connection with retail lending for an amount equal to £711m, and corporate lending for an amount
equal to £36m. The provision charges for retail and corporate lending increased from 2008 largely due to worsening market
conditions.

In calculating the retail and corporate lending provisions, principally within the Retail Banking and Corporate Banking
segments, a range of outcomes was calculated based principally on management’s conclusions regarding the current economic
outlook relative to historic experience. Had management used different assumptions regarding the current economic outlook, a
larger or smaller provision for loans and advances would have resulted that could have had a material impact on the Group’s
reported profit on continuing operations before tax in 2009. Specifically, if management's conclusions as 1o the current
economic outlook were different, but within the range of what management deemed to be reasonably possible economic
outlooks, the provision charge for loans and advances in the Retail Banking segment could have decreased in 2009 from an
actual provision charge of £711m (2008: £322m, 2007: £344m) by up to £127m (2008: £78m, 2007: £163m), with a potential
corresponding increase in the Group's profit before tax in 2009 of up to 8% (2008: 7%, 2007: 19%), or increased by up to
£115m (2008 £66m, 2007; £52m), with a potential corresponding decrease in the Group's profit before tax in 2009 of up to
7% (2008 6%, 2007: 6%). The provision charge for loans and advances in the Corporate Banking segment could have
decreased in 2009 from an actual provision charge of £36m by up to £15m, with a potential corresponding increase in the
Group's profit before tax in 2008 of up to 1%, or increased by up to £10m, with a potential corresponding decrease in the
Croup's profit before tax in 2009 of up to 1%.

The actual provision charge for retail lending of £711m (2008: £322m, 2007: £344m) and corporate lending of £36m
(2008: £26m, 2007; £nil) in 2009 was based on what management estimated to be the most probable economic outlook within
the range of reasonably possible assumptions.

The provision charge for the Treasury asset poertfolio acquired on 10 October 2008 of £93m (2008: £nil) was based on
management’s assessment of impairment of each individual asset based on data available at 31 December 2009. A detailed
analysis of the Treasury asset portfolio by type of instrument, credit structure, credit rating and geography can be found in the
Risk Management Report on pages 77 to 85.

(b) Valuation of financial instruments

The Group considers that the accounting estimate related to the valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities including
derivatives where quoted market prices are not available is a ‘critical accounting estimate’ because: (i) it is highly susceptible to
change from period to period because it requires management to make assumptions about interest rates, volatility, exchange
rates. the credit rating of the counterparty, valuation adjustments and specific features of the transactions; and (i) the impact
that recognising a change in the valuations would have on the assets reported on its balance sheet as well as its net profit/(loss)
could be material.
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Changes in the valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities including derivatives where quoted market prices are not
available are accounted for in the line item ‘Net trading and other income’ in the income statement and the ‘Trading assets’,
‘Financial assets designated at fair value’, ‘Trading liabilities’, ‘Financial liabilities designated at fair value’ and ‘Derivative financial
instruments’ line items in the Group’s balance sheet.

The Group trades in a wide variety of financial instruments in the major financial markets and therefore considers a
range of interest rates, volatility, exchange rates, counterparty credit ratings, valuation adjustments and other similar inputs, all of
which vary across maturity bands. These are chosen to best reflect the particular characteristics of each transaction. Had
management used different assumptions regarding the interest rates, volatility, exchange rates, the credit rating of the
counterparty, and valuation adjustments, a larger or smaller change in the valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities
including derivatives where quoted market prices are not available would have resulted that could have had a material impact on
the Group’s reported profit before tax in 2009. Detailed disclosures on financial instruments, including sensitivities, can be found
in Note 49 on page 173. Further information about sensitivities (including value-at-risk) to market risk arising from financial
instrument trading activities can be found in the Risk Management Report on page 72.

(c) Provisions for misselling

The Group estimates provisions for misselling with the objective of maintaining reserve levels believed by management to be
sufficient to absorb current estimated probable losses in connection with compensation from customers who claim
reimbursement of bank charges, and misselling of endowment policies, payment protection insurance policies, and other
products. The calculation of provisions for misselling is based on the estimated number of claims that will be received, of those,
the number that will be upheld, and the estimated average settlement per case. These assessments are based on management’s
estimate for each of these three factors. In certain instances, the extent to which the Group is required to uphold claims is driven
by binding legal decisions or precedents, as described in Note 37.

The Group considers accounting estimates related to misselling provisions “critical accounting estimates’ because: (i)
they are highly susceptible to change from period to period per the three factors above, and (i) any significant difference
between the Group's estimated losses as reflected in the provisions and actual losses would require the Group to take provisions
whick, if significantly different, could have a material impact on its future income statement and its balance sheet. The Group’s
assumptions about estimated losses are based on past claims uphold rates, past customer behaviour, and past average
settlements, which are not necessarily an indication of future losses.

Provisions for misselling are charged to the line item ‘Provisions for other liabilities and charges’ in the income
staternent. The provision is included in the ‘Provisions’ line item on the balance sheet. If the Group believes that additions to the
misselling provision are required, then the Group records additional provisions, which would be treated as a charge in the line
item ‘Provisions for other liabilities and charges’ in the income statement.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 include a provision charge for misselling
in the Retail Banking segment for an amount equal to £10m (2008: £40m release, 2007: £nil). The balance sheet provision
decreased from £141m in 2008 to £43m in 2009, reflecting settlement of claims principally relating to Payment Protection
Insurance.

In calculating the misselling provision within the Retail Banking segment, management’s best estimate of the provision
was calculated based on condlusions regarding the number of claims that will be received, of those, the number that will be
upheld, and the estimated average settlement per case. Had management used different assumptions regarding these factors, a
larger or smaller provision for misselling would have resulted in the Retail Banking segment that could have had a material
impact on the Group's reported profit on continuing operations before tax in 2009. Specifically, if management’s conclusions as
to the number of claims that will be received, of those, the number that will be upheld, and the estimated average settlement
per case were different, but within the range of what management deemed to be reasonably possible, the provision charge for
misselling in the Retail Banking segment could have decreased in 2009 by up to £7m (2008: £8m, 2007: £29m), with a potential
corresponding increase in the Group's profit before tax in 2009 of up to 0.4% (2008: 1%, 2007: 3%), or increased by up to
£8m (2008: £9m, 2007; £19m), with a potential corresponding decrease in the Group's profit before tax in 2009 of up to 0.5%
(2008: 1%, 2007: 2%). The actual charge in 2009 was based on what management estimated to be the most probable number
of claims that will be received, of those, the number that will be upheld, and the estimated average settlement per case within
the range of reasonably possible outcomes.

(d) Pensions

The Group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes as described in Note 36 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The assets of the schemes are measured at their fair values at the balance sheet date. The liabilities of the schemes
are estimated by projecting forward the growth in current accrued pension benefits to reflect inflation and salary growth to the
date of pension payment, discounted to present value using the interest rate applicabie to high-quality AA rated corporate bonds
of the same currency and term as the scheme liabilities. Any surplus or deficit of scheme assets over liabilities is recognised in the
balance sheet as an asset (surplus) or liability (deficit). An asset is only recognised to the extent that the surplus can be recovered
through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the scheme. In determining the value of scheme liabilities,
assumptions are made by management as to mortality, price inflation, discount rates, pensions increases, and earnings growth.
Financial assumptions are based on market conditions at the balance sheet date and can generally be derived objectively.
Demographic assumptions require a greater degree of estimation and judgement to be applied to externally derived data.
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The Group considers accounting estimates related to pension provisions ‘critical accounting estimates’ because: (i) they are highly
susceptible to change from period to period, and (i) any significant difference between the Group's estimates of the scheme
liabilities and actual liabilities could significantly alter the amount of the surplus or deficit recognised in the balance sheet and the
pension cost charged to the income statement. The Group’s assumptions principally about mortality, but also about price
inflation, discount rates, pensions increases, and earnings growth are based on past experience and current economic trends,
which are not necessarily an indication of future experience. Pension costs are charged to the line item ‘Administration expenses’,
with the interest cost on liabilities and the expected return on scheme assets included within ‘Net trading and other income’ in
the income statement. The provision is included in the Retirement benefit obligations line item in the balance sheet. If the Group
believes that increases to the pensions cost are required, then the Group records additional costs that would be treated as a
charge in the line item Administration expenses in the income statement.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 include current year defined benefit
service cost of £44m and a pension scheme deficit of £1,060m. The current year service cost of £44m (2008: £55m, 2007:
£67m) decreased, reflecting reductions in active scheme membership, salary reviews, changes in pension increases, changes in
martality assumptions, changes in price inflation assumptions and changes in discount rate. The current year pension scheme
defici- of £1,060m (2008: £803m, 2007; £979m) increased as a result of a reduction of 100 basis points in the net discount rate
{i.e. the discount rate less the inflation rate) used to value the defined benefit scheme liabilities. The increase in assumed inflation
also mpacted the expected rate of pension increase, in turn leading to a further increase in scheme liabilities. These increases
were partly offset by employer contributions made and improvements in asset values.

In calculating the current year service cost and deficit, a range of outcomes was calculated based principally on
management's estimates regarding mortality, price inflation, discount rates, pensions increases, and earnings growth. Had
management used different assumptions principally regarding mortality, but also price inflation, discount rate, pensions
increases, and earnings growth, a larger or smaller charge for pension costs would have resulted that could have had a material
impact on the Group's reported profit before tax in 2009. Specifically, if management’s conclusions as to mortality, price
inflation, discount rates, pensions increases, and earnings growth were different, but within the range of what management
deered to be reasonably possible conclusions, the charge for pension costs could have decreased in 2009 from an actual
pension charge of £44m (2008: £55m, 2007: £67m) by up to £9m (2008: £8m, 2007 £13m), with a potential corresponding
increase in the Group's profit before tax in 2009 of up to 1% (2008: 1%, 2007: 2%), or increased by up to £6m (2008: £8m,
2007 £7m), with a potential corresponding decrease in the Group's profit before tax in 2009 of up to 0.4% (2008: 1%, 2007:
19%). The actual current year service pension charge of £44m (2008: £55m, 2007: £67m) in 2009 was based on what
management estimated to be the most probable mortality, price inflation, discount rates, pensions increases, and earnings
growth within the range of reasonably possible values. Detailed disclosures on the pension deficit including sensitivities can be
found in Note 36 on page 153.

(e) Deferred tax
The Group recognises deferred tax assets with respect to tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. At 31 December 2009
and 2008 the Group has recognised such deferred tax assets in full. As at 31 December 2009 this amounted to £297m (2008:
£368m). The value of the deferred tax asset is based on management's best estimate of the amount that will be recoverable in
the foreseeable future. This estimate is based on management’s assessment of future taxable profits that are expected to arise
over this period.

The Group considers accounting estimates in respect of £297m (2008: £368m) of the deferred tax assets relating to the
Alliance & Leicester group ‘critical accounting estimates’ because: (i) they are highly susceptible to change from period to period
as the assumptions about future taxable profits represent forward-looking estimates which are inherently vuinerable to changes
in economic and market conditions, and (i) any significant shortfall between the Group's estimated taxable profits and actual
taxable profits could require the Group to take charges which, if significant, could have a material impact on its future income
staternent and its balance sheet. The Group's assumptions about estimated future taxable profits are based on assumptions
about future performance within the Group of which Alliance & Leicester plc is a part, and general economic conditions, which
are not necessarily an indication of future performance.

Changes to the value of deferred tax assets are charged to the line item ‘Taxation charge’ in the income statement.
Changes in deferred tax assets are deducted from the ‘Deferred tax assets’ line item on the balance sheet. The Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 do not include a charge for changes in the value of deferred tax
assets arising in connection with the non recoverability of taxable losses. If management estimates of future tax profits were not
met, it is possible that the deferred tax asset would still be recovered, but over a longer period, therefore it is not possible to
guantify reliably a meaningful sensitivity or range of possible outcomes. Under current UK tax legislation, the tax losses in respect
of which deferred tax assets have been recognised do not expire.

It is management's view that the recoverabie value of the deferred tax asset will be unaffected by the scheme allowed
by Part Vil of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 under which the Company intends to transfer Alliance & Leicester plc’s
business into Santander UK plc later this year, as described in Note 46.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1. Segments

The principal activity of the Group is financial services. The Group’s business is managed and reported on the basis of the
following segments:

Retail Banking;

Corporate Banking;

Global Banking & Markets;
Private Banking; and
Group Infrastructure.

Vv V.V VYV

In 2009, the Bradford & Bingley off-shore deposit-taking business was managed and reported as part of Private Banking rather
than Retail Banking. The segmental analysis of the Group’s results for 2008 has been amended to reflect this change. In addition,
in 2009, the Group's transfer pricing arrangements were updated to reflect the greater benefit of retail deposits in a period of
higher funding costs. Prior years’ segmental analyses have been adjusted for consistency. In this report, the Retail Banking,
Corporate Banking, Global Banking & Markets, Private Banking and Group Infrastructure segments are referred to as the
Personal Financial Services (‘PFS’) businesses.

The Group's segments are strategic business units that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology and marketing strategies. The Group has five segments. Retail
Bankirg offers a range of personal banking, savings and mortgage products and services, under the brands Santander and
Alliance & Leicester. Corporate Banking offers banking services principally to small and mid-sized UK companies under the brands
santander and Alliance & Leicester. Global Banking & Markets provides financial markets sales, trading and risk management
services, as well as manufacturing retail structured products. It also contains operations in run down. Private Banking offers
specialist banking services and offered self-invested pension plans and WRAP products. Group Infrastructure consists of Asset
and L.ability Management activities, Group Capital, Funding and the Treasury asset portfolio of the Alliance & Leicester group.

The segment information below is presented on the basis used by the Company's board of directors {the ‘Board’) to
evaluate performance, in accordance with IFRS 8. The Board reviews discrete financial information for each of its segments,
including measures of operating results and assets. The segments are managed primarily on the basis of their results, which are
measured on a ‘trading’ basis. The trading basis differs from the statutory basis (described in the Accounting Policies section on
pages 109 to 123) as a result of the application of various adjustments. Management considers that the trading basis provides
the most appropriate way of reviewing the performance of the business. The adjustments are:

> Alliance & Leicester pre-acquisition trading basis results ~ Following the transfer of Alliance & Leicester plc to the
Company in January 2009, the statutory results for the year ended 31 December 2009 include the consolidated results of
the Alliance & Leicester group, whereas the statutory results for the year ended 31 December 2008 do not. In order to
enhance the comparability of the results for the two periods, management reviews the 2008 results including the pre-
acquisition results of the Alliance & Leicester group for that period.

>  Reorganisation and other costs - These comprise implementation costs in relation to the cost reduction projects
including integration-related expenses, as well as certain remediation administration expenses and credit provisions.
Management needs to understand the underlying drivers of the cost base that will remain after these exercises are
complete, and does not want this view to be clouded by these costs, which are managed independently.

> Depreciation of operating lease assets - The operating lease businesses are managed as financing businesses and,
therefore, management needs to see the margin earned on the businesses. Residual value risk is separately managed. As a
result, the depreciation is netted against the related income.

>  Profit on part sale of PFS subsidiaries - These profits are excluded from the results to allow management to understand
the underlying performance of the business. In 2009, there were no such profits. In 2008, the profit on the sale of the
Porterbrook businesses was excluded. In 2007, the profit on the sale of 49% of James Hay, Cater Allen and Abbey
Sharedealing, and small recoveries on certain other transactions were similarly excluded.

> Hedging and other variances - The Balance Sheet and Income Statement are subject to mark-to-market volatility
including that arising from the accounting for elements of derivatives deemed under IFRS rules to be ineffective as hedges.
Volatility also arises on certain assets previously managed on a fair value basis, and hence classified as fair value through
profit or loss under IFRS, that are now managed on an accruals basis. Where appropriate, such volatility is separately
identified to enable management to view the underlying performance of the business. In addition, other variances include
the reversal of coupon payments on certain equity instruments which are treated as interest expense in the trading results
but are reported below the profit after tax line for statutory purposes.

>  Capital and other charges - These principally comprise internal nominal charges for capital invested in the Group’s
businesses. Management implemented this charge to assess the effectiveness of capital investments.

Transactions between the business segments are on normal commercial terms and conditions. The accounting policies of the
segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. Internal charges and transfer pricing
adjustments have been reflected in the performance of each business. Revenue sharing agreements are used to allocate external
customer revenues to a business segment on a reasonable basis. Funds are ordinarily reallocated between segments, resulting in
funding cost transfers disclosed in total trading income. Interest charged for these funds is based on the Group's cost of capital.
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Interest receivable and interest payable have not been reported separately. The majority of the revenues from the segments
presented below are from interest and the Board relies primarily on net interest revenues to both assess the performance of the
segment and to make decisions regarding allocation of segmental resources.

Segment assets and liabilities comprise operating assets and liabilities, being the majority of the balance sheet.

a) Segmental information

Global Group
Retail Corporate Banking & Private Infra- Adjust- Group
Banking Banking Markets Banking structure Total ments Total
2009 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 3,257 294 - 130 (340) 3,341 71 3,412
Non-interest income 707 163 380 34 33 1,317 (33) 1,284
Total trading income 3,964 457 380 164 307) 4,658 38 4,696
Administration expenses (1,312) (168) (101) (66) 145) (1,792) (56) (1,848)
Depreciation & amortisation (130) (13) (3) (2) (4) (152 (108) (260)
Total trading expenses {1,442) (181) (104) (68) (149) (1,944 (164) (2,108)
Impairment losses on loans and advances (712) 31) - 2) (57) (802) (40) (842)
Provisiors for other liabilities and charges - - - - - - (56) (56)
Trading profit/(loss) before tax 1,810 245 276 94 (513) 1,912 (222) 1,690
Adjust for:
Reorgansation and other costs (79) - - - (107) (186)
Hedging and other variances (11) - - - (25) (36)
Capital and other charges (180) (86) - 8 258 -
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,540 159 276 102 (387) 1,690
Average number of staff 18,985 522 115 819 289 20,730
Total assets 175,816 21,816 53,260 176 34,223 285,291
Provisions
Net Non Depreciation impairment for other Profit
. . interest interest  Administration and onloans and fiabilities before
Adjustments comprise: income income expenses  amortisation advances  and charges tax
£m £fm £m £m £m £m £m
Reorganisation and other costs - - (56) 39 (40) (56) (186)
Depreciation on operating lease assets - 74 - (74) - - -
Hedging and other variances 7 (107) - - - - (36)
71 (33) (56) (108) {40) (56) (222)

Changes in interest and exchange rates mean that period on period comparisons of gross interest and other trading income and
expense are not meaningful and therefore management only consider these items on a net basis. Similarly, management
consider the trading income generated by each segment on the basis of the margin earned on the customer relationship. There
is therefore no split that is meaningful of trading income between external customers and intra-Group. No analysis of total
trading income from external customers and intra-Group is therefore presented.

Global Group
Retail Corporate Banking & Private Infra- Adjust- Group
Banking Banking Markets Banking structure Total ments Total
2008 fm fm fm fm fm £m fm fm
Net interest income 2,282 134 - 99 (126) 2,389 617) 1,772
Non-interest income 836 264 326 37 42 1,505 (273) 1,232
Total trading income 3,118 398 326 136 (84) 3,894 (890) 3,004
Administration expenses (1,274) (219) (104) (63) (169) (1,829) 486 (1,343)
Depreciation & amortisation (84) (20) (3) (1) (3) (111) (91) (202)
Total trading expenses (1,358) (239) (107) (64) (172) (1,940) 395 (1,545)
impairmant losses on loans and advances (442) (44) - 3) - (489) 141 (348)
Provisions for other liabilities and charges - - - - - - (7 a7
Trading profit/(loss) before tax 1,318 115 219 69 (256) 1,465 (371) 1,094
Adjust for:
A&L pre-acquisition trading basis results (300) (34) - (8 178 (164)
Reorganisation and other costs (121) - - - (42) (163)
Profit on part sale of PFS subsidiaries - 40 - - - 40
Hedging and other variances - - - - (84) (84)
Cap:tal and other charges (103) (14) - 16 101 -
Profit/(loss) before tax 794 107 219 77 (103) 1,094
Average number of staff 13,475 226 300 638 190 14,829
Total assets 166,681 20,057 52,558 179 57,835 297,310
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Net Non Depreciation Impairment Provisions for Profit

interest interest Administration and onloans and  other liabilities before

- PO income income expenses amortisation advances and charges tax
Adjustments comprise: i i pene, Pl P e i
A&L pre-acquisition trading basis results 617) (330) 552 48 183 - (164)
Reorganisation and other costs - (16) (66) (22) (42) 17) (163)
Depreciation on operating lease assets - 117 - (117) - - -
Profit on part sale of PFS subsidiaries - 40 - - - - 40
Hedging and other variances - (84) - - - - (84)
(617) (273) 486 (91) 141 (17) (371)

The comparative trading basis segmental results analyses above for the year ended 31 December 2008 include the pre-
acquisition trading basis results for the Alliance & Leicester group for the reasons described in the section entitled "Alliance &
Leicester pre-acquisition trading basis results’ on the previous page.

The Alliance & Leicester group was not part of the Group at that time, and the inclusion of these pre-acquisition trading
basis results in the 2008 comparatives in the internal segmental information reviewed by the Board is intended only to enhance
the comparability of the results for the two periods. These pre-acquisition trading basis results do not form part of the statutory
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008. The inclusion of these results in the internal segmental information
reviewed by the Board is not intended to imply that the Alliance & Leicester group was part of the Group at that time, and
should not be interpreted as attempting to do so.

Details of the pre-acqusition financial information included above, by segment, are as follows:

Alliance & Leicester group full year trading basis results for the year ended 31 December 2008

Retail Corporate Private Group
Banking Banking Banking Infra-structure Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 592 147 10 (132) 617
Non-interest income 211 131 2 (14) 330
Total trading income 803 278 12 (146) 947
Administration expenses (344) (174) (4) (30) (552)
Depreciation & amortisation (26) (20) - (2) (48
Total operating expenses excluding provisions and charges (370) (194) @) (32) 600
Impairment losses on loans and advances (133) (50) - - 183
Total operating provisions and charges (133) (50) - - 183)
Trading profit/(loss) before tax 300 34 8 (178) 164
Global Group
Retail Corporate Banking & Private Infra- Adjust- Group
Banking Banking Markets Banking structure Total ments Total
2007 £m fm £fm £m £m fm fm £m
Net interest income 1,538 (31) - 70 (78) 1,499 - 1,499
Non-interast income 635 132 260 34 55 1,116 167 1,283
Total trading income 2,173 101 260 104 (23) 2,615 167 2,782
Administration expenses (937) (30 (105) (59) (105) (1,236) (133) (1,369)
Depreciation & amortisation (59) - (2) (2) - (63) (142) (205)
Total trading expenses (996) (30} (107) (61) (105) (1,299) (275) (1,574)
Impairment losses on loans and advances (239) 29 - (2) - (212) (132) (344
Trading profit/{loss) before tax 938 100 153 41 (128) 1,104 (240) 864
Adijust fer:
Reorganisation and other costs (139) - (6) (N (132) (278)
Profit on oart sale of PFS subsidiaries - 5 - - 105 110
Hedg:ng and other variances - - - - (72) (72)
Capital and other charges (89) [GRD] - 19 81 -
Profit/(loss) before tax 710 94 147 59 (146) 864
Average number of staff 13,269 166 389 858 221 14,903
Total assets 114,306 9,357 54,029 211 21,720 199,623
Non Depreciation Impairment on Provisions for Profit
interest Administration and loans and other liabilities before
. . income expenses amortisation advances and charges tax
Adjustments comprise: £m fm £m fm m £m
Reorganisation and other costs - (133) (13) (132) - (278)
Depreciation on operating lease assets 129 - (129) - - -
Profit on part sale of PFS subsidiaries 110 - - - - 110
Hedging and other variances (72) - - - - (72)
167 (133) (142) (132) - (240)
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Group
2009 2008 2007
£m fm fm
Total operating income
United Kingdom 4,625 2,974 2,678
Other 71 30 104
4,696 3,004 2,782
2009 2008
£m fm
Total assets other than financial instruments, current tax assets and deferred tax assets
United Kingdom 2,842 2,704
Other 4 2
2,846 2,706
2. Net interest income
Group
2009 2008 2007
fm £m fm
Interest and similar income:
Loans and advances to banks 155 448 227
Loans anc advances to customers 6,823 7,394 6,747
Other interest-earning financial assets 340 73 69
Total interest and similar income 7,318 7,915 7,043
Interest expense and similar charges:
Deposits oy banks 193 218 200
Deposits oy customers 2,256 3,155 2,905
Debt securities in issue and other borrowed funds 865 2,218 1,955
Other interest-bearing financial liabilities 592 552 484
Total interest expense and similar charges 3,906 6,143 5,544
Net interest income 3412 1,772 1,499
3. Net fee and commission income
Group
2009 2008 2007
£fm fm fm
Fee and commission income:
Retail products 674 461 450
Insurance products 158 155 201
Asset management 154 152 134
Total fee and commission income 986 768 785
Fee and commission expense:
Other fees paid 162 97 90
Total fee and commission expense 162 97 90
Net fee and commission income 824 671 695
4. Net trading and other income
Group
2009 2008 2007
£m £m fm
Net trading and funding of other items by the trading book 187 54 260
Income from operating lease assets 95 223 245
Income cn assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 95 916 368
Expense on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (117) (435) (382)
Gains/(losses) on derivatives managed with assets/liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss 230 (396) (19)
Profit on sale of a non-controlling interest in subsidiary undertakings - - 105
Profit on sale of subsidiary undertakings - 40 7
ProfitAloss) on sale of fixed assets 2 (17) 5
Hedge ireffectiveness and other (32) 176 (2)
460 561 587
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5. Administration expenses

Group
2009 2008 2007
£m fm fm

Staff costs:
Wages ard salaries 697 545 529
Social security costs 71 45 42
Pensions costs: - defined contribution plans 20 8 7
- defined benefit plans 55 a7 62
Other personnel costs 62 50 77
905 695 717
Property. plant and equipment expenses 227 182 19
Information technology expenses 311 201 195
Other acministration expenses 405 265 266
1,848 1,343 1,369

Included in wages and salaries is £5m (2008: £7m, 2007: £3m) which arose from equity-settled share-based payments, of which
£nil (2008: £nil, 2007: £3m) related to option-based schemes. Also included in wages and salaries was £5m (2008: release of
£28m, 2007: £8m) which arose from cash-settled share-based payments.

6. Depreciation and amortisation

Group
2009 2008 2007
£m fm £m
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment excluding operating lease assets 163 78 76
Depreciation of operating lease assets 75 117 129
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 22 7 -
260 202 205
7. Audit and other services
The fees for audit and other services payable to the Company’s auditors, Deloitte LLP, are analysed as follows:
Group
2009 2008 2007
£m £m £m
Audit fees:
- Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Group’s annual accounts 19 16 1.2
- Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company’s 2.3 16 16
subs.diaries pursuant to legistation
Total audit fees 4.2 3.2 2.8
Non-audit fees:
Other assurance services
- Other services pursuant to legislation 12 0.7 14
- Tax -ompliance services - - -
- Other assurance 0.4 0.8 0.6
Total assurance services fees 1.6 1.5 2.0
Other services
- Tax services 0.7 0.4 -
- Other services - - 0.1
Total uther services 0.7 0.4 0.1
Total non-audit fees 2.3 1.9 2.1

Other services pursuant to legislation relate to services carried out by the auditors in relation to statutory and regulatory filings of
the Company and its associates. Of this category, £1.1m (2008: £0.6m, 2007: £1.2m) accords with the definition of “Audit fees’
per US Securities and Exchange Commission guidance. The remaining £0.1m (2008: £0.1m, 2007: £0.2m) accords with the
definition of ‘Other services’ per that guidance.

Other assurance relates to services performed in connection with securitisation and debt issuances. Of this category,
£nil (2008: £0.2m, 2007: £0.1m) accords with the definition of ‘Audit fees’ per US Securities and Exchange Commission
guidance. Of the remaining balance £0.3m (2008: £0.3m, 2007. £0.2m) accords with the definition of ‘Audit related fees' per
that guidance and £0.1m (2008: £0.3m, 2007: £0.3m) accords with the definition of ‘Other services’ per that definition.

No information technology, internal audit, valuation and actuarial, litigation, recruitment and remuneration or
corporate finance services were provided by the external auditors during these years. A framework for ensuring auditors’
independence has been adopted which defines unacceptable non-audit assignments, pre-approval of acceptable non-audit
assignments and procedures for approval of acceptable non-audit assignments by the Audit and Risk Committee. All services
provided by the Group's external auditors are either pre-approved or approved by the Audit and Risk Committee.
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8. Impairment losses/(recoveries) on loans and advances

Group
2009 2008 2007
£m fm fm
Impairment losses on loans and advances 897 394 388
Recoveries of loans and advances (55) (46) (44)
842 348 344
9. Taxation charge
Group
2009 2008 2007
£fm £m fm
Current tax:
UK corporation tax on profit of the year 124 218 122
Adjustments and reclassifications in respect of prior periods (117) (65) (31
Total current tax 7 153 91
Deferred tax:
Current year 388 95 68
Adjustments and reclassifications in respect of prior periods 50 27 20
Total deferred tax 438 122 88
Tax on profit for the year 445 275 179

UK corporation tax is calculated at 28% (2008: 28.5%, 2007: 30%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. The
standard rate of UK corporation tax was reduced from 30% to 28% with effect from 1 April 2008. Taxation for other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic tax rate of
the Company as follows:

Group

2009 2008 2007

£m £m £m

Profit before tax 1,690 1,094 864
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 28% (2008: 28.5%, 2007: 30%) 473 310 259
Non taxable gain on sale of subsidiary undertakings (5) (11 (33)
Non deductible preference dividends paid 8 8 9
Effect of non-allowable provisions and other non-equalised items 51 19 (10
Non-taxable dividend income 4) (5) (3}
Effect of non-UK profits and losses (8) (8) an
Utilisation of capital losses for which credit not previously recognised (3) - (1)
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred tax provision - - (10
Adjustment to prior year provisions (67) (38) (11)
Income tax expense 445 275 179

in addit-on to the income tax expense charged to profit or loss, a deferred tax asset of £172m (2008: £8m, 2007: £9m) has been
recognised in equity in the year. Further information about deferred income tax is presented in Note 25.

10. Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities after tax

The prefit after tax of the Company attributable to the shareholders was £747m (2008: £1,328m, 2007: £351m). As permitted

by Section 408 of the UK Companies Act 2006, the Company's profit and loss account has not been presented in these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

11. Cash and balances with central banks

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m fm fm fm

Cash in nand 710 804 308 347
Balar:ces with central banks 3,453 3,213 2,958 2,109
4,163 4,017 3,266 2,456

For regulatory purposes, certain minimum cash balances are required to be maintained with the Bank of England. At 31
December 2009, these amounted to £184m (2008: £171m).
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12. Trading assets

Group
2009 2008
£m fm
Balances with central banks - 2,498
Loans and advances to banks 5.252 4,947
Loans and advances 1o customers 10,628 1,310
Debt securities 15,932 16,801
Equity securities 1,478 708
33,290 26,264
Debt securities can be analysed by type of issuer as follows:
Group
2009 2008
£m £m
Issued by public bodies:
- Government securities 2,856 3,139
Issued bv other issuers:
- Bank and building society certificates of deposit: Government guaranteed 205 3,119
- Bank and building society certificates of deposit: Other 1,730 5,266
- Floatin:y rate notes 3,038 4,724
- Floatin? rate notes: Government guaranteed 8,090 553
- Other cebt securities: Other 13 -
15,932 16,801
Debt securities and equity securities can be analysed by listing status as follows:
Group
2009 2008
£m £m
Debt securities:
- Listed in the UK 12,803 9,576
- Listed elsewhere 3,129 7.225
- Unlisted - -
15,932 16,801
Equity securities:
- Listed in the UK 1,183 317
- Listed alsewhere 295 391
1,478 708

The Company has no trading assets (2008: nil).

13. Derivative financial instruments

All derivatives are required to be held at fair value through profit or loss. Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as being in a hedge relationship. Derivatives are held for trading or for risk management purposes. The Group
chooses to designate certain derivatives as in a hedging relationship if they meet specific criteria.

Derivatives held for trading purposes
Global Banking & Markets is the only area of the Group actively trading derivative products and is additionally responsible for
implementing Group derivative hedging with the external market. For trading activities, its objectives are to gain value by:

> Marketing derivatives to end users and hedging the resulting exposures efficiently; and
> The management of trading exposure reflected on the Group'’s balance sheet.

Trading derivatives include interest rate, cross currency, equity, property and other index related swaps, forwards, caps, floors,
swaptions, as well as credit default and total return swaps, equity index contracts and exchange traded interest rate futures and
equity index options.

Derivatives held for risk management purposes

The main derivatives are interest rate and cross-currency swaps, which are used to hedge the Group’s exposure to interest rates
and exchange rates. These risks are inherent in non-trading assets, liabilities and positions, including fixed-rate lending and
structured savings products within the relevant operations throughout the Group, including medium-term note issues, capital
issues and fixed-rate asset purchases.
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The derivatives table in the Market Risk discussion within the Group Infrastructure section of the Risk Management Report
summarises activities undertaken by the Group, the related risks associated with such activities and the types of derivative used in
managing such risks. Such risks may also be managed using natural offsets within other on-balance sheet instruments as part of
an integrated approach to risk management.

Derivative products which are combinations of more basic derivatives {such as swaps with embedded option features),
or which have leverage features, may be used in circumstances where the underlying position being hedged contains the same
risk features. In such cases, the derivative used will be structured to match the risks of the underlying asset or liability. Exposure
to market risk on such contracts is therefore hedged. The fair values of derivative instruments held both for trading and hedging
purposes are set out in the following tables. The tables below show the contract or underlying principal amounts, positive and
negative fair values of derivatives analysed by contract. Contract or notional amounts indicate the volume of business
outstanding at the balance sheet date and do not represent amounts of risk. The fair values represent the amount at which a
contract could be exchanged in an arm’s length transaction, calculated at market rates at the balance sheet date.

Derivatives classified as held for trading or held for risk management purposes that have not been designated as in a
hedging relationship are classified as derivatives held for trading in the table below. Derivatives that have been designated as in a
hedging relationship are classified as derivatives held for hedging below.

Group
2009 Contract/ notional Fair value Fair value
Derivatives held for trading amount assets liabilities
£m £m £m
Exchange rate contracts:
- Cross-cuirrency swaps 113,036 3,101 409
- Foreign exchange swaps and forwards 22,496 164 112
135,532 3,265 521
Interest rate contracts:
- Interest rate swaps 554,709 14,905 13,226
- Caps, floors and swaptions 80,075 1,767 737
- Futures (exchange traded) 89,379 4 -
- Forwarc rate agreements 77,170 56 61
801,333 16,732 14,024
Equity and credit contracts:
- Equity index and similar products 4,736 881 1,311
- Equity index options (exchange traded) 71,662 563 871
- Credit default swaps and similar products 3,737 31 48
80,135 1,475 2,230
Total derivative assets and liabilities held for trading 1,017,000 21,472 16,775
Group
2009 Contract/ notional Fair value Fair value
Derivatives held for fair value hedging amount assets liabilities
£m £fm £m
Exchange rate contracts:
- Cross-currency swaps 6,515 860 -
Interest rate contracts:
- Interest rate swaps 45,093 495 2,185
Equity and credit contracts:
- Equity index and similar products - - 3
Total derivative assets and liabilities held for fair value hedging 51,608 1,355 2,188
Total recognised derivative assets and liabilities 1,068,608 22,827 18,963
Company
2009 Contract/ notional Fair value Fair value
Derivatives held for trading amount assets liabilities
£m £m £m
Exchange rate contracts:
- Cross-currency swaps 19,983 123 2,810
Interest rate contracts:
- Intarest rate swaps 57,029 1,093 1
- Caps, floors and swaptions 146 2 -
57,175 1,095 1
Equity and credit contracts:
- Equity index and similar products 273 38 190
Total derivative assets and liabilities held for trading 77.431 1,256 3,001
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Company
2009 Contract/ notional Fair value Fair value
Derivatives held for fair value hedging amount assets liabilities
£m £m £m
Exchange rate contracts:
- Cross-cLrrency swaps 1,846 796 -
Interest rate contracts:
- Interest rate swaps 4,797 487 352
Total derivative assets and liabilities held for fair value hedging 6,643 1,283 352
Total recognised derivative assets and liabilities 84,074 2,539 3,353
Group
2008 Contract/ notional Fair value Fair value
Derivatives held for trading amount assets liabilities
£m fm £m
Exchange rate contracts:
- Cross-currency swaps 33,507 8,236 551
- Foreign exchange swaps and forwards 19,563 1,421 1,129
53,070 9,657 1,680
Interest rate contracts:
- Interest rate swaps 471,976 16,887 16,658
- Caps, floors and swaptions 44,529 1,782 1,842
- Futures (exchange traded) 55,534 232 -
- forwa-d rate agreements 250,324 604 599
822,363 19,505 19,099
Tquity and credit contracts:
- Equity index and similar products 16,245 1,597 3,659
- Equity index options (exchange traded) 11,564 843 803
_ Cradit default swaps and similar products 1,854 11 179
29,663 2,551 4,641
Total derivative assets and liabilities held for trading 905,096 31,713 25,420
Group
2008 Contract/ notional Fair value Fair value
Derivatives held for fair value hedging amount assets liabilities
fm £m fm
Excharge rate contracts:
- CrOss-CUrrency swaps 2,595 1,136 -
Interest rate contracts:
- Interest rate swaps 85,183 2,276 2,390
Total derivative assets and liabilities held for fair value hedging 87,778 3,412 2,390
Total recognised derivative assets and liabilities 992,874 35,125 27,810
Company
2008 Contract/ notional Fair value Fair value
Derivatives held for trading amount assets liabilities
£m fm fm
Exchange rate contracts
- Cross-currency swaps 22,004 1,611 3,334
interest rate contracts:
- Inte-est rate swaps 56,457 490 162
- Caps, floors and swaptions 246 3 -
56,703 493 162
Equity and credit contracts.
- Equity index and similar products 685 8 176
Total derivative assets and liabilities held for trading 79,392 2,112 3,672
Company
2008 Contract/ notional Fair value Fair value
Derivatives held for fair value hedging amount assets liabilities
fm fm fm
Exchange rate contracts:
- Cross-currency swaps 1,570 - 1,394
Interast rate contracts:
- Interest rate swaps 5141 623 327
Total derivative assets and liabilities held for fair value hedging 6,711 623 1,721
Total recognised derivative assets and liabilities 86,103 2,735 5,393
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Net gains or losses arising from fair value hedges included in net trading and other income

Group
2009 2008 2007
£m £m £m

Net gains/(losses):
- on hedging instruments 647 39 (413)
- on hedged items attributable to hedged risks (579) 53 449
68 92 36

The Group hedges its exposures to various risks, including interest rate risk and foreign currency risk, in connection with certain
mortgage assets, covered bond issuances, and subordinated and senior debt securities in issue. The gains/{losses) arising on
these assets and liabilities are presented in the table above on a combined basis.

14. Financial assets designated at fair value

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m fm £m fm

Loans and advances to banks - - 160 162
Loans and advances to customers 6,379 6,687 45 44
Debt securities 5,979 4,690 36,940 47,319
12,358 11,377 37,145 47,525

Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss where this results in more relevant information because it
significantly reduces a measurement inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis, or where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives.
The following assets have been designated at fair value through profit or loss:
> Loans and advances 1o Customers, representing certain loans secured on residential property to housing associations.
These would otherwise have been measured at amortised cost with the associated derivatives used to economically
hedge the risk held for trading and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
> Debt securities representing holdings of asset-backed securities of £5,929m (2008: £4,690m) and collateralised synthetic
obligations of £50m (2008: fnil):
> At the date of their acquisition, the asset-backed securities were managed, and their performance was evaluated,
on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented investment strategy, and information about them was
provided internally on that basis to the Group's key management personnel. Almost all of these securities are
now managed on an accruals basis, but are not eligible for reclassification under 1AS 39.
> The collateralised synthetic obligations contain embedded derivatives which would otherwise require bifurcation
and separate recognition as derivatives. The collateralised synthetic obligations were initially recognised in 2009
upon the consolidation of the assets of the Group's Conduit vehicles as described in ‘Exposure 10 Off-Balance
Sheet Entities sponsored by the Group - Secured Loan to Conduit’ in the Risk Management Report.

The maximum exposure to credit risk on loans and advances designated as held at fair value through profit or loss at the balance
sheet date was £6,261m (2008: £6,335m) for the Group and £204m (2008: £206m) for the Company. The maximum exposure
was mitigated by the Group having a charge over the residential properties in respect of lending to housing associations. Of the
movement in the fair value of the loans and advances to banks, loans and advances to customers and debt securities an amount
of £247m (2008: £474m) was due 10 changes in credit spreads.

Debt securities can be analysed by listing status as follows:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m £fm
Listed in the UK - - 18,463 26,978
Listed elsewhere 3,224 4,120 18,016 20,341
Unlisted 2,755 570 461 -
5,979 4,690 36,940 47,319

15. Loans and advances to banks
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m fm
Placements with other banks 1,605 6,648 995 970
Armrounts due from parent 5,995 9,353 1 1,004
Armounts due from associated undertakings 1,551 - 1 334
Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 108,661 114,178
9,151 16,001 109,658 116,486
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During the year, no impairment losses were incurred (2008: £nil, 2007: £nil).

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Repayable. £m £m £m fm
On demand 1,457 3,555 5,551 7,826
in not more than 3 months 5,055 1,985 46,580 50,759
in mare than 3 months but not more than 1 year 2,390 8,980 14,552 6,135
In more than 1 year but not more than 5 years 95 61 21,951 18,263
In more than 5 years 154 1,420 21,024 33,503
9,151 16,001 109,658 116,486
16. Loans and advances to customers

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m £m
Advances secured on residential properties 160,802 152,493 122,746 115,474
Corporate loans 12,173 13,284 - 24
Finance leases 1,602 1,792 - -
Other secured advances 3,819 4,209 3,759 4,133
Other ursecured advances 5,250 6,747 5,036 3,082
Amounts due from fellow group subsidiaries 4,457 2,652 n -
Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 1,036 1,328
Loans and advances to customers 188,103 181,177 132,648 124,041
Less: loan loss allowances (1,299) (1,001) (899) (722)
Loans and advances to customers, net of loan loss allowances 186,804 180,176 131,749 123,319
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Repayable: £m fm £m fm
On demand 997 636 534 523
In no more than 3 months 6,591 6,712 1,575 1,418
In more than 3 months but not more than 1 year 4,909 5,974 3,311 2,532
In more than 1 year but not more than 5 years 26,411 25,585 14,653 13,248
In more than 5 years 149,195 142,270 112,575 106,320
Loans and advances to customers 188,103 181,177 132,648 124,041
Less loan loss allowances (1,299) (1,001) (899) (722)
Loans and advances to customers, net of loan loss allowances 186,804 180,176 131,749 123,319

The Group’s leasing subsidiaries enter into finance lease and hire purchase arrangements with customers, as follows.
Gross investment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts receivable 2009 2008
£m £m
Within 1 year 240 333
Between 1-5 years 543 699
In more than 5 years 1,570 1,557
2,353 2,589
Unearned future finance income on finance leases and hire purchase contracts (751) (797)
Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts 1,602 1,792
The net investment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts is analysed as follows: 2009 20{08
£m m
Within 1 year 246 231
Between 1-5 years 435 484
In more than 5 years 921 1,077
Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts 1,602 1,792

included in the carrying value of Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts is £13m (2008: £48m) residual

value at the end of the current lease terms, which will be recovered through re-letting or sale.

Included within loans and advances to customers are £15,150m (2008: £24,101m) of mortgage advanc

es assigned to

bankruptcy remote special purpose entities, Abbey Covered Bonds LLP and Alliance & Leicester Covered Bonds LLP. These loans

provide security to issues of covered bonds made by the Company and Alliance & Leicester pic.
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Loans and advances to customers have the following interest rate structures:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m fm
Fixed rate 77,427 90,214 62,222 66,682
Variable rate 110,676 90,963 70,426 57,359
Less: loar loss allowances (1,299) (1,001) (899) (722)
186,804 180,176 131,749 123,319
Movement in loan loss allowances:
Group
Loans secured Other Other
on residential Corporate Finance secured unsecured
property Loans leases advances advances Total
2009 £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 1 January 2009
- Individually assessed 174 13 - 37 227 451
- Colectively assessed 184 289 1 1 65 550
358 302 1 48 292 1,001
Charge/ti-elease) to the income statement:
- indwvid Jally assessed 223 172 5 30 539 969
- Collectvely assessed (13) (117) - 1 (12) (141)
210 55 31 527 828
Write otfs (84) - (L) an (425) (530)
At 31 December 2009:
- Indivicually assessed 313 185 1 50 341 890
- Collectively assessed 171 172 1 12 53 409
484 357 2 62 394 1,299
Group
Loans secured on Other Other
residential Corporate Finance secured unsecured
property Loans leases advances advances Total
2008 £m £m £m fm £m fm
As at 1 January 2008:
- individually assessed 74 - - 32 250 356
- Colleztively assessed 102 - - 8 85 195
176 - - 40 335 551
Charge/(release) to the income statement:
- indiv dually assessed 132 13 - 14 239 398
- Collectively assessed 21 13 - 3 (41) 4
153 26 - 17 198 394
Write offs (32) - - (9) (262) (303)
Acquived through business combinations 61 276 1 - 21 359
At 31 December 2008:
- Indiv dually assessed 174 13 - 37 227 451
- Collectively assessed 184 289 1 11 65 550
358 302 1 48 292 1,001
Group
Loans secured on Other Other
residential Corporate Finance secured unsecured
property Loans leases advances advances Total
2007 £m fm fm £m £m £m
As at 1 January 2007:
- ndwvidually assessed 45 - 1 73 243 362
- Collectively assessed 60 - - 3 111 174
105 - 1 76 354 536
Chargef(release) to the income statement:
- individually assessed 38 - - a7 346 367
- Collectively assessed 42 - - 5 (26) 21
80 - - (12) 320 388
Write offs 9) - [ (24) (339) (373)
At 21 December 2007:
- Individually assessed 74 - - 32 250 356
- Collectively assessed 102 - - 3 85 195
176 - - 40 335 551
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Company

Loans secured Amounts Other Other

on residential due from Finance secured unsecured
property subsidiaries leases advances advances Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 1 January 2009 297 113 - 42 270 722
Charge/ielease) to the income statement 182 (15) - 31 421 619
Write offs (84) - - (18) (340) (442)
At 31 December 2009 395 98 - 55 351 899
As at 1 :anuary 2008 176 136 - N 331 654
Chargesirelease) to the income statement 153 (23) - 32 197 359
Write offs (32) - - (1) (258) (291)
At 31 December 2008 297 113 - 42 270 722
As at 1 .anuary 2007 105 161 1 4 352 623
Charge/!release) to the income statement 80 (25) - 8 316 379
Write otfs (9) - (1) (1) (337) (348)
At 31 December 2007 176 136 - 11 331 654

Recoveries.

Group

Loans secured Other Other

on residential Corporate Finance secured unsecured
property Loans leases advances advances Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
2009 1 23 1 - 30 55
2008 1 - - 12 33 46
2007 2 - - 6 36 44

17. Securitisation of assets

Loans and advances to customers include portfolios of residential mortgage loans, which are subject to non-recourse finance
arrangements. These loans have been purchased by, or assigned to, special purpose securitisation companies, and have been
funded primarily through the issue of mortgage-backed securities. No gain or loss has been recognised as a resuit of these sales.
These securitisation companies are consolidated and included in the Group financial statements as subsidiaries.

Master Trust Structures

The Group makes use of a type of securitisation known as a master trust structure. In this structure, a pool of assets is assigned
to a trust company by the asset originator, initially funded by the originator. A funding entity acquires beneficial interests in a
share of the portfolios of assets with funds borrowed from qualifying special purpose entities, which at the same time issue
asset-backed securities to third-party investors or the Group. The purpose of the special purpose entities is 10 obtain diverse, low
cost funding through the issue of asset-backed securities, or to use the asset-backed securities as collateral for raising funds. The
share of the pool of assets not purchased from the trust company by the funding entity is known as the beneficial interest of the
originator.

Using this structure, the Group has assigned portfolios of residential mortgages and their related security to Holmes
Trus-ees Limited, a trust company that holds the portfolios of mortgages on trust for the Company and Holmes Funding Limited
and Holmes Funding 2 Limited. In June 2009, two new entities were incorporated (Holmes Master issuer 2 plc and Holmes
Funding 2 Limited) in order 10 enable the separation of the intercompany issuances from the third party issuances. Holmes
funding Limited and Holmes Funding 2 Limited acquire beneficial interests in the portfolios of mortgages with funds borrowed
from the securitisation companies Holmes Financing (No.s 1, 9, and 10) plc, Holmes Master Issuer plc and Holmes Master Issuer 2
plc.

In January 2009 the remaining mortgages backed securities in Holmes Financing (No. 8) plc were redeemed. The
remaining share of the beneficial interest in residential mortgage loans held by Holmes Trustees Limited belongs to Santander UK
plc. and amounts to £13.0bn at 31 December 2009. Mortgage backed notes totalling £3.0bn equivalent were redeemed during
the year. In April 2008 the remaining mortgage backed securities in issue in Holmes Financing (No. 6) plc and Holmes Financing
'No. 7) plc were redeemed.

Alliance & Leicester plc established the Fosse Master Trust securitisation structure in 2006. Notes were issued by Fosse
Master Issuer plc to third party investors and the proceeds loaned to Fosse Funding (No. 1) Limited, which in turn used the funds
to purchase beneficial interests in mortgages held by Fosse Trustee Limited. Mortgage packed notes totalling £0.6bn equivalent
were redeemed during the year.

Alliance & Leicester pic established the Langton Master Trust securitisation structure on 25 January 2008. Notes were
issued by Langton Securities (2008-1) ple, Langton Securities (2008-2) plc and Langton Securities (2008-3) plc to Alliance &
Leicester plc, either for the purpose of creating collateral to be used for funding or for subsequent transfer of Notes to investors
outside the Group. Each entity loaned the proceeds of the Notes issued to Langton Funding (No.1) Limited, which in turn used
the funds to purchase a beneficial interest in the mortgages held by Langton Mortgages Trustee Limited.
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The Company and its subsidiaries are under no obligation to support any losses that may be incurred by the Holmes, Fosse and
Langton securitisation companies or holders of the securities and do not intend to provide such further support. Holders of the
securities are only entitled to obtain payment of principal and interest to the extent that the resources of the Hoimes, Fosse and
Langton securitisation companies are sufficient to support such payments, and the holders of the securities have agreed in
writing not to seek recourse in any other form.

The Company and its subsidiaries receive payments from the securitisation companies in respect of fees for
administering the loans, and payment of deferred consideration for the sale of the loans. The Company and its subsidiaries have
no right or obligation to repurchase the benefit of any securitised loan, except if certain representations and warranties given by
the Company or its subsidiaries at the time of transfer are breached.

In April and December 2008, Holmes Funding Limited acquired, at book value, additional beneficial interests in the trust
property vested in Holmes Trustees Limited. These further beneficial interests of £8.2bn and £13.4bn, respectively, were acquired
through borrowing from Holmes Master lssuer plc, which funded its advances to Holmes Funding Limited through the issue of
mortgage backed securities. All of the mortgage backed securities issued in 2008 were acquired by the Company. It is intended
that any future issues will continue to be made from Holmes Master Issuer pic or Holmes Master Issuer 2 plc.

Bracken Securities plc

In October 2007 Alliance & Leicester plc securitised £10,367m of residential mortgage assets to Bracken Securities plc. Notes of
£10,367m were issued by Bracken Securities plc to Alliance & Leicester plc, either for the purpose of creating collateral to be
used for funding or for subsequent transfer of Notes to investors outside the Alliance & Leicester group.

Outstanding balances of assets securitised and non-recourse finance under the Holmes structure at 31 December 2009 were!

Gross assets Non-recourse Issued to Santander

Closing date of securitised finance UK plc as collateral

Securititation company securitisation £m £m £m
Holmes Financing (No. 1) plc 26 July 2000 275 275 -
Holmes Financing (No. 9) plc 8 December 2005 1,053 1,658 -
Holme: Financing (No. 10) plc 8 August 2006 1,526 1,639 -
Holmes Master Issuer pic — 2006/1 28 November 2006 1,767 2,015 -
Holmes Master Issuer plc — 2007/1 28 March 2007 3,392 4,985 -
Ho'mes Master Issuer plc — 2007/2 20 June 2007 4,319 5,263 -
Ho'mes Master Issuer plc — 2007/3 21 December 2007 7,259 - 8,914
Hoimes Master lssuer plc — 2008/1 10 April 2008 8,240 - 9,103
Holmes Master Issuer pic — 2008/2 19 December 2008 12,758 - 13,209
Beneficial interest in mortgages held by Holmes Trustees Ltd 12,980 - -
53,569 15,835 31,226

The gross assets securitised represent the interest in the trust property held by Holmes Funding Limited related to the debt issued
by the securitisation companies. The beneficial interest in the mortgages held by Holmes Trustees Limited represents the
proportion of the funds required to be retained in the trust as part of the master trust structure.

The Holmes securitisation companies have placed cash deposits totalling £1.8bn, which have been accumulated to
finarce the redemption of a number of securities issued by the Holmes securitisation companies. The Holmes securitisation
companies’ contractual interest in advances secured on residential property i therefore reduced by this amount. The Company
and ts subsidiaries do not own directly, or indirectly, any of the share capital of any of the securitisation companies.

The Fosse, Bracken and Langton securitisation companies have cash deposits totalling £115m, which have been accumulated to
finance the redemption of a number of securities issued by the Fosse, Bracken and Langton securitisation companies. The Fosse,
Bracken and Langton securitisation companies’ contractual interest in advances secured on residential property is therefore
reduced by this amount. The Company and its subsidiaries do not own directly, or indirectly, any of the share capital of any of
the above securitisation companies or their parents.

In March 2010 the Group issued through the Fosse Master Trust the first publicly-placed mortgage-backed
securitisation transaction from a UK bank since 2007, other recent transactions from UK banks had included an investor put. The
transaction was denominated in both pounds sterling and euro and raised approximately £1.4bn.

Outstanding balances of assets securitised and non-recourse finance under the Fosse, Bracken and Langton structures
at 31 December 2009 were:

Gross assets Non-recourse Issued to A&L plc as

Closing date securitised finance collateral

Securitisation company of securitisation £m £m £m
Fasse Master Issuer plc 28 November 2006 1,859 1,924 -
Fasse Master Issuer plc 1 August 2007 2,050 2,080 -
Fossa Master Issuer plc 21 August 2008 287 314 -
Eracken Securities plc 11 October 2007 6,736 - 6,909
Langton Securities (2008-1) plc 25 January 2008 1,227 - 1,228
Langton Securities (2008-2) pic 5 March 2008 2,210 - 2211
Langton Securities (2008-3) plc 17 June 2008 3,521 - 3,522
Beneficial interest in mortgages held by Fosse Master Trust Ltd 2,251 - -
Beneficial interest in mortgages held by Langton Master Trust Ltd 1,572 - -
21,713 4,318 13,870
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18. Available-for-sale securities

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m fm
Debt securities 747 2,618 - -
Equity securities 50 45 30 25
797 2,663 30 25
Maturities of debt securities:
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m fm
Due in less than 3 months 91 1,644 - -
Due in more than 3 months but less than 1 year 405 970 -
Due in more than 1 year but less than 5 years 251 4 - -
Due in more than one year but not more than 5 years - - - -
747 2,618 - -
Equity securities do not bear interest. Equity securities can be analysed by listing status as follows:
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m fm fm
Listed in the UK 11 10 - -
Unlisted 39 35 30 25
50 45 30 25
The movement in available-for-sale securities can be summarised as follows:
Group Company
£m £m
At 1 January 2009 2,663 25
Acditions 1,133 8
Redemptions and maturities (3,001) (3)
Arnortisation of discount 8 -
Movement in fair value (6) -
At 31 December 2009 797 30
Group Company
fm £m
A~ 1 lanuary 2008 40 28
Addi-ions 1,222 9
Acqu-red through business combinations 1,658 -
Redemptions and maturities (286) (8)
Amartisation of discount 21 -
Movament in fair value 8 (4)
At 31 December 2008 2,663 25
Group Company
£m £m
At 1 January 2007 23 12
Redemptions and maturities (2) )
Movement in fair value 19 18
At 21 December 2007 40 28
19. Loan and receivable securities
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
fm fm £m fm
Loan and receivable securities 9,898 14,107 2 -

These assets were acquired as part of the transfer of Alliance & Leicester plc to the Group. Upon initial recognition by the Group,
the securities were classified as ‘loans and receivables’ as the Group identified that a rare circumstance of extreme market
illiquidity existed at that time. The Group has the intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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in 2009, the Group recognised additional securities as a result of the requirement to consolidate the assets of the Group's
Conduit vehicles, rather than recognising the Group's loans to the Conduit vehicles and treating the assets of the Conduit
vehicles as off-balance sheet, as described in “Exposure to Off-Balance Sheet Entities sponsored by the Group - Secured Loan to
Conduit” in the Risk Management Report on page 84. Upon initial recognition by the Group, these securities were classified as
‘loans and receivables’.

Detailed analysis of these securities is contained in the Risk Management Report.

20. Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost subject to impairment. The movement in investments in subsidiary undertakings was
as follows:

Company
Cost Impairment Net book value
£m £m £m
At 1 laniary 2009 5,252 (105) 5,147
Additiors 2,136 211) 1,925
Disposals within the Group/repayment of investment (45) 11 (34
At 37 December 2009 7,343 (305) 7,038
Cost impairment Net book value
fm £m £m
At 1 Jar.aary 2008 5,213 (160) 5,053
Additiors 133 - 133
Disposals within the Group (94) - (94)
Write-back of impairments/repayment of investment - 55 55
At 31 December 2008 5,252 (105) 5,147

On 9 January 2009, in order to optimise the capital, liquidity funding and overall financial efficiency of the Santander group,
Banco Santander, S.A. transferred all of its Alliance & Leicester plc (wholly owned by Banco Santander, S.A. and the Company)
shares to the Company in exchange for 12,631,375,230 newly issued ordinary shares of the Company (the “Transfer'). The result
of this was to increase the Company’s holding of 35.6% of Alliance & Leicester plc's equity voting interests to 100%.
Accordingly, the Company is now the immediate parent company of Alliance & Leicester plc. As described more fully in Note 47,
the transfer of Alliance & Leicester pic has been accounted for by the Company with effect from 10 October 2008, the date on
which Banco Santander, S.A. acquired control of Alliance & Leicester plc.

The ordinary shares of the Company issued as consideration for Banco santander, S.A.'s holding of Alliance & Leicester
plc shares have been recognised at their nominal value, which is the same as the fair value of the shares issued by Banco
santander, S.A. in exchange for the shares of Alliance & Leicester plc plus acquisition costs, and the net assets of Alliance &
Leicester plc have been accounted for by the Company at the fair values recognised by Banco Santander, S.A. at the time of its
acquisition of Alliance & Leicester plc on 10 October 2008. The acquisition price was £1,281m.

In September 2008, following the announcement by HM Treasury to take Bradford & Bingley plc into public ownership,
the retail deposits, branch network and its related employees, and offshore entities transferred, under the provisions of the UK
Banking (Special Provisions) Act 2008, to the Company. Al of Bradford & Bingley pic's customer loans and treasury assets, which
include all its mortgage assets, were taken into public ownership. The only entities acquired by the Company were offshore
entitias, for which consideration of £208m was paid.

On 17 December 2007, the Company sold 100% of its shareholdings in James Hay, Cater Allen and Abbey
Sharedealing to Santander Private Banking UK Limited, at the time of the transaction a 100% owned direct subsidiary of the
Company, for a total cash consideration of £414m. The companies sold were Cater Allen Limited, Abbey Stockbrokers Limited,
Abbey Stockbrokers (Nominees) Limited, James Hay Holdings Limited, James Hay Wrap Managers Limited, James Hay Insurance
Company Limited, James Hay Administration Company Limited, James Hay Pension Trustees Limited and Sarum Trustees Limited.
Subsequently, on 17 December 2007, the Company sold 49% of its shareholding in Santander Private Banking UK Limited to
Santander PB UK (Holdings) Limited, a direct subsidiary of Banco Santander, s A. for a total cash consideration of £203m.

The principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December 2009 are shown below. The Directors consider that to give
full particulars of all subsidiary undertakings would lead to a statement of excessive length. In accordance with Section 410(2) of
the UK Companies Act 2006, the following information relates to those subsidiary undertakings whose results or financial
position, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results of the Group. Full particulars of all subsidiary undertakings
will be annexed to the Company's next annual return in accordance with Section 410(3)(b) of the UK Companies Act 2006.

Principal subsidiary Nature of business o Interest held  Country of incorporation or registration
Abkey National International Limited* Personal finance 100 Jersey
Abbey National North America LLC* Funding 100 United States
Abbizy National Treasury Services plc Treasury operations 100 England & Wales
Alliance & Leicester plc Bank, deposit taker 100 England & Wales
alliance & Leicester International Limited™ Offshore deposit taking 100 Isle of Man
sradford & Bingley International Limited Bank, deposit taker 100 Isle of Man
< ater Allen International Limited™ Securities financing 100 England & Wales
Cater Allen Limited* Bank, deposit taker 51 England & Wales

~Held indirectly through subsidiary companies.
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All the above companies are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company holds directly or indirectly 100%
of the issued ordinary share capital of its principal subsidiaries, except for Cater Allen Limited as described above. All companies
operate principally in their country of incorporation or registration. Abbey National Treasury Services plc also has a branch office
in the US and the Cayman Islands. The Company has a branch in the Isle of Man. Alliance & Leicester plc has a branch in the Isle
of Man. The ability of Alliance & Leicester International Limited to pay dividends to the Company is restricted by regulatory

capital requirements. Abbey National International Limited had a branch in the Isle of Man, which was closed on 1 April 2010.

21. Investment in associated undertakings

The movement in interests in associated undertakings was as follows:

Group Company
£m £m
At 1 Jan.aary 2009 35 741
Additior al investment 35 35
Share of results 5 -
Transfer to investment in subsidiary - (700)
At 31 Dacember 2009 75 76
Group Company
£m £m
At 1 January 2008 29 33
Additional investments 8 708
Share of results (2) -
At 31 December 2008 35 741
The principal associated undertakings at 31 December 2009 and 2008 were:
2009
Country of Assets  Liabilities Income  Profit/(loss) % interest
Name and nature of business registration £m £m £m £m held
PS4 Firance plc, personal finance England and Wales 3 - - - 50.0
Sartar-der Consumer (UK) plc, consumer finance England and Wales 2,361 (2,215) (134) 123 49.9
2008
Country of Assets Liabilities Income ProfitAloss) % interest
Name and nature of business registration £m fm £m £m held
PSA Finance plc, personal finance England and Wales 4 - 1 1 50.0
Santander Consumer (UK) plc, consumer finance England and Wales 714 (647) 73 (2) 459
All associated undertakings have a year-end of 31 December and are unlisted.
22. Intangible assets
a) Goodwill
Group Company _
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m fm
Cost
At 1 January 1,281 112 419 -
Acquisitions 4 1,169 - 419
At 31 December 1,285 1,281 419 419
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January and 31 December 22 22 - -
Net book value 1,263 1,259 419 419

on 9 January 2009, in order to optimise the capital, liquidity funding and overall financial efficiency of the Santander group,
8anco Santander, S.A. transferred all of its Alliance & Leicester plc (wholly owned by Banco Santander, S.A. and the Company)
shares to the Company in exchange for 12,631,375,230 newly issued ordinary shares in the Company (the ‘Transfer). The result
of this was to increase the Company’s holding of 35.6% of Alliance & Leicester plc's equity voting interests to 100%.
Accordingly, the Company is now the immediate parent company of Alliance & Leicester plc. As described more fully in Note 47,
the transfer of Alliance & Leicester pic has been accounted for by the Company with effect from 10 October 2008, the date on
which Banco Santander, S.A. acquired control of Alliance & Leicester plc.
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The ordinary shares of the Company issued as consideration for Banco santander, S.A.'s holding of Alliance & Leicester plc shares
have been recognised at their nominal value, which is the same as the fair value of the shares issued by Banco Santander, S.A. in
exchange for the shares of Alliance & Leicester plc plus acquisition costs, and the net assets of Alliance & Leicester pic have been
accounted for by the Company at the fair values recognised by Banco santander, S.A. at the time of its acquisition of Alliance &
Leicester plc on 10 October 2008. The acquisition price was £1,281m. In connection with the acquisition, goodwill of £774m
was recognised, which is attributable to the anticipated increase in revenues arising from a strengthened market position and
greater critical mass, and the anticipated future operating cost synergies arising from the elimination of duplicated back office
and support functions. Adjustments to the value of goodwill arising from the final allocation of the aggregate purchase price as
at the acquisition date are set out in Note 48.

In September 2008, following the announcement by HM Treasury to take Bradford & Bingley plc into public ownership,
the retail deposits, branch network and its related employees transferred, under the provisions of the Banking (Special Provisions)
Act 2008, to the Company. All of Bradford & Bingley plc's customer loans and treasury assets, which include all its mortgage
assets, were taken under public ownership. The transfer to the Company consisted of the £20.0bn retail deposit base with 2.7
million customers, as well as Bradford & Bingley plic's direct channels including 197 retail branches, 141 agencies (distribution
outlets in third party premises) and related employees. The acquisition price was £612m, including the transfer of £208m of
capital from Bradford & Bingley plc relating to offshore entities. In connection with the acquisition, goodwill of £395m was
recognised at a Group level, which is attributable to the anticipated increase in revenues arising from a strengthened market
position and greater critical mass, and the anticipated future operating cost synergies arising from the elimination of duplicated
back office and support functions. Adjustments to the value of goodwill arising from the finalisation of the allocation of the
aggregate purchase price as at the acquisition date are set out in Note 48.

Prior to their acquisition by the Company, the retail deposits, branch network and related employees of Bradford &
Bingley plc were not managed or reported on a stand-alone basis. As a result, it is not practicable to prepare separate combined
financial information for this business and the Group for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2008 as though the acquisition date for
the business combination had been 1 January 2008.

impairment of goodwill
During the year there was no impairment of goodwill (2008: £nil, 2007: £nil). Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is
performed annually, more frequently if there are impairment indicators present, and comprises a comparison of the carrying
amourit of the cash-generating unit with its recoverable amount: the higher of the cash-generating unit’s net selling price and its
value n use. Net selling price is calculated by reference to the amount at which the asset could be disposed of in a binding sale
agreement in an arm'’s length transaction evidenced by an active market or recent transactions for similar assets. Value in use is
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows obtainable as a result of the asset’s continued use, including those
resulting from its ultimate disposal, at a market based discount rate on a pre-tax basis.

The following cash-generating units include in their carrying values goodwill that comprises the goodwill reported by
the Group. The cash-generating unit does not carry on its balance sheet any other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

2009 2008 Key Discount  Growth
Business Division  Cash Generating Unit £m fm Basis of valuation assumptions rate rate
Retail Banking Alliance & Leicester 774 774 Value in use: cash flow 3 year plan 10.1% 10%
Retail Banking Cater Allen Private Bank 90 90 Value in use: cash flow 3 year plan 10.1% 10%
Retail Banking Bradford & Bingley savings business 395 395 Value in use: cash flow 3 year plan 10.1% 5%
b) Other intangibles
Group Company
2009 2009
£m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2009 95 72
Additions 120 82
Cisposals (3) (3)
21 3" December 2009 212 151
Accumulated amortisation / impairment
At 1 January 2009 7 7
Charge for the year 22 1
At =1 December 2009 29 18
Net book value 183 133
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Group Company
2008 2008
fm £m
Cost
At 1 January 2008 - -
Additions 81 68
Acquired through business combinations 21 4
Disposals 7
At 31 December 2008 95 72
Accumulated amortisation / impairment
At 1 January 2008 - -
Charge for the year 7 7
At 31 December 2008 7 7
Net book value 28 65
Other intangible assets of the Group and the Company consist of computer software.
23. Property, plant and equipment (excluding operating lease assets)
Group
Owner-occupied Office fixtures Computer
properties and equipment software Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost:
At 1 Jaruary 2009 340 570 385 1,295
Add.tions 126 120 16 262
Disposals 1) (51) (14) (66)
At 31 Cecember 2009 465 639 387 1,491
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2009 24 312 105 a4
Charge for the year 21 81 61 163
Disposals - (51) - (51)
At 31 [ecember 2009 45 342 166 553
Net book value 420 297 221 938
Group
Owner-occupied Office fixtures Computer
properties and equipment software Total
£m fm £m fm
Cost:
At 1 January 2008 74 479 359 912
Acguired through business combinations 257 60 - 317
Aaditions 11 59 39 109
Disposals (2) (28) (13) (43)
At 31 December 2008 340 570 385 1,295
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 lanuary 2008 18 283 83 384
Charge for the year 7 49 22 78
Dispcsals (1) (20) - (21)
Al 31 December 2008 24 312 105 441
Net book value 316 258 280 854
Company
Owner-occupied Office fixtures Computer
properties and equipment software Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost:
At 1 lanuary 2009 112 498 315 925
Additions 1 101 15 127
Disposals - 2) (15) 17)
At 31 December 2009 123 597 315 1,035
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2009 22 299 35 356
Charge for the year 8 52 60 120
Disposals - (2) - (2)
At 31 December 2009 30 349 95 474
Net book value 93 248 220 561
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Company
Owner-occupied Office fixtures Computer
properties and equipment software Total
fm fm fm fm
Cost:
At 1 January 2008 68 453 279 800
Acquired through business combinations 34 10 - 44
Additions 11 56 39 106
Disposals (1) (21) (3) (25)
At 31 December 2008 112 498 315 925
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2008 15 271 13 299
Charge for the year 7 45 22 74
Disposals - (17) - (17)
At 31 December 2008 22 299 35 356
Net book value 90 199 280 569

At 31 December 2009, capital expenditure contracted, but not provided for was £1m (2008: £3m, 2007: £nil) in respect of
property, plant and equipment. Of the carrying value at the balance sheet date £99m (2008: £107m) related to assets under
construction.

The cost of office fixtures and equipment held under finance leases was £26m (2008: £26m). At the balance sheet

date, the Group had contracted with lessees for the following future minimum lease payments in leases relating to freehold
properties:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Leases which expire fm £m £m £m
Within 1 year 1 - 1 -
Between 1-5 years 2 3 1 2
in more than 5 years 3 5 3 5
6 8 5 7
24. Operating lease assets
Group
2009 2008
£m £m
Cost
At 1 January 348 3,474
Additions 81 88
Acquired through business combinations - 348
Disposals (101) -
Disposals of subsidiary undertaking - (3,562)
At 31 December 328 348
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 January - 1,310
Charge for the year 75 117
Disposals (59) -
Disposals of subsidiary undertaking - (1,427)
At 31 December 16 -
Net book value 312 348

The operating lease assets of the Group consist of commercial vehicles. The Group’s trains and related assets were sold in 2008
as described in Note 41. The Company has no operating lease assets.
Future minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases are due over the following periods:

Group

2009 2008

£m fm

in no more than 1 year 72 81
in mota than 1 year but no more than 5 years 99 133
in more than 5 years 26 17
197 231
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25. Deferred tax

Deferred taxes are calculated on temporary differences under the liability method using the tax rates expected to apply when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised. The movement on the deferred tax account was as follows:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 869 12t 452 614
income statement credit/(charge) (438) (122) (149) (174)
Credited/ charged) to equity 172 8 116 12
Acquired through business combinations 7 416 9 -
Disposal cf subsidiary undertaking - 446 - -
At 31 December 610 869 428 452
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items:
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m £m
Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated tax depreciation (236) (193) - -
Other termnporary differences (100 (212) - (6)
(336 (405) - (6)
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m £m
Deferred tax assets
Pensions and other post retirement benefits 306 244 264 224
Accelerarad book depreciation 178 271 55 66
IAS 32 & IAS 39 transitional adjustments 78 95 72 76
Provision for loan impairment and other provisions 13 22 - -
Other temporary differences 74 228 37 46
Tax losses carried forward 297 414 - 46
946 1,274 428 458
The aggregate current and deferred tax relating to items charged or credited to equity is:
Group Company
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
£m fm fm £m £m £m
Pensions and other post retirement benefits 119 291 300 173 289 301

The defarred tax assets scheduled above have been recognised in both the Company and the Group on the basis that sufficient
future taxable profits are forecast within the foreseeable future, in excess of the profits arising from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, to allow for the utilisation of the assets as they reverse. Under current UK tax legislation, the tax
losses in respect of which deferred tax assets have been recognised do not expire. The benefit of the tax losses carried forward
in the Company may only be realised by utilisation against the future taxable profits of the Company.

The deferred tax charge in the income statement comprises the following temporary differences:

Group

2009 2008 2007

£m £m fm

Accelerated tax depreciation {(133) 24 1
Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (104) (63) 4
Provision for loan impairment and other provisions - - -
IAS 32 & IAS 39 transition adjustments (11) (20) (23)
Tax losses carried forward (63) (100) (48)
Other temporary differences (127) 37 (14)
(438) (122) (88)
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Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m fm
Trade and other receivables 881 1,061 515 831
Prepayments 75 122 48 47
Accrued ncome 30 30 - -
General insurance assets 88 109 88 109
1,074 1,322 651 987
27. Deposits by banks
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m fm
fterms in the course of transmission 652 1,100 570 895
Sale and repurchase agreements - 8,816 - 3,620
Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 115,564 120,285
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 1,846 1,443 20 -
Amounts due to ultimate parent 644 667 29 -
Other deposits 2,669 2,462 231 46
5,811 14,488 116,414 124,846
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m fm
Repayable:
On demand 3,716 2,375 3,333 2,907
In no” mare than 3 months 1,916 8,519 23,732 17,600
In mcre *nan 3 months but not more than 1 year 24 661 10,203 18,575
In mcre “han 1 year but not more than 5 years 155 2,933 71,927 53,245
In mcre “han 5 years - - 7,219 32,519
5,811 14,488 116,414 124,846
28. Deposits by customers
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m fm
Retail deposits 127,992 120,483 89,436 85,150
Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 64,531 67,801
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 473 - 79 -
Wholesale deposits by customers 15,428 9,762 5,141 2,515
143,893 130,245 159,187 155,466
Repayable:
On demand 105,157 102,170 77,240 67,856
In no more than 3 months 7,046 9,202 15,611 14,204
In more than 3 months but no more than 1 year 18,059 14,982 12,028 13,506
In more than 1 year but not more than 5 years 13,017 3,165 13,029 8,804
In more than 5 years 614 726 41,279 51,096
143,893 130,245 159,187 155,466
Retail deposits and wholesale deposits by customers are interest-bearing.
29. Trading liabilities
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m fm
Deposits by banks 40,824 34,341 - -
Deposits by customers 4,115 4,622 - -
Short positions in securities and unsettled trades 1,071 751 - 739
Debt securities in issue 142 1,024 - -
46,152 40,738 - 739

The total fair value of equity index-linked deposits included above at the balance sheet date was £2,144m (2008: £2,205m).
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30. Financial liabilities designated at fair value

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

fm fm £m £m

Deposits by banks 45 153 - -
Deposits by customers 12 252 - -
Debt securities in issue - US$4bn Euro Commercial Paper Programme 662 - - -
- US$20bn Euro Medium Term Note Programme 3,577 4,274 - -

- Other bonds 127 994 - -

4,423 5,673 - -

Financial liabilities are designated at fair value through profit or loss where this results in more relevant information because it
significantly reduces a measurement inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets and liabilities or recognising
the gains or losses on them on a different basis. The "fair value option’ has been used where deposits by banks, deposits by
customers and debt securities in issue would otherwise be measured at amortised cost, and the associated derivatives used to
economically hedge the risk are held at fair value.

Of the movements in the fair value of the above debt securities in issue £27m (2008: £88m) result from changes in the
Group’s own credit risk. This was calculated by applying current spreads at the next call date or maturity date to the nominal
value of the debt security to determine the extra cost of the debt for the remaining period of the debt security were it to have
been issued at current spreads.

The amount that would be required to be contractually paid at maturity of the deposits by banks, deposits by
customers, and debt securities in issue above is £129m (2008: £53m) higher than the carrying value.

US$4bn Euro Commercial Paper Programme
Abbey National Treasury Services plc may from time to time issue the commercial paper under the US$4bn Euro Commercial
Paper Programme that may be denominated in any currency as agreed between Abbey National Treasury Services plc and the
relevant dealer. The Notes rank at least pari passu with all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of Abbey National
Treasury Services plc. The payments of all amounts due in respect of the Notes have been unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by the Company.

The Notes are issued in bearer form, subject to a minimum maturity of 1 day and a maximum maturity of 364 days. The
Notes may be issued on a discounted basis or may bear fixed or floating rate interest or a coupon calculated by reference to an
index or formula. The maximum aggregate nominal amount of all Notes outstanding from time to time under the Programme
will not exceed US$4bn (or its equivalent in other currencies). The Notes are not listed on any stock exchange.

US$20bn Euro Medium Term Note Programme

Abbey National Treasury Services plc and the Company may from time to time issue notes denominated in any currency as
agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant dealer under the US$20bn Euro Medium Term Note Programme. The
pavment of all amounts payable in respect of the Senior Notes is unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Company.
The Programme provides for issuance of Fixed Rate Notes, Floating Rate Notes, Index Linked Notes, Credit Linked Notes, Equity
Linkec Notes and any other structured Notes, and also Dual Currency Notes, Zero Coupon/Discount Notes and Non-interest
Bearing Notes.

The maximum aggregate nominal amount of all Notes outstanding under the Programme may not exceed US$20bn (or
its equivalent in other currencies) subject to any modifications in accordance with the terms of the Programme agreement. Notes
may oe issued in bearer or registered form and can be listed on the London Stock Exchange or any other or further stock
exchange(s) or may be unlisted, as agreed.

31. Debt securities in issue

Group
2009 2008
£m £m

Bonds and medium term notes:
- Furo 25bn Global Covered Bond Programme 5,268 3,963
- Furo 10bn Global Covered Bond Programme - 2,800
. 1JS$20bn euro Medium Term Note Programme (see Note 30) 1,566 3,313
- US$40bn euro Medium Term Note Programme 5,876 9,683
- US$20bn Commercial Paper Programme 6,366 4,234
- fure 2bn structured notes 600 -
- Certificates of deposit in issue 9,188 9,214
28,864 33,207

Securitisation programmes:

- Holmes 14,704 20,269
- fosse 4,103 4,331
Cther debt securities in issue 87 704
47,758 58,511
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The Company did not have any outstanding debt securities in issue as at 31 December 2008 and 2009.

Euro 25bn Global Covered Bond Programme

Abbey National Treasury Services plc issues the Covered Bonds under the euro 25bn Global Covered Bond Programme that may
be denominated in any currency as agreed between Abbey National Treasury Services plc and the relevant dealers under the
Programme. The Programme provides that Covered Bonds may be listed or admitted to trading, on the official list of the UK
Listing Authority and on the London Stock Exchange's Regulated Market or any other stock exchanges or regulated or
unregulated markets. Abbey National Treasury Services plc may also issue unlisted Covered Bonds and/or Covered Bonds not
admitted to trading on any regulated or unregulated market.

The payments of all amounts due in respect of the Covered Bonds have been unconditionally guaranteed by the
Company. Abbey Covered Bonds LLP (“"LLP"), together with the Company have guaranteed payments of interest and principal
under the Covered Bonds pursuant to a guarantee which is secured over its portfolio of mortgages and its other assets. Recourse
against the LLP under its guarantee is limited to its portfolio of mortgages and such assets.

Covered Bonds may be issued in bearer or registered form. The maximum aggregate nominal amount of all Covered
Bonds from time to time outstanding under the Programme will not exceed euro 25bn (or its equivalent in other currencies),
subject to increase in accordance with the Programme.

On 2 July 2008, the size of the global covered bond programme established in 2005 was increased from euro 12bn to
euro 25bn. On 8 July 2008, the Group issued a series of Covered Bonds totalling approximately £13bn. All notes were
denominated in sterling and were subscribed for by the Company.

On 11 November 2008, Abbey National Treasury Services plc was admitted to the register of issuers and the
Programme and the Covered Bonds issued previously under the Programme were admitted to the register of regulated covered
bonds, pursuant to Regulation 14 of the Regulated Covered Bonds Regulations 2008 (SI 2008/346).

Euro 10bn Global Covered Bond Programme

Alliance & Leicester plc previously issued certain Covered Bonds under the euro 10bn Global Covered Bond Programme. On 17
November 2009, the outstanding Covered Bonds issued under the Programme were redeemed and the Programme was
discontirued.

The Programme provided that Covered Bonds may be listed or admitted to trading, on the official fist of the UK Listing
Authority and on the London Stock Exchange's Regulated Market or any other stock exchanges or regulated or unregulated
markets The Programme also provided for the issue of unlisted Covered Bonds and/or Covered Bonds not admitted to trading on
any regulated or unregulated market.

Alliance & Leicester Covered Bonds LLP (“LLP") guaranteed payments of interest and principal under the Covered Bonds
pursuant to a guarantee which was secured over its portfolio of mortgages and its other assets. Recourse against LLP under its
guarantee was limited to its portfolio of mortgages and such assets.

US$40bn Euro Medium Term Note Programme
In January 2009, it was decided that no further issuance would be made under the US$40bn Euro Medium Term Note
Programme. Outstanding notes will remain in issue until maturity.

Alliance & Leicester plc issued both senior notes and subordinated notes and from time to time issued notes
denominated in any currency as agreed with the relevant dealer under the US$40bn Euro Medium Term Notes Programme. The
notes are direct, unsecured and unconditional obligations of Alliance & Leicester plc. The Programme provided for issuance of
Fixed Rate Notes, Floating Rate Notes, Index Linked Notes, Dual Currency Notes and Zero-Coupon Notes. The notes are listed on
the London Stock Exchange or may be listed on any other or further stock exchange(s) or may be unlisted, as agreed.

The notes were issued in bearer form. The maximum aggregate nominal amount of all notes from time to time
outstanding under the Programme did not exceed US$40bn (or its equivalent in other currencies), subject to any modifications in
accordance with the terms of the Programme agreement.

US$20bn Commercial Paper Programme
Abbey National North America LLC may from time to time issue unsecured notes denominated in United States dollars as agreed
between Abbey National North America LLC and the relevant dealers under the US$20bn US commercial paper programme. The
Notes will rank at least pari passu with all other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness of Abbey National North America
LLC and the Company. The payments of all amounts due in respect of the Notes have been unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by the Company.

The Notes are not redeemable prior to maturity or subject to voluntary prepayment. The maximum aggregate nominal
amcunt of all Notes from time to time outstanding under the Programme will not exceed US$20bn (or its equivalent in other
currences).

Euro 2bn structured notes

Abbey National Treasury Services plc may from time to time issue structured notes denominated in any currency as agreed
between Abbey National Treasury Services plc and the relevant dealersunder the euro 2bn structured note
programme. Structured notes are direct, unsecured and unconditional obligations of Abbey National Treasury Services plc that
rank pari passu without preference among themselves and, subject as to any applicable statutory provisions or judicial order, at
least equally with al! other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of Abbey National Treasury Services
plc. The payments of alf amounts due in respect of the structured notes have been unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed
by the Company.
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The structured note programme provides for the issuance of Commodity Linked Notes, Credit Linked Notes, Currency Linked
Notes, Equity Linked Notes, Equity Index Linked Notes, Fixed Rate Notes, Floating Rate Notes, Fund Linked Notes, inflation Linked
Notes, Property Linked Notes, Zero Coupon/Discount Notes and any other structured notes as agreed between Abbey National
Treasury Services plc and the relevant dealers. Structured notes may be issued in bearer or registered (or inscribed) form and may
be listed on the London Stock Exchange or any other or further stock exchange(s) or may be unlisted, as agreed between Abbey
National Treasury Services plc and the relevant dealers. Structured notes issued in bearer form may also be issued in new global
note form

The maximum aggregate nominal amount of all structured notes from time to time outstanding under the Programme
will not exceed euro 2bn (or its equivalent in other currencies).

Securitisation Programmes

The Group has provided prime retail mortgage-backed securitised products to a diverse investor base through its mortgage
backed funding programmes, as described in Note 17, Funding has historically been raised via mortgage-backed notes, both
issued to third parties and retained (the latter being central bank eligible collateral, both via the Bank of England's Special

Liquidity Scheme facility and for contingent funding purposes in other Bank of England, European Central Bank, Swiss National
Bank and US Federal Reserve facilities).

An anaiysis of the above debt securities in issue by issue currency is as follows:

Group

2009 2008

Issue currency Interest rate Maturity £m £m
Euro 0.00% - 3.99% Up to 2010 2,452 4,818
2011 - 2019 5415 3,898

2020 - 2029 1,600 -

2040 - 2059 3,976 -

4.00% - 4.99% Up to 2010 - 525

2011 - 2019 - 193

2020 - 2029 1,362 1,469

5.00% - 7.99% Up to 2010 276 406

2011 - 2029 - 2,982

2030 - 2039 - 2,722

2040 - 2059 - 2,105

Us doltar 0.00% - 3.99% Up to 2010 14,676 9,184
2011 -2019 618 95

2020 - 2029 3,841 -

2030 - 2039 556 -

2040 - 2059 3,194 -

4.00% - 5.99% Up to 2010 20 985

2011 - 2019 49 743

2020 - 2029 - 4,340

2030 - 2039 - 4916

2040 - 2059 - 1,650

7.00% - 8.99% Up to 2010 - 221

Pouncs sterling 0.00% - 3.99% Up to 2010 963 3,930
2011 -2019 1,643 1.411

2020 - 2029 838 -

2040 - 2059 3,739 -

5.00% - 5.99% Up to 2010 155 2,485

2011 - 2019 815 18

6.00% - 6.99% Up to 2010 a71 1,407

2011 - 2019 351 976

2020 - 2029 - 856

20302039 - 3,460

2040 - 2060 - 1,388

7.00% - 8.99% 2011 - 2040 - 73

Other currencies 0.00% - 5.99% Up to 2010 337 852
2011 - 2019 a7 40

2020 - 2029 352 337

6.00% - 6.87% 2011-2019 12 1"

20112040 - 15

47,758 58,511
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32. Other borrowed funds

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £m £m fm

£300m Step Up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments - 356 - 356
£175m Frced/Floating Rate Tier One Preferred Income Capital Securities 195 205 195 205
Us$1.000m Non-Cumulative Trust Preferred Securities 813 1,171 - -
£325m sterling Preference Shares 344 344 344 344
1,352 2,076 539 905

During the year the £300m Step Up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments were reclassified to equity as described in
Note 39.

£175m Fixed/Floating Rate Tier One Preferred Income Capital Securities

The Tier One Preferred Income Capital Securities were issued on 9 August 2002 by the Company. The Tier One Preferred Income
Capital Securities are redeemable by the Company in whole but not in part on 9 February 2018 or on any coupon payment date
thereafter, subject to the prior approval of the UK Financial Services Authority. The Tier One Preferred Income Capital Securities
bear interest at a rate of 6.984% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. From (and including) 9 February 2018, the Tier
One Preferred Income Capital Securities will bear interest, at a rate reset semi-annually of 1.86% per annum above the six-month
sterling LIBOR rate, payable semi-annually in arrears. Interest payments may be deferred in limited circumstances, such as when
the payment would cause the Company to become insolvent or breach applicable Capital Regulations.

The Tier One Preferred Income Capital Securities are not redeemable at the option of the holders and the holders do
not have any rights against other Group companies, Where interest payments have been deferred, the Company may not declare
or pay dividends on or redeem or repurchase any junior securities until it next makes a scheduled payment on the Tier One
Preferred Income Capital Securities and the Reserve Capital Instruments,

The Tier One Preferred Income Capital Securities are unsecured securities of the Company and are subordinated to the
claims of unsubordinated creditors and subordinated creditors holding loan capital of the Company. Upon the winding up of the
Company, holders of Tier One preferred Income Capital Securities will rank pari passu with the holders of the most senior class of
classes of preference shares (if any) of the Company then in issue and in priority to all other Company shareholders.

US$1,000m Non-Cumulative Trust Preferred Securities

Abbeyv National Capital Trust | and Abbey National Capital LP | are 100% owned finance subsidiaries of the Company. On 7
February 2000, Abbey National Capital Trust | issued US$1bn of 8.963% Non-cumulative Trust Preferred Securities, which have
peen registered under the US Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Abbey National Capital Trust | serves solely as a passive vehicle
holdirg the partnership preferred securities issued by Abbey National Capital LP | and each has passed all the rights relating to
such partnership preferred securities to the holders of trust preferred securities issued by Abbey National Capital Trust |. All of the
trust preferred securities and the partnership preferred securities have been fully and unconditionally guaranteed on a
subordinated basis by the Company. The terms of the securities do not include any significant restrictions on the ability of the
Company to obtain funds, by dividend or loan, from any subsidiary. After 30 June 2030, the distribution rate on the preferred
secur ties will be 2.825% per annum above the three-month US dollar LIBOR rate for the relevant distribution period.

The trust preferred securities are not redeemable at the option of the holders and the holders do not have any rights
against other Group companies. The partnership preferred securities may be redeemed by the partnership, in whole or in part, on
30 June 2030 and on each distribution payment date thereafter. Redemption by the partnership of the partnership preferred
securities may also occur in the event of a tax or regulatory change. Generally, holders of the preferred securities will have no
voting rights.

Upon the return of capital or distribution of assets in the event of the winding up of the partnership, holders of the
partnership preferred securities will be entitled to receive, for each partnership preferred security, a liquidation preference of US
$1,000, together with any due and accrued distributions and any additional amounts, out of the assets of the partnership
avaiiable for distribution.

£325m sterling Preference Shares

Size of shareholding Shareholders Preference shares of £1 each
*-100 1 100
©01-1,000 52 38,160
©,001+ 1,908 324,961,740

1,961 325,000,000

Holders of sterling preference shares are entitled to receive a biannual non-cumulative preferential dividend payable in sterling
sut of the distributable profits of the Company. The rate per annum will ensure that the sum of the dividend payable on such
date and the associated tax credit (as defined in the terms of the sterling preference shares) represents an annual rate of 8 5/8%
per annum of the nominal amount of shares issued in 1997, and an annual rate of 10 3/8% for shares issued in 1995 and 1996.
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On a return of capital or on a distribution of assets on a winding up, the sterling preference shares shall rank pari passu with any
other shares that are expressed to rank pari passu therewith as regards participation in assets, and otherwise in priority to any
other share capital of the Company. On such a return of capital or winding up, each sterling preference share shall, out of the
surplus assets of the Company available for distribution amongst the members after payment of the Company's liabilities, carry
the right to receive an amount equal to the amount paid up or credited as paid together with any premium paid on issue and the
full amount of any dividend otherwise due for payment. Other than as set out above, no sterling preference share confers any
right to participate on a return of capital or a distribution of assets of the Company.

Holders of the sterling preference shares are not entitled to receive notice of or attend, speak and vote at general
meet:ngs of the Company unless the business of the meeting includes the consideration of a resolution to wind up the Company
or ary resolution varying, altering or abrogating any of the rights, privileges, limitations or restrictions attached to the sterling
preference shares or if the dividend on the sterling preference shares has not been paid in full for the three consecutive dividend
periods immediately prior to the relevant general meeting. In any such case, the sterling preference shareholders are entitled to
receive "otice of and attend the general meeting at which such resolution is proposed and will be entitled to speak and vote on
such a resolution but not on any other resolution.

33. Subordinated liabilities

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m fm
Dated subordinated liabilities:
5 00% Subordinated bond 2009 (euro 511m) - 515 - 515
4.625% Subordinated notes 2011 (euro 500m) 478 515 478 515
10.125% Subordinated guaranteed bond 2023 220 231 - -
11.50% Subordinated guaranteed bond 2017 226 238 - -
11.59% Subordinated loan stock 2017 - - 226 221
10.18% Subordinated loan stock 2023 - - 220 217
7 57% Subordinated notes 2029 (US$1,000m) 805 1,141 805 1,142
6.50% Subordinated notes 2030 174 194 174 194
8 9% Subordinated notes 2030 (US$1,000m) - - 813 1,170
5.259% Subordinated notes 2015 210 215 210 215
Subordinated floating rate EURIBOR notes 2015 445 485 445 485
Subordinated floating rate EURIBOR notes 2016 - - 65 65
5 875% Subordinated notes 2031 80 97 - -
5.25% Subordinated notes 2023 119 122 - -
Suborcnated floating rate EURIBOR notes 2017 134 145 - -
sutorcinated floating rate US$ LIBOR notes 2015 92 102 -
Subordinated fioating rate EURIBOR notes 2017 88 97 -
9.625% Subordinated notes 2023 382 399 - -
3,453 4,496 3,436 4,739
Undated subordinated liabilities:
10 0625% Exchangeable subordinated capital securities 204 204 204 204
5.£6% Subordinated guaranteed notes (Yen 15,000m) 123 143 123 143
5 £0% Subordinated guaranteed notes (Yen 5,000m) 41 47 41 47
Fixed/Floating rate subordinated notes (Yen 5,000m) 39 45 39 45
7 50% 10 Year step-up perpetual subordinated notes 344 354 344 354
7 509 15 Year step-up perpetual subordinated notes 497 514 497 514
7.38% 20 Year step-up perpetual subordinated notes 209 223 209 223
7 13% 30 Year step-up perpetual subordinated notes 31 348 EX b 348
7.13% Fixed to floating rate perpetual subordinated notes 376 413 376 413
2,144 2,291 2,144 2,291
Total subordinated liabilities 5,597 6,787 5,580 7,030

The subordinated floating rate notes pay a rate of interest related to the LIBOR of the currency of denomination.

The 10.0625% exchangeable subordinated capital securities are exchangeable into fully paid 10.375% non-cumulative
non-redeemable sterling preference shares of £1 each, at the option of the Company. Exchange may take place on any interest
payment date providing that between 30 and 60 days notice has been given 1o the holders. The holders will receive one new
sterling preference share for each £1 principal amount of capital securities held. Note 32 details the rights attaching to these
shares, as they are the same.

The 5.56% Subordinated guaranteed notes are redeemable at par, at the option of the Company, on 31 January 2015
and each fifth anniversary thereafter.

The 5.50% Subordinated guaranteed notes are redeemable at par, at the option of the Company, on 27 June 2015
and each fifth anniversary thereafter.

The Fixed/Floating rate subordinated notes are redeemable at par, at the option of the Company, on 27 December
5016 and each interest payment date anniversary thereafter.

The 7.50% 10 Year step-up perpetual subordinated notes are redeemable at par, at the option of the Company, on 28
September 2010 and each fifth anniversary thereafter.
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The 7.50% 15 Year step-up perpetual subordinated notes are redeemable at par, at the option of the Company, on 28
September 2015 and each fifth anniversary thereafter.

The 7.38% 20 Year step-up perpetual subordinated notes are redeemable at par, at the option of the Company, on 28
September 2020 and each fifth anniversary thereafter.

The 7.13% 30 Year step-up perpetual subordinated notes are redeemable at par, at the option of the Company, on 30
September 2030 and each fifth anniversary thereafter.

The 7.13% Fixed to Floating rate perpetual subordinated notes are redeemable at par, at the option of the Company,
on 28 September 2010 and each fifth anniversary thereafter.

In common with other debt securities issued by Group companies, the subordinated liabilities are redeemable in whole
at the option of the Company, on any interest payment date, in the event of certain tax changes affecting the treatment of
payments of interest on the subordinated liabilities in the UK, at their principal amount together with any accrued interest.

In 2009, the 5.00% subordinated bonds 2009 {euro 511m) were redeemed in full.

subordinated liabilities including convertible debt securities in issue are repayable:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m £fm
In no more than 3 months - 515 - 515
In more than 3 months but no more than 1 year - - - -
In more than 1 year but no more than 5 years 478 515 478 515
in morsa than 5 years 2,975 3,466 2,958 3,709
Undated 2,144 2,291 2,144 2,291
5,597 6,787 5,580 7,030
34. Other liabilities
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £fm £m fm
Trade and other payables 2,263 2,303 1,611 1,283
Deferred income 60 39 - -
2,323 2,342 1,611 1,283

Trade and other payables include £37m (2008: £40m) of finance lease obligations mainly relating to a lease and leaseback of
Group property.
The maturity of net obligations under finance leases are as follows:

Group

2009 2008
Leases which expire £m £m
Within 1 year 5 4
Between 1-5 years 20 21
in more than 5 years 12 15
37 40

Future minimum lease payments are:
Group
2009 2008
Leases which expire £m £m
Within 1 year 7 6
Between 1-5 years 25 27
In more than 5 years 13 17
45 50

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with lessees for the following future minimum lease payments on sub-
leases:

Group

2009 2008

L.eases which expire fm £m
Wthin 1 year - 1
Between 1-5 years - ;

During the year, £3m (2008: £nil) was incurred as a finance lease interest charge.
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35. Provisions

Group

Misselling Other Total

£m £m £m

At 1 Jaruary 2009 141 66 207

Additional provisions 13 46 59

Prov sions released (3) - (3)

Used during the year (108) 81 (189)

Reclassifications - 17 17

At 31 December 2009 43 48 91
To be settled:

Within 12 months 43 a7 90

In more than 12 months - 1 1

43 48 91

Company

Misselling Other Total

fm £m fm

At 1 January 2009 41 58 99

Adaitional provisions 9 35 44

Acquired through business combinations 16 14 30

Provisicns released (3) - (3)

Used during the year (20) (76) (96)

At 31 December 2009 43 31 74
To be settled:

Within 12 months 43 30 73

In more than 12 months - 1 1

43 31 74

Group

Misselling Other Total

£m fm £m

At 1 January 2008 95 36 131

Additional provisions - 58 58

Acquired through business combinations 100 - 100

Provisions released (40) M (41

Disposal of subsidiary undertakings - (2) (2)

Used during the year (14) (25) (39)

At 31 December 2008 141 66 207
To be settled:

Withir 12 months 136 63 199

in more than 12 months 5 3 8

141 66 207

Company

Misselling Other Total

£m fm fm

At 1 lanuary 2008 95 5 100

Additional provisions - 56 56

Provisions released (39) - (39)

Used during the year (14) (4) (18)

At 31 December 2008 42 57 99
To be settled:

With- 12 months 37 57 94

in more than 12 months 5 - 5

42 57 99

Tne charge disclosed in the income statement in respect of provisions for other liabilities and charges of £56m (2008: £17m),
comprises the additional provisions of £59m (2008: £58m), less the provisions released of £3m (2008: £41m) in the table above.

The misselling provision comprises various claims with respect to product misselling. In calculating the misselling
prov sion, management'’s best estimate of the provision was calculated based on conclusions regarding the number of claims that
will be received, of those, the number that will be upheld, and the estimated average settlement per case. Further information
on misselling provisions can be found in ‘Critical Accounting Policies’ within the Accounting Policies on page 122.

Other provisions comprise amounts in respect of litigation and related expenses, restructuring expenses and other post
retirement benefits.
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36. Retirement benefit obligations

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet were as follows:

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m fm £m fm

Assets/(Liabilities)

Funded defined benefit pension scheme 1 4 - -
Funded defined benefit pension scheme (1,048) (796) (922) (797)
Unfunded defined benefit pension scheme (13) 1 - -
Net defined benefit obligation (1,060) (803) (922) (797)
Post-retirement medical benefits (unfunded) (10) (10) - -
Total net liabilities (1,070) (813) (922) (797)

Defined Contribution Pension schemes

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension schemes. The Stakeholder scheme introduced in 2001 was the
principal scheme until 1 December 2009 when the Santander Retirement Plan, an occupational defined contribution scheme was
introduced, into which eligible employees were enrolled automatically. From 1 April 1998, employees of the Alliance & Leicester
group were eligible to join a defined contribution section of the Alliance & Leicester Pension Scheme.

The assets of the schemes are held and administered separately from those of the Company. In the case of the
Stakeholder scheme the assets are held in an independently administered fund, and in the case of the Santander Retirement Plan
and the Alliance & Leicester Pension Scheme, the assets are held in separate trustee-administered funds.

An expense of £20m (2008: £8m, 2007: £7m) was recognised for defined contribution plans in the year, and is included
in staff costs classified within administration expenses in the income Statement. None of this amount was recognised in respect of
kev management personnel for the years ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007.

Defined Benefit Pension schemes

The Group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes. The Abbey National Amalgamated Pension Fund, Abbey
National Group Pension Scheme, Abbey National Associated Bodies Pension Fund, the National & Provincial Building Society
Pensicn Fund, the Scottish Mutual Assurance Staff Pension Scheme, the Scottish Provident institution Staff Pension Fund and the
Alliance & Leicester Pension Scheme are the principal pension schemes within the Group, covering 27% (2008: 38%, 2007: 45%)
of the Group’s employees, and are all funded defined benefit schemes. All are closed schemes, and under the projected unit
method, the current service cost when expressed as a percentage of pensionable salaries will gradually increase over time.

Formal actuarial valuations of the assets and liabilities of the schemes are carried out on a triennial basis (and currently a
biennial basis for the Alliance & Leicester Pension Scheme) by an independent professionally qualified actuary and valued for
accounting purposes at each balance sheet date. The latest formal actuarial valuation was made as at 31 March 2007 for the
Abbey National Amalgamated Pension Fund, Abbey National Group Pension Scheme, Abbey National Associated Bodies Pension
Fund and the National & Provincial Building Society Pension Fund; as at 31 December 2006 for the Scottish Mutual Assurance Staff
Pension Scheme and the Scottish Provident Institution Staff Pension Fund; and as at 31 March 2008 for the Alliance & Leicester
Pension Scheme.

The total amount charged to the income statement, including amounts classified as redundancy costs, was determined as follows:

Group

2009 2008 2007
£m fm fm
Current service cost a4 55 67
Past service cost 50 16 14
Gain on settlements or curtailments - (2) (10)
Expected return on pension scheme assets (285) (237) (194)
Inzerest cost 326 264 220
135 96 97

The ret liability recognised in the balance sheet is determined as follows:

Group

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
£m fm fm fm fm
Present value of defined benefit obligation (6.308) (5,175) (4,581) (4,264) (4,354)
Fair value of plan assets 5,248 4,372 3,602 3,230 2,974
Nt defined benefit obligation (1,060) (803) (979) (1,034) (1,380)
Company
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
fm fm fm fm £m
Present value of defined benefit obligation (4,805) (3,944) (4,559) (4,241) (3,822)
Fair value of plan assets 3,883 3,147 3,577 3,208 2,582
Net defined benefit obligation (922) (797) (982) (1,033) (1,240)
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Movements in the defined benefit obligations during the year were as follows:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m fm
Balance at 1 January (5,175) (4,581) (3,944) (4,559)
Current service cost (44) (55) (26) (42)
Interest cost (326) (264) (249) (262)
Emp-oyee contributions (11) %) (6) 7
Past service cost (50) (16) (35) (16)
Actuarial (lossYgain (935) 818 (723) 793
Actual benefit payments 233 148 178 147
Settlemant/curtailment - 2 - 2
Assumed through business combinations - (1,220) - -
Balance at 31 December (6,308) (5,175) (4,805) (3,944)
Movements in the present value of fair value of scheme assets during the year were as follows:
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m £m
Balance at 1 January 4,372 3,602 3,147 3,577
Expected return on scheme assets 285 237 209 236
Actuarial gain/(loss) on scheme assets 329 (862) 309 (836)
Company contributions paid 484 323 390 310
Employee contributions 1 7 6 7
Actual benefit payments (233) (148) (178) (147)
Acquired through business combinations - 1,213 - -
Balance at 31 December 5,248 4,372 3,883 3,147

The amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for each of the five years indicated were as
foliows:

Group

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£m fm fm fm fm

Acuarial (gainyloss on scheme assets (329) 862 (33) 9 (282)
Experience (gain)/loss on scheme liabilities (34) 51 80 (25) -
Loss/gain) from changes in actuarial assumptions 969 (869) 66 (203) 436
Actuarial loss/(gain)/ on scheme liabilities 935 (818) 146 (228) 436
Total net actuarial loss/(gain) 606 a4 113 (219) 154
Company

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£m fm £m £m fm

Actuarial (gain)/loss on scheme assets (309) 836 (33) - (242)
Expenence (gain)/loss on scheme liabilities (33) 51 81 (20) 7
Loss/(gain) from changes in actuarial assumptions 756 (844) 68 (160) 387
Actuarial loss/(gain) on scheme liabilities 723 (793) 149 (180) 394
Total net actuarial loss/(gain) 414 43 116 (180) 152

The actual gain/(loss) on scheme assets was £614m (2008; £(625)m, 2007: £227m). Cumulative net actuarial losses of £768m
(20C8: £162m, 2007: £118m) were recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. The Group's pension
schemes did not directly hold any equity securities of the Company or any of its related parties at 31 December 2009, 2008 and
2007. In addition, the Group does not hold insurance policies over the schemes, and has not entered into any significant
transactions with the schemes.
The assets of the funded plans are held independently of the Group's assets in separate trustee administered funds. The
principal duty of the trustees is to act in the best interests of the members of the schemes. Ultimate responsibility for investment
strategy rests with the trustees of the schemes who are required under the Pensions Act 2004 to prepare a statement of
investment principles.
The trustees of the Group's schemes have developed the following investment principles:

> To maintain a portfolio of suitable assets of appropriate quality, suitability and liquidity which will generate income and
capital growth to meet, together with new contributions from members and the employers, the cost of current and future
benefits which the pension scheme provides, as set outin the trust deed and rules.

> To limit the risk of the assets failing to meet the liabilities, over the long-term and on a shorter-term basis as required by
prevailing legisiation.
> To minimise the long-term costs of the pension scheme by maximising the return on the assets whilst having regard to the

objectives shown above.
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Asset allocation strategies were reviewed in 2008 and 2009, and automatic rebalancing to the central benchmark positions was
suspended as a result of the unprecedented volatility in asset markets during this period. Future allocation strategies will be set to
allow for a more dynamic approach. Implementation of these strategies began in 2009 and will continue during 2010 whilst taking
intc account market conditions.

Previously, the statement of investment principles for the main schemes (other than the Alliance & Leicester Pension
Scheme) had set the long-term target allocation of plan assets during 2006-2008 as 48% Equities, 30% Bonds and 22% Gilts. The
statement of investment principles for the Alliance & Leicester Pension Scheme had set the long-term target allocation of plan
assels at 25% Equities, 25% alternative return-seeking assets (including Property), 25% Bonds and 25% Gilts for 2009 and 2008.
Movement towards this long-term target commenced during 2009, and progress will depend upon market conditions.

The categories of assets in the scheme by value and as a percentage of total scheme assets, and the expected rates of
return are as follows:

Group and Company

Expected rate Expected rate

Fair value of scheme assets of return Fair value of scheme assets of return

2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008

£m % % fm % %

UK equities 1,045 20 8.1 911 21 8.2
Overseas equities 1,027 20 8.5 821 19 8.5
Corporate bonds 1,503 29 6.2 1,155 26 57
Government Fixed Interest 686 13 3.9 657 15 4.6
Government Index Linked 664 13 39 616 14 4.4
Property funds 58 1 6.3 64 1 6.4
Cash 177 3 41 24 1 5.3
Other 88 1 8.3 124 3 8.3
5,248 100 6.4 4,372 100 6.7

Other assets consist of asset-backed securities, annuities, funds and derivatives that are used to protect against exchange rate,
inflation and interest rate movements.

The expected return on plan assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying
the current investment policy, as follows:

> Equities Long-term median real rate of return experienced after considering projected movements
in asset indices

> Corporate bonds Gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date, less a margin for default risk

> Government bonds Gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date

> Property funds Average of returns for UK equities and government bonds

> Cash Expected long term bank rate, after considering projected inflation rate

The following tables summarise the fair values at 31 December 2009 and 2008 of the financial asset classes accounted for at fair
value, vy the valuation methodology used by the investment managers of the schemes assets to determine their fair value. The
table also discloses the percentages that the recorded fair values of financial assets represent of the schemes’ total financial assets
that are recorded at fair value.

At 31 December 2009

Category of plan assets Quoted prices in active markets Internal models based on Total
market observable data

£m % £fm % £m %
UK equities 1,045 21 - - 1,045 21
Overseas equities 1,028 20 - - 1,028 20
Corporate bonds 1,503 30 - - 1,503 30
Government Fixed Interest 686 14 - - 686 14
Government Index Linked 663 13 - - 663 13
Other - - 88 2 88 2
Total 4,925 98 88 2 5,013 100
At 31 December 2008
Cateqory of plan assets Quoted prices in active markets Internal models based on market Total

observable data

fm % £m % fm %
UK equities 911 21 - - 91 21
Overseas equities 821 19 - - 821 19
Corporate bonds 1,155 27 - - 1,155 27
Government Fixed Interest 657 15 - - 657 15
Government Index Linked 616 15 - - 616 15
Other - - 124 3 124 3
Tota 4,160 97 124 3 4,284 100
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Plan assets are stated at fair value based upon quoted prices in active markets with the exception of those classified under
“Other” . Assets in the “Other” category comprise investments in absolute return funds and foreign exchange, equity and interest
rate derivatives valued by investment managers by reference to market observable data. Private equity funds were valued by

reference to their latest published accounts whilst the insured annuities were valued by scheme actuaries based on the liabilities
insured

Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Group and Company

2009 2008 2007
% % %
To determine benefit obligations:
- Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.8 6.4 5.8
- General price inflation 34 3.0 35
- General salary increase 34 35 4.0
- Expected rate of pension increase 3.3 3.0 3.5
To determine net periodic benefit cost:
- Diszount rate 6.4 5.8 5.2
- Expected rate of pension increase 3.0 3.5 3.0
- Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.4 6.7 6.1
Medical cost trend rates:
- Ininial rate 5.5 6.0 6.5
- Ultimate rate 4.5 45 4.5
- Year of ultimate rate 2013 2013 2013
Years Years Years
Longevity at 60 for current pensioners, on the valuation date:
- Males 27.6 27.5 27.2
- Females 30.0 29.9 29.8
Longev-y at 60 for future pensioners currently aged 40, on the valuation date:
- Males. 29.7 29.6 29.3
- Fema-as 31.3 31.2 31.1

The rate used to discount the retirement benefit obligation is determined to reflect duration of the liabilities based on the annual
yield at 31 December of the sterling 15+ year AA Corporate Bond iBoxx Index, representing the market yield of high quality
corporate bonds on that date, adjusted to match the terms of the scheme liabilities. The inflation assumption is set based on the
Bank of England projected inflation rates over the duration of scheme liabilities weighted by projected scheme cash flows.

The mortality assumption used in preparation of the valuation was the Continuous Mortality Investigation Table PXA
92MCC 2009 with a future improvement underpin of 1% for males and 0.5% for females. The table above shows that a
participant retiring at age 60 as at 31 December 2009 is assumed to live for, on average, 27.6 years in the case of a male and 30.0
years 1 the case of a female. In practice, there will be variation between individual members but these assumptions are expected
to be appropriate across all participants. It is assumed that younger members will live longer in retirement than those retiring now.
This reflects the expectation that mortality rates will continue to fall over time as medical science and standards of living improve.
To illustrate the degree of improvement assumed the table also shows the life expectancy for members aged 40 now, when they
retre in 20 years time at age 60.

The Group determined its expense measurements above based upon long-term assumptions taking into account target
asset allocations of assets set at the beginning of the year, offset by actual returns during the year. Year-end obligation
measurements are determined by reference to market conditions at the balance sheet date. Assumptions are set in consultation
with third party advisors and in-house expertise.

The following table shows the effect of changes in actuarial assumptions on the principal pension schemes of the Group:

Increase/(decrease)

2009 2008

£m fm

Discount rate Change in pension obligation at year end from a 25 bps increase (345) (263)
Change in 2010 pension cost from a 25 bps increase (6) (6)

General price inflation Change in pension obligation at year end from a 25 bps increase 332 255
Change in 2010 pension cost from a 25 bps increase 21 17

Expected rate of return on plan assets  Change in 2010 pension cost from a 25 bps increase 13 1"
Mortality Change in pension obligation from each additional year of 141 102

longevity assumed

Tre Group currently expects to contribute £128m to its defined benefit pension schemes in 2010.
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The benefits expected to be paid in each of the next five years, and in the aggregate for the five years thereafter are:

Year ending 31 December: fm
2010 248
2011 264
2012 282
2013 301
2014 322
Five years ended 2019 1,975

Participation of Group companies in the principal pension schemes is governed by the Pensions Acts 1995 and 2004. Under the
1995 Pensions Act, a company ceasing to participate in a pension scheme is required under section 75 to pay a deficit reduction
contribution certified by the scheme actuary, of any deficit relating to its employees, assessed on the basis of the cost of securing
accrued benefits with an insurance company unless other arrangements are agreed with the trustees.

As part of revised arrangements relating to the funding of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes, £814m (2008:
£970m! of securities classified as available-for-sale have been pledged during the year to cover the Group's obligations.

Post Retirement Medical Benefit Plans
The Group also operates unfunded post retirement medical benefit plans for certain of its former employees. The post retirement
medica' benefit plans in operation are accounted for in the same manner as defined benefit pension pians.

Formal actuarial valuations of the liabilities of the schemes are carried out on a triennial basis by an independent
professionally qualified actuary and updated for accounting purposes at each balance sheet date. The latest formal actuarial
valuation was made as at 31 December 2006 and updated to 31 December 2009 by a qualified independent actuary.

Actuarial assumptions used for the Group's post retirement medical benefit plans are the same as those used for the
Group s defined benefit pension schemes. There was an actuarial loss during the year of £1m (2008; £1m) on the Group's post-
retirement medical benefits liability. A one percentage point movement in medical cost trends would increase or decrease the post-
retirement medical benefit liability and interest cost by £1m (2008: £1m).

37. Contingent liabilities and commitments

The e<timated maximum exposure in respect of contingent liabilities and commitments granted is:

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £m £m fm

Guarartees given to subsidiaries - - 156,580 109,022

Guarantees given to third parties 194 571 - -
Forma standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments with original term to maturity of:

- One year or less 5.570 2,263 3,423 1,883

- More than one year 4,982 8,267 1,738 3,688

10,746 11.101 161,741 114,593

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £m £m fm

Otner contingent liabilities 8 8 8 8

Unauthorised overdraft fees
The Company, along with seven other financial institutions, has been involved in legal proceedings with the Office of Fair Trading
("OFT"), regarding the legal status and enforceability of unarranged overdraft fees (the “OFT Proceedings”). The OFT Proceedings
were concerned with whether certain of the financial institutions’ terms and conditions are subject to the fairness test in the Unfair
Terrrs in Consumer Contract Regulations 1999 (the * Regulations”) and whether they are capable of being 'penalties’ at common
faw

In April 2008 the High Court confirmed that the Company’s then current terms and conditions were not capable of being
penalties at common law. This finding was not appealed by the OFT. The High Court also found that the relevant terms were
assessable for fairess under the Regulations. On 26 February 2009, the Court of Appeal dismissed the appeal against the High
Court's judgment made by the relevant financial institutions and held that unarranged overdraft fees were assessable for fairness
under the Regulations.

The House of Lords gave the relevant financial institutions permission to appeal this judgment. The hearing before the
Louse of Lords took place on 23 to 25 June 2009. The Supreme Court (previously The House of Lords) gave its judgment on 25
November 2009 and ruled that the level of the unauthorised overdraft fees of the relevant financial institutions could not be
assessed for fairness under the Regulations (to the extent that the terms pursuant to which the fees are levied are in plain and
intelligible language), although they may be assessed for faimess on some other basis.

On 22 December 2009, the OFT announced that it would not be continuing with its investigation into the fairness of
unarranged overdraft fees.
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The Company has rejected the vast majority of complaints which remained in respect of unarranged overdraft fees after the
Supreme Court decision, and it is understood that the Financial Ombudsman Service has also rejected the vast majority of
complaints that it had had on hold since the commencement of the OFT Proceedings. The Company has started to invite County
Courts to dismiss those claims against them which have been stayed since the commencement of the OFT Proceedings and which
relate to the issues covered in the OFT Proceedings. 1tis presently anticipated that the Company will continue with this approach.

Financial Services Compensation Scheme

The Financial Services Compensation Scheme ('FSCSY, the UK's statutory fund of last resort for customers of authorised financial
services firms, pays compensation if a firm is unable to meet its obligations as they fall due. As a result of the failure of a number
of deposit-taking institutions during the second half of 2008, the FSCS now stands as a creditor of Bradford & Bingley plc and the
administrations of Heritable Bank, Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander and Landsbanki ‘Icesave’. The FSCS has borrowed from HM
Treasury to fund the compensation costs associated with those failures. These borrowings are currently on an interest-only basis
until 31 March 2012.

The FSCS fulfils its obligations by raising management expenses levies and compensation levies on the industry. In relation
to compensation relating to protected deposits, each deposit-taking institution contributes towards these levies in proportion to
their share of total protected deposits, subject to a threshold set by the Financial Services Authority establishing the maximum that
FSCS can levy for compensation in any one year. The limit on the FSCS management expenses for the three years from September
2008 in relation to the above-mentioned failures has been capped at £1bn per annum. The FSCS has the power to raise levies on
firms who have ceased to participate in the scheme and are in the process of ceasing to be authorised (so called ‘exit levies’) for
the amount that the firm would otherwise have been asked to pay during the relevant levy year. The Group has an accrual for its
share of management expenses levies for the 2009/10 and 2010/11 levy years as at 31 December 2009 of £101m (2008: £84m).

The FSCS will receive funds from asset sales, surplus cashfiow, or other recoveries from each of the above-named banks.
These recoveries will be used to reduce the principal amount outstanding on the FSCS’s borrowings. Only after the interest only
period, which is expected to end on 31 March 2012, will a schedule for repayment of any remaining principal outstanding (after
recoveries) on the borrowings be agreed between the FSCS and HM Treasury. It is expected that, from that point, the FSCS will
begin to raise compensation levies (principal repayments) relating to the above-named banks. No provision for compensation
levies, which could be significant, has been made in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Overseas tax claim

Abbey National Treasury Services plc has received a demand from an overseas tax authority relating to the repayment of certain tax
credits and related charges. Following modifications to the demand, its nominal amount stands at £74m at the balance sheet
exchange rate (2008: £80m). At 31 December 2009, additional interest in relation to the demand could amount to £34m at the
balance sheet exchange rate (2008: £34m). Abbey National Treasury Services plc received legal advice that it had strong grounds to
challenge the validity of the demand. In September 2006, Abbey National Treasury Services plc won its case at the first stage of the
litigation process. In January 2007, the tax authority appealed this decision. However, in December 2006, a ruling was published
of a similar case unconnected to the Group but which might affect Abbey National Treasury Services plc’s position. in this instance,
the courts ruled against the taxpayer.

Regulatory

The Group engages in discussion, and fully co-operates with the UK Financial Services Authority in their enquiries, including those
exercised under statutory powers, regarding its interaction with past and present customers and policyholders both as part of the
UK Financial Services Authority's general thematic work and in relation to specific products and services.

Other
As part of the sale of subsidiaries, and as is normal in such circumstances, the Group has given warranties and indemnities to the
purchasers.

Obligations under stock borrowing and lending agreements

Obligations under stock borrowing and lending agreements represent contractual commitments to return stock borrowed. These
cbligations totalling £37,525m at 31 December 2009 (2008: £19,934m) are offset by a contractual right to receive stock under
cther contractual agreements.

Other off-balance sheet commitments
The Group has commitments to lend at fixed interest rates which expose it to interest rate risk.

Operating lease commitments

Group Company
£fm £m
Rental commitments under operating leases expiring:
No later than 1 year 115 94
- Later than 1 year but no later than 5 years 383 322
- Later than 5 years 470 412
968 828
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At 31 December 2009, the Group held various leases on land and buildings, many for extended periods, and other leases for
equipment, which require the following aggregate minimum lease payments:

Group Company
Year ended 31 December: £m £m
2010 115 94
2011 112 95
2012 103 87
2013 87 72
2014 81 68
Total thereafter 470 412

Unde~ the terms of these leases, the Group has the opportunity to extend its occupation of properties by a minimum of three years
subject to 12 months’ notice and lease renewal being available from external landlords during the term of the lease. At expiry, the
Group has the option to reacquire the freehold of certain properties.

Group rental expense comprises:

Group
2009 2008 2007
£m fm £m
In respect of minimum rentals 116 107 96
Less: sub-lease rentals - Q)] -
116 106 96

Appropriate provisions are maintained to cover the above matters.

38. Non-controlling interests

Group
2009 2008
£m £m
Non-controlling interest in subsidiary 125 106
£300m Irnovative Tier 1 Capital Securities 297 31
£300rn fixed/floating rate non-cumulative callable preference shares 294 294
716 711

Non-cortrolling interests represent the 49% shareholding in Santander Private Banking UK Limited not owned by the Company,
Innovative Tier 1 capital securities issued by Alliance & Leicester plc, a subsidiary of the Company, and preference shares issued by
Alliance & Leicester plc.

£300m Innovative Tier 1 Capital Securities

The Tier 1 securities issued by Alliance & Leicester plc are perpetual securities and pay a coupon on 22 March each year. At each
paymen: date, Alliance & Leicester plc can decide whether to declare or defer the coupon indefinitely. If a coupon is deferred then
Alliance & Leicester plc may not pay a dividend on any share until it next makes a coupon payment. Alliance & Leicester plc can be
obliged to make payment in the event of winding up. The coupon is 5.827% per annum until 22 March 2016. Thereafter the
coupon steps up to a rate, reset every five years, of 2.13% per annum above the gross redemption yield on a UK Government
Treasury Security. The Tier 1 securities are redeemable at the option of Alliance & Leicester plc on 22 March 2016 or on each
paymen: date thereafter. No such redemption may be made without the consent of the UK Financial Services Authority. In 2009,
2008 and 2007 the coupon was paid.

£300m fixed/floating rate non-cumulative callable preference shares

On 24 May 2006, Alliance & Leicester plc issued £300m fixed/floating rate non-cumulative callable preference shares, resulting in
net proceeds of £294m. The preference shares entitle the holders to a fixed non-cumulative dividend, at the discretion of Alliance
& Leicester plc, of 6.22% per annum payable annually from 24 May 2007 until 24 May 2019 and quarterly thereafter at a rate of
1.13% oer annum above three month steriing LIBOR. The preference shares are redeemable only at the option of Alliance &
Leicester plc on 24 May 2019 or on each quarterly dividend payment date thereafter. No such redemption may be made without
the consant of the UK Financial Services Authority.

Movements in non-controlling interests were as follows:

Group

2009 2008

£m £m

At 1 January 71 98
Share of profit 55 8
Distributions (50) -
Acquired through business combinations - 605
At 31 December 716 711
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39. Share capital

Group and Company

2009 2008

£m £m

Ordinary share capital 2,412 1,148
£300m Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments 297 -
2,709 1,148

Share capital consists of ordinary shares and the £300m Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments. The Company'’s
preference shares are classified as Other Borrowed Funds under IFRS.

Ordinary shares of 10 Preference shares Preference shares Preference shares
pence each of £1 each of US$0.01 each of euro0.01 each Total
Issued and fully paid share capital £m £m £m £m £m
At " January 2008 148 325 - - 473
Shares issued 1,000 - - - 1,000
At 31 December 2008 1,148 325 - - 1473
Shares issued 1,264 - - - 1,264
At 31 December 2009 2,412 325 - - 2,737
Group
2009 2008
Share Premium fm £m
At 1 January 3,121 1,857
Capital contribution - 1,264
Transfer to ordinary shares (1.264) -
At 31 December 1,857 3,121
Company
2009 2008
Share Premium £m fm
At 1 .anuary and 31 December 1,857 1,857

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.

On 12 October 2008, Banco Santander, S.A. agreed to inject capital of £1bn into the Company fulfilling its agreed
commitment to the UK Government’s banking support scheme announced on 8 October 2008. Consequently, on 12 October
2008, the Company issued ten billion ordinary shares of £0.10 each at par, to Banco Santander, S.A..

On 9 January 2009, in order to optimise the capital, liquidity funding and overall financial efficiency of the enlarged
Santander group, Banco Santander, S.A. transferred all of its Alliance & Leicester pic shares to the Company in exchange for
12,631,375,230 newly issued ordinary shares of the Company of £0.10 each. As described earlier, the Group accounted for the
transfer of Alliance & Leicester plc with effect from 10 October 2008 in a manner consistent with the requirements of group
reconstruction relief under UK GAAP. The fair value of Alliance & Leicester plc's tangible and intangible net assets transferred was
accounted for by the Group as a capital contribution on 10 October 2008. This was transferred to ordinary share capital on 9
Jaruary 2009 when the shares were actually issued. The Company accounted for the transfer of Alliance & Leicester pic with effect
from 9 January 2009.

£300m Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments

During the year, the Group changed its accounting for its £300m Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments in order
to align its accounting with that of its subsidiary Alliance & Leicester plc. The effect of this change was to reclassify the balance as
equity rather than liabilities, and to account for the coupon as dividends rather than interest expense. The change was adjusted
prospectively from 1 January 2009 as the effect was qualitatively and quantitatively immaterial to the prior years' financial
statements, liquidity and regulatory measures taken as a whole.

The Reserve Capital Instruments were issued in 2001 by the Company. Reserve Capital Instruments are redeemable by the
Company on 14 February 2026 or on any coupon payment date thereafter, subject to the prior approval of the UK Financial
Services Authority and provided that the auditors have reported to the trustee within the previous six months that the solvency
condition is met. The Reserve Capital instruments bear interest at a rate of 7.037% per annum, payable annually in arrears, from
14 Feoruary 2001 to 14 February 2026. Thereafter, the reserve capital instruments will bear interest at a rate, reset every five years,
of 3.75% per annum above the gross redemption yield on the UK five year benchmark gilt rate. Interest payments may be
deferred by the Company.

The Reserve Capital Instruments are not redeemable at the option of the holders and the holders do not have any rights
against other Group companies. Upon the occurrence of certain tax or regulatory events, the Reserve Capital Instruments may be
exchanged, their terms varied, or redeemed. Where interest payments have been deferred, the Company may not declare or pay
dividends on or redeem or repurchase any junior securities until it next makes a scheduled payment on the Reserve Capital
Instruments and Tier One Preferred Income Capital Securities.

The Reserve Capital Instruments are unsecured securities of the Company and are subordinated to the claims of
unsubordinated creditors and subordinated creditors holding loan capital of the Company. Upon the winding up of the Company,
holders of Reserve Capital Instruments will rank par/ passu with the holders of the most senior class or classes of preference shares
(if any) of the Company then in issue and in priority to all other Company shareholders.
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Analysis of dividends paid is as follows:
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Group Company
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
Pence per Pence per Pence per Pence per Pence per Pence per
Share Share Share Share Share Share
Ordinary shares (equity):

2007 interim - 13.46 - - 13.46 -
2007 interim - 11.44 - - 11.44 -
2008 interim - 15.14 - - 15.14 -

2009 interim 0.93 - - 0.93 -
0.93 40.04 - 0.93 40.04 -

The dividend of 0.93 pence per ordinary share equated to a total ordinary dividend payment of £225m. In addition, £21m of
dividends were paid on the Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments during 2009.

41. Cash flow statement

a) Reconciliation of profit after tax to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities:

Group Company
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
£m £m fm £m fm fm
Profit for the year 1,245 819 685 747 1,328 351
Non-cash items included in net profit
Decreasef(increase) in prepayments and accrued income 262 (126) (105) 1,024 (902) (353)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and deferred income (2,171) 346 531 (2,016) 1,260 411
Depreciation and amortisation 260 202 205 132 81 72
Profit on sale of subsidiary and associated undertakings - (40) - - - -
Amortisation of premiums/(discounts) on debt securities (8) (21) - - - -
Provisions for liabilities and charges 56 17 - 41 16 -
Provision for impairment 897 394 388 830 302 346
Carporation tax charge 445 275 179 288 126 69
Other non-cash items 235 250 109 (506) 1,155 (99)
1,221 2,116 1,992 540 3,366 797
Group Company
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
Changes in operating assets and liabilities fm fm £m fm fm £m
Net {increase)/ decrease in trading assets (1,636) 9,398 (695) - - -
Net decrease/(increase) in derivative assets 12,298 (23,096) (1,615) 196 (2,046) (43)
Net {increase)/decrease in financial assets designated at fair value (981) 465 (3,107) 10,218 (39,863) (7.,434)
Net (increase)/decrease in loans and advances to banks & customers (3,008) (16,959) (8,908) (10,146) (38,835) (1,641)
Net decrease/(increase) in other assets 1,103 (189) 1,914 835 108 357
Net increase/(decrease) in deposits by banks and customers 6,647 (3,652) 4,104 (2,731) 123,614 13,813
Net {de:rease)/increase in derivative liabilities (8,847) 16,979 (287) (2,041) 4,342 370
Net increase/(decrease) in trading liabilities 5,533 (14,054) (2,850) (739) 739 -
Net {de:rease)/increase in financial liabilities designated at fair value (1,238) (3,284) (619) - - -
Net (de:rease)increase in debt issued (3,077) 5,027 368 1 - (3)
Net (de<rease)/increase in other liabilities (1,369) (807) (20) (656) (586) (315)
Effects of exchange rate differences (3.719) 6,569 396 (268) 897 -
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities before tax 2,927  (21,487) (9,327) (4,791) 51,736 5,901
Income tax received/(paid) 2 43 (5) 21 80 48
Net cash flow from/{used in) operating activities 2,929  (21,444) (9,332) (4,770) 51,816 5,949
b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet
Group Company
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
£m fm fm £fm fm fm
Cash and balances with central banks 4,163 4,017 1,038 3,266 2,456 1,032
Debt securities 1,966 5,208 5,819 - - -
Loans and advances to banks 4,881 5,763 - - - -
Net tracing other cash equivalents 8,827 532 24,989 - - -
Net non trading other cash equivalents 6,527 12,155 2,210 52,132 58,747 9,562
Cash and cash equivalents 26,364 27,675 34,056 55,398 61,203 10,594
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¢) Sale of subsidiaries

Group
2009 2008 2007
Net assets disposed of: £m fm fm
Operating lease assets - 2,134 -
Current tax accounts - 8 -
Other assets - 60 -
Deposits by banks - (8) -
Other liabilities - (163) -
Other provisions - (2) -
Current tax liabilities - (19) -
Deferred tax liabilities - (446) -
Retirement benefit obligations - 1 -
- 1,565 -
Protit/ 1loss) on disposal - 40 -
- 1,605 -

Satisfied by:
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,605 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary sold - - -
Net cash inflow of sale - 1,605 -

On 8 December 2008, the Group completed the disposal of Porterbrook, its rolling stock leasing business, by the sale of 100% of
Porterbrook Leasing Company Limited and its subsidiaries to a consortium of investors including Antin Infrastructure Partners (the
BNP 2aribas sponsored infrastructure fund), Deutsche Bank and Lloyds Banking Group plc, for a cash consideration of
approximately £1.6bn, with the Group providing £0.6bn medium term, senior loan funding to the acquisition vehicle.

In addition, as described in Note 20, on 17 December 2007, the Company sold 49% of its shareholding in Santander
Private Banking UK Limited to a direct subsidiary of Banco Santander, S.A. for a total cash consideration of £203m. Further, in
2007, recoveries of £5m were received in respect of subsidiaries sold in 2003.

d) Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses

2008 Group

Alliance & Bradford & Total
Net assets acquired: Leicester Bingley savings

£fm business fm
£m

Assets
Cash 2nd balances at central banks 666 18,613 19,279
Derivative financial instruments 2,111 - 2111
Firancial assets designated at fair value 492 - 492
Loans and advances to banks 423 1,549 1,972
Loans and advances to customers 50,349 - 50,349
Available-for-sale securities 1,658 3 1,661
Loans and receivables securities 14,253 - 14,253
intancible assets 17 4 21
Property, plant and equipment 273 a4 317
Other assets 2,051 449 2,500
Liabilities
Deposits by banks (10,216) - (10,216)
Deposits by customers (39,765) (20,434) (60,199)
Derivative financial instruments (933) - (933)
Financial liabilities designated at fair value (1,421) - (1,421)
Debt securities in issue (17,146) - (17.,146)
Subordinated liabilities (1,296) - (1,296)
Other liabilities (1,009) n (1,020)
Net identified assets and liabilities 507 217 724
Goodwill 774 395 1,169
Consideration 1,281 612 1,893
Satisfied by:
Cash and cash equivalents - 612 612
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in businesses acquired (666) (18,613) (19,279)
Net cash (inflow) acquired (666) (18,001) (18,667)

On 9 January 2009, in order to optimise the capital, liquidity funding and overal! financial efficiency of the enlarged Santander
group, Banco Santander, S.A. transferred all of its Alliance & Leicester plc shares to the Company in exchange for 12,631,375,230
newly issued ordinary shares of the Company. There was no other consideration. Accordingly, the Company is now the immediate
parent company of Alliance & Leicester plc.
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The transfer of Alliance & Leicester plc to the Company from Banco Santander, S.A. in exchange for ordinary shares of the
Company represents a combination of entities under common control. Transactions between entities under common control are
outside the scope of IFRS 3 — Business Combinations, and there is no other guidance for such situations under IFRS. In the absence
of authoritative guidance under IFRS, the transfer has been accounted for by the Group in a manner consistent with group
reconstruction relief under UK GAAP. As a result, the transfer of Alliance & Leicester plc has been accounted for by the Group
with effect from 10 October 2008, the date on which Banco Santander, S.A. acquired Alliance & Leicester plc. For further
information see Note 47.

In September 2008, following the announcement by HM Treasury 10 take Bradford & Bingley plc into public ownership,
the retail deposits, branch network and its related employees transferred, under the provisions of the UK Banking (Special
Provisions) Act 2008, to the Company. All of Bradford & Bingley plc's customer loans and treasury assets, including all its
mortgage assets, were taken into public ownership. The transfer to the Company consisted of the £20bn retail deposit base with
2.7 million customers, as well as Bradford & Bingley pic's direct channels including 197 retail branches, 141 agencies (distribution
outlets in third party premises) and related employees. The acquisition price was £612m, including the transfer of £208m of
capital relating to offshore entities.

42. Collateral pledged and received

The Group provides assets as collateral in the following areas of the business.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries enter into securitisation transactions whereby portfolios of residential
mortgage loans are purchased by or assigned to special purpose securitisation companies, and have been funded through the issue
of mortgage backed securities. Holders of the securities are only entitled to obtain payments of principal and interest to the extent
that the resources of the securitisation companies are sufficient to support such payments and the holders of the securities have
agreed in writing not to seek recourse in any other form. At 31 December 2009 £58,479m (2008: £63,451m) of residential
mortgage loans were so assigned.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries have also established covered bond programmes, whereby securities are
issued to investors and are secured by a pool of ring-fenced residential mortgages. At 31 December 2009 £15,150m (2008:
£24.101m) of residential mortgage loans had been so secured.

Collateral is also provided in the normal course of derivative business 1o counterparties. At 31 December 2009 £2,035m
(2008 £1,842m) of such collateral in the form of cash had been provided.

As part of structured transactions entered into by subsidiaries of the Company, assets are pledged or received as
collateral. At 31 December 2009 £253m (2008: £844m) of assets had been received (2008: pledged) in relation to these
transactions.

Subsidiaries of the Company enter into sale and repurchase agreements and similar transactions of equity and debt
securitres, which are accounted for as secured borrowings. Upon entering into such transactions, the subsidiaries provide collateral
equal to 100%-131% of the borrowed amount. The carrying amount of assets that were so provided at 31 December 2009 was
£42,389m (2008: £51,267m).

Subsidiaries of the Company also enter into purchase and resale agreements and similar transactions of equity and debt
securities, which are accounted for as collateralised loans. Upon entering into such transactions, the subsidiaries receive collateral
equal 10 100%-105% of the loan amount. The level of collateral held is monitored daily and if required, further calls are made to
ensure the market values of collateral remains equal to the loan balance. The subsidiaries are permitted to sell or repledge the
collateral held. At 31 December 2009, the fair value of such collateral was £42,039m (2008: £29,782m) of which £42,039m
(2008 £29,782m) was sold or repledged. The subsidiaries have an obligation to return the collateral that it has sold or pledged
with & fair value of £42,039m (2008: £29,782m).

As part of revised arrangements relating to the funding of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes, £814m (2008:
£970m) of securities classified as available-for-sale have been pledged during the year to cover the Group's obligations.

43. Share-based compensation
Santander UK schemes

The Group granted share options to executive officers and employees under the Executive Share Option scheme, Sharesave scheme
and the Employee Share Option scheme prior to being acquired by Banco Santander, S.A. on 12 November 2004. Options granted
unde- the Executive Share Option scheme are generally exercisable between the third and tenth anniversaries of the grant date,
provided that certain performance criteria are met. Under the Sharesave scheme, eligible employees can elect to exercise their
options either three, five or seven years after the grant date. All of the share options prior to 12 November 2004 relate to shares in
the Company. After 12 November 2004, all share options relate to shares in Banco Santander, S.A.. On 12 November 2004 all
holders of options in ordinary shares of the Company were given the option to exercise their options, to cancel their options in
return for a cash payment or to transfer their options to options in shares of Banco Santander, S.A.. The options over Banco
Santander, S.A. shares are accounted for as cash settled share-based transactions. On acquisition of the Company by Banco
Santander, S.A. there was no fair value adjustment of options modified to rights over Banco Santander, S.A. shares. From 12
November 2004 the Group has purchased Banco Santander, S.A. shares on the open market in order to settle these share based
compensation obligations.
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The Group introduced its second Sharesave Scheme under Banco Santander, S.A. ownership. The HM Revenue & Customs
approved Sharesave Scheme was launched in September 2009. Employees were given the option of saving between £5 and £250
per month for a three or five year savings period. The option price was set at a 20% discount on the average middle market
quctation of Banco Santander, S.A. shares over the first three dealing days in September 2009.

The total carrying amount at the end of the period for liabilities arising from share-based payment transactions was £7m
(2008: £3m, 2007: £68m), none of which had vested as at 31 December 2009 (2008: nil). Cash received from the exercise of
share options and the actual tax benefits realised from tax deductions were £1m (2008: £14m, 2007 £6m) and £nil (2008: £4m,
2007: £2m), respectively.

The fair value of each option for 2009, 2008 and 2007 has been estimated at the date of acquisition or grant using a
partial differential equation model with the following assumptions:

2009 2008 2007
Risk free interest rate 2.5%-3.5% 2.9%-6.5% 5.0%-5.8%
Dividend growth, based solely upon average growth since 1989 10% 10% 10%
Volatility of underlying shares based upon historical volatility over five years 29.0%-34.4% 20.2%-2%.6% 19.80%-26.90%
Expected lives of options granted under:
- Erployee Sharesave 3, 5 & 7 year schemes 3,5 &7 years 3,5 &7 vears 3,5 &7 years
- Executive Share Option scheme 10 years 10 years 10 years
- Medium term incentive plan - - 3 years
- Long term incentive plans 3 years 3 years 3 years

With the exception of those that include terms related to market conditions, vesting conditions included in the terms of the grant
are not taken into account in estimating fair value. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number
of shares or share options included in the measurement of the cost of the employee service so that ultimately, the amount
recognised in the income statement reflects the number of vested shares or share options. Where vesting conditions are related to
market conditions, the charges for the services received are recognised regardless of whether or not the market related vesting
conditions are met, provided that the non-market vesting conditions are met. Share price volatility has been based upon the range
of implied volatility for the Banco Santander, S.A. shares at the strikes and tenors in which the majority of the sensitivities lie.

The following table summarises the movement in the number of share options between those outstanding at the
beginning and end of the year, together with the changes in weighted average exercise price over the same period.

Executive Share Option scheme Employee Sharesave scheme
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
options price options price
‘000s £ ‘000s £

2009
Options outstanding at the start of the year 12 4.54 6,142 7.00
Options granted during the year - - 4,528 7.26
Options exercised during the year - - (679) 3.85
Options forfeited during the year - - (1.278) 7.48
Options outstanding at the end of the year 12 4.54 8,713 7.24
Opticns exercisable at the end of the year 12 4.54 8,713 7.24

2008
Opticns outstanding at the start of the year 144 415 5,684 3.18
Onticns granted during the year - - 5,197 7.69
Options exercised during the year 11) 4.14 (4,507) 3.07
Options forfeited during the year (121 4.11 (231) 591
Options expired during the year - - (1) 8.07
Options outstanding at the end of the year 12 454 6,142 7.00
Options exercisable at the end of the year 12 4.54 - -
Executive Share Option scheme Employee Sharesave scheme
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
options price options price
'000s £ ‘000s £

2007
Optinns outstanding at the start of the year 178 4.11 7,638 332
Options exercised during the year (34) 3.96 (1,501) 3.81
Options forfeited during the year - - (419) 3.25
Options expired during the year - - (34) 5.92
Options outstanding at the end of the year 144 4.15 5,684 3.18
Options exercisable at the end of the year 144 4.15 - -

The intrinsic value of the options exercised and the fair value of the options vested during the year were £3m (2008: £31m, 2007:
£3m) and £5m (2008: £6m, 2007. £3m), respectively.
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Executive Share Option scheme
The 1ollowing table summarises information about the options outstanding at 31 December 2009.

Options outstanding Options exercisable

Weighted average

Weighted average

Weighted average

. Number remaining contractual life exercise price Number exercise price
Range of exercise prices '000s years £ '000s £
Betweer £4 and £5 12 4 4.54 12 4.54
The following table summarises information about the options outstanding at 31 December 2008.

Options outstanding Options exercisable
Weighted average Weighted average Weighted average
Number remaining contractual life exercise price Number exercise price

Range of exercise prices ‘000s years '000s
Between £4 and £5 12 5 4.54 12 4.54

Employee Sharesave scheme

Under the Employee Sharesave scheme, the weighted-average exerdise prices of options are less than the market prices of the

shares on the relevant grant dates.

The Group introduced its second Sharesave Scheme under Banco Santander, S.A. ownership. The HM Revenue &

Customs approved Sharesave Scheme was launched in September 2009. Employees were given t
and £250 per month for a three or five year savings period. The option price was set at a 20%
market quotation of Banco Santander, S.A. shares over the first three dealing days of Septemb

Medium Term Incentive Plan

See Note 45 for details of conditional share grants awarded to certain Executive Directors,

other nominated individuals under the Medium Term Incentive Plan.

he option of saving between £5
discount on the average middle

Other Key Management Personnel and

Nurmber of awards

2008 granted

000s
Conditional awards outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,220
Conditional awards forfeited during the year (29

Conditional awards vested during the year

(2,191)

Conditional awards outstanding at the end of the year

Number of awards

ranted
2007 9 0008
Conditional awards outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,537
Condit onal awards forfeited during the year 317)
Condit onal awards outstanding at the end of the year 2,220

Awards with a value of £nil vested during the year (2008: £19m, 2007: £nil), as the scheme matured in 2008.

Long Term Incentive Plan

See Note 45 for details of conditional share grants awarded to certain Executive Directors, Other Key Management Personnel and

other nominated individuals under the Long Term incentive Plan.

Number of awards

2009 granted

000s
Condit-onal awards outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,680
Conditional awards granted during the year 2,274
Conditional awards exercised during the year (1,243)
Conditional awards outstanding at the end of the year 5,711

Number of awards

2008 granted

000s
Conditional awards outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,092
Conditional awards granted during the year 1,803
Cenditional awards forfeited during the year (215)
Conditional awards outstanding at the end of the year 4,680

The weighted average grant-date fair value of conditional awards granted during the year was £3.85 (2008: £4.24). At 31

December 2009, the weighted average remaining contractual life was two years (2008: two years).
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Alliance & Leicester schemes

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Alliance & Leicester group had four share-based payment arrangements, including
Share Incentive Plan (SIP) partnership shares. The Share Incentive Plan (SIP) was available to all employees. Prior to Alliance &
Leicester plc’s acquisition by Banco Santander, S.A., participants could elect to invest up to £125 per month from pre-tax salary to
purchase shares at the prevailing market price. Shares can be released from Trust after five years free of income tax and national
insurance contributions. On the acquisition of Alliance & Leicester plc by Banco Santander, S.A., Alliance & Leicester pic shares held
in the SIP were converted to Banco Santander shares on the same three for one basis as was applicable to all other shareholders
upon acquisition by Banco Santander S.A. These will remain in the SIP Trust under the terms of the SIP rules. 195,454 SIP
partnership shares were issued during 2008 prior to acquisition, at the then prevailing market rate of Alliance & Leicester plc
shares, at a weighted average price of 428p per share. All were converted to Banco Santander, S.A. shares on acquisition. No
Banco Santander SIP shares have been issued since acquisition.

Options held under the ShareSave Plan, share option plan and senior manager deferred bonus scheme became
exercisable on 7 October 2008 and lapsed, if unexercised, on 7 April 2009.

Restricted share plan shares vested and were converted to Banco Santander, S.A. shares on acquisition in accordance
with the scheme rules. Under the senior manager deferred bonus scheme, new Alliance & Leicester plc shares were issued to
satisfy deferred bonus scheme options that remained unexercised prior to 7 April 2009, after which all options lapsed.

The following table summarises the movement in the number of options between those outstanding at the beginning and end of
the year, together with the changes in weighted average exercise price over the same period:

Share Senior manager

ShareSave option plan deferred bonus"

2009 No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares
Outstanding at 1 January 564,675 2,232,426 64,726
Lapsed (564,675) (2,232,426) -
Exercised - - (64,726)
Outstanding at 31 December 2009 - - -
Weightad average exercise price in 2009 - - 285.5p
Share Senior manager

ShareSave option plan deferred bonus'"

2008 No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares
Outstanding and exercisable at 31 December 2008 564,675 2,232,426 64,726
Weighted average exercise price in 2008 630.2p nfa 285.5p
Range of exercise prices for options 632p - 815p 544p —1,093p n/a
Weighted average fair value options n/a 84p 1,553p®

1. The figures in the table relate to the level of bonus deferred, i.e. excluding the matching element.
2. The option value includes the deferred share and the fair value of the matched element less the cash bonus foregone.

For these schemes, the estimated fair value is calculated as the value of the share price option plus the present value of any
deferreo dividends.
The assumptions used in the model are as follows:

Input Assumption
Share price Price at date of grant
Exercise price Per scheme rules
Expected volatility Estimated by calculating the annualised, exponential weighted monthly volatility of share price over prior two years
Option lite Per scheme rules
Risk free rate Generated from LIBOR swap curve

44, Directors’ emoluments and interests

Ex gratia pensions paid to former Directors of the Company in 2009, which have been provided for previously, amounted to
£22,341 (2008: £22,341, 2007: £21,524). In 1992, the Board decided not to award any new such ex gratia pensions.

There were no loans, quasi loans and credit transactions entered into or agreed by the Company or its subsidiaries with
perscns who are or were Directors, Other Key Management Personnel and each of their connected persons during the year except
as descr:bed below:

Aggregate amount

Other Key Management Personnel* - Loans Number of outstanding

persons £000
2009 2 835
2008 2 647

* Other Key Management Personnel are defined as the Executive Committee of the Company and the Board and Executive Committee cf its parent company, Banco
Santander, S.A. who served during the year. The above excludes any overdraft facilities provided to Directors, Other Key Management Personnel and their
connected persons in the ordinary course of business.
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secured and unsecured loans are made to Directors, Other Key Management Personnel and their connected persons in the
ordinary course of business, with terms prevailing for comparable transactions and on the same terms and conditions as applicable

to other employees within the Group. Such loans do not involve more than the norma

unfavourable features.

45, Related party disclosures

Transactions with Directors, Other Key Management Personn
Directors, Other Key Management Personnel and their connected

Group n the course of normal banking and life assurance business.

Number of directors and

| risk of collectability or present any

el and each of their connected persons
persons have undertaken the following transactions with the

Amounts in respect of directors,

Other Key Management Other Key Management Personnel

2009 Personnel” and their connected persons
£000

Secured loans, unsecured loans and overdrafts
Loans outstanding at 1 January 5 647
Net movements in the year (1) 191
Loans outstanding at 31 December 4 838
Deposit, bank and instant access accounts and investments
Deposits, bank instant access accounts and investments at 1 January 16 4,463
Net movements in the year (1) 2,916
Depaosit, bank and instant access accounts and investments at 31 December 15 7,379
Life assurance policies
Life assurance policies at 1 January 1 1,026
Net movements in the year 2 862
Life assurance policies at 31 December 3 1,888

Number of directors
and Other Key

Amounts in respect of directors,
Other Key Management Personnel”

2008 Management personnel’ and their connected perisg(r)'mg
Secured loans, unsecured loans and overdrafts

Loans outstanding at 1 January 1 806
Net movements in the year 4 (159)
Loans outstanding at 31 December 5 647
Deposit, bank and instant access accounts and investments

Deposits, bank instant access accounts and investments at 1 January 12 5,565
Net movements in the year 4 (1,102)
Deposit, bank and instant access accounts and investments at 31 December 16 4,463
Life assurance policies

Life assurance policies at 1 January 2 1,600
Net movements in the year [4))] (574)
[ife assurance policies at 31 December 1 1,026

(1) Other Key Management Personnel are defined as the Executive Committee of the Company and the Board and Executive Committee of its parent company, Banco

<antander, S.A., who served during the year.

In 2009, one Director undertook sharedealing transactions through the Group’s
with an aggregate net value of £269,561 (2008: £680,096). Any transaction

comrnission rates were payable.

secured and unsecured loans are made to Directors, Other Ke

execution only stockbroker (2008: two Directors)
s were on normal business terms and standard

y Management Personnel and their connected persons, in

the ordinary course of business, with terms prevailing for comparable transactions and on the same terms and conditions as
applicable to other employees within the Group. Such loans do not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present

any unfavourable features. Amounts deposited by Directors, Other Key Management
interast at the same rates as those offered to the market or on the same terms an

within the Group.

Life assurance policies and investments are entered into by Dir
connected persons on normal market terms and conditions, or on the same t

within the Group.

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The remuneration of the Directors, and Other Key Management Pers
categories specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. Further informa

provided in the ‘Directors’ Remuneration’ table in the Directors’ Report on page 92.

Personnel and their connected persons earn
d conditions applicable to other employees

ectors, Other Key Management Personnel and their
erms and conditions as applicable to other employees

onnel of the Group, is set out in aggregate for each of the
tion about the aggregate remuneration of the Directors is
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2009 2008 2007

Key management compensation £ £ £
Short-term employee benefits 12,172,113 13,016,060 11,602,405
Post emoloyment benefits 319,319 306,902 77,814
Other long term benefits - - -
Termination benefits 1,162,500 - -
Share-based payments 2,192,509 1,572,973 1,101,786
15,846,441 14,895,935 12,782,005

Medium-Term Incentive Plan

Under the Medium-Term Incentive Plan granted on 20 October 2005, certain Executive Directors, Other Key Management
Personnel and other nominated individuals were granted a conditional award of shares in Banco Santander, S.A.. The amount of
shares participants would receive at the end of the three-year period depended on the performance of the Group in this period.
The performance conditions were linked to the Group’s three-year plan. Performance was measured in two ways, half of the
award depended on the Group achieving an attributable profit target for the 2007 financial year, and the remainder depended on
the achievement of a revenue target for the 2007 financial year. Both performance conditions were achieved, resulting in a full
award of shares to participants in March 2008.

Long-Term Incentive Plan

In 2009, four Executive Directors (2008: two) and six Other Key Management Personnel (2008: six) were granted conditional
awards of shares in Banco Santander, S.A. under the Santander Long-Term Incentive Plan for a total fair value of £1,605,268
(2008 £1,325,592) based on a price of euro 8.14 (2008: euro 11.96). The value attributable to the current year of these
conditional awards is included in share based payments above. Under the Santander Long-Term Incentive Plans granted on 1 July
2009, 21 June 2008 and 31 December 2007, certain Executive Directors, Key Management Personnel (as defined in Note 44 to the
Consclidated Financial Statements) and other nominated individuals were granted conditional awards of shares in Banco
Santander, S.A. The amount of shares participants will receive depends on the performance of Banco Santander, S.A. during this
period Al awards under the Santander Long-Term Incentive Plan will depend on Santander's Total Shareholder Return
performance against a competitor benchmark group. Awards made prior to 2009 also depend on Santander's Earnings Per Share
performance against a competitor benchmark group. 90.79% of the 40% of the 2007 conditional award of shares vested in July
2009. Subject to performance conditions being met, the remaining 60% of the 2007 conditional award will vest in July 2010,
100% of the 2008 conditional award will vest in July 2011 and 100% of the 2009 conditional award will vest in July 2012.

Parent undertaking and controlling party

The Company’s immediate and ultimate parent and controlling party is Banco Santander, S.A.. The smatlest and largest group into
which the Group's results are included is the group accounts of Banco Santander, S.A., copies of which may be obtained from
Santander Shareholder Department, 2 Triton Square, Regent’s Place, London NW1 3AN.

Transactions with related parties
Transactions with related parties during the year and balances outstanding at the year end:

Group

Interest, fees and Interest, fees and Amounts owed by Amounts owed

other income received other expenses paid related parties to related parties

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £m fm £m fm fm £m fm £m £m

Parent company (99) (537) (293) a7 509 327 7,809 11,021 (2,965) (2,337)
Fellow subsidiaries (563) (383) (171 412 377 24 7,113 6,214 (4,567) (1,767)
Associates (26) (23) (19) 1 2 5 2,092 632 (13) (150)
(688) (943) (483) 460 888 356 17,014 17,867 (7,545) (4,254)

Company

Interest, fees and Interest, fees and Amounts owed by Amounts owed

other income received other expenses paid related parties to related parties

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2009 2008

£m fm fm fm fm fm £m fm £m fm

Parent company (32) (55) 9N 5 - - 1 1,004 (632) (230)
Subsidiaries (4,229) (6,654) (2,072) 6,399 8,312 4,532 149,175 165,557  (184,460) (198,369)
Fellow subsidiaries (224) (261) (106) 307 253 17 71 352 (1.839) (320)
Assoc.ates (2) - - - 1 334 - (2)

(4,485) (6,972) (2,269) 6,711 8,565 4,549 149,248 167,247  (186,931) (198,921)

The balances above include debt securities in issue and non-controlling interests held by related parties. In addition, transactions
with pension schemes operated by the Group are described in Note 36.

During the year, euro 315m of the Group's holdings of AAA rated prime mortgage backed securities were sold to the
issuer, Banco Santander Totta, S.A.. Although Banco Santander Totta, S.A. is a related party of the Group, the transactions are
considered to be commercial deals, with a normal sharing of profits.
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On 17 December 2007, the Company sold 100% of its shareholdings in James Hay, Cater Allen and Abbey Sharedealing to
Santander Private Banking UK Limited, at the time of the transaction a 100% owned direct subsidiary of the Company, for a total
cash consideration of £414m. The companies sold were Cater Allen Limited, Abbey Stockbrokers Limited, Abbey Stockbrokers
(Nominees) Limited, James Hay Holdings Limited, James Hay Wrap Managers Limited, James Hay Insurance Company Limited,
James Hay Administration Company Limited, James Hay Pension Trustees Limited and Sarum Trustees Limited. Subsequently, on 17
December 2007, the Company sold 49% of its shareholding in Santander Private Banking UK Limited to Santander PB UK
(Holdings) Limited, a direct subsidiary of Banco Santander, S.A. for a total cash consideration of £203m.

The above transactions were made in the ordinary course of business and substantially on the same terms as for
comparable transactions with third party counterparties.

As described in Note 47, on 9 January 2009, in order to optimise the capital, liquidity funding and overall financial
efficency of the Santander group, Banco Santander, S.A. transferred all of its Alliance & Leicester plc shares to the Company in
exchange for newly issued ordinary shares of the Company. Accordingly, the Company is now the immediate parent company of
Alliance & Leicester plc.

46. Events after the balance sheet date

On 25 rebruary 2010 it was announced that Alliance & Leicester plc intends to transfer its business into the Company later this
year under a scheme allowed by Part VIl of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. This transfer is subject to UK Financial
Services Authority support and the Court approval. The transfer will provide benefits for Alliance & Leicester plc customers and for
the Company. For Alliance & Leicester pic customers this includes access to Santander UK's full product range plus use of over
1,300 branches, four times as many branches currently available for Alliance & Leicester pic customers. By rationalising systems and
improving the sales and risk management processes through having a single view of customers’ dealings, the Company will also
benefit from the significant synergies that were announced to the market at the time of the acquisition of Alliance & Leicester plc
by Banco Santander, S.A. in 2008.

On 26 February 2010 it was announced that as the Alliance & Leicester plc preference shares will not transfer to the
Company under the proposed Part VIl Transfer, Alliance & Leicester pic and Santander UK plc have agreed that the holders of the
Alliance & Leicester pic preference shares should be given the opportunity to exchange their Alliance & Leicester plc preference
shares for new preference shares to be issued by the Company. It is intended that the exchange will be carried out by a scheme of
arrangement under Part 26 of the Companies Act 2006, which, if approved by the Court as well as holders of the Alliance &
Leicester plc preference shares and the Company (as holder of the ordinary shares of Alliance & Leicester plo), the Alliance &
Leicester plc preference shares would be substituted with a new issue of preference shares by Santander UK plc on substantially
similar terms,

In March 2010 the Group issued through the Fosse Master Trust the first publicly-placed mortgage-backed securitisation
transaction from a UK bank since 2007. The transaction was denominated in both pounds sterling and euro and raised
approxirnately £1.4bn.

47. Transfer of Alliance & Leicester plc

On & January 2009, in order to optimise the capital, liquidity funding and overall financial efficiency of the enlarged Santander
groun, Banco Santander, S.A. transferred all of its Alliance & Leicester plc shares to the Company in exchange for 12,631,375,230
newly issued ordinary shares of the Company. There was no other consideration. Accordingly, the Company is now the immediate
parent company of Alliance & Leicester plc.

The transfer of Alliance & Leicester plc to the Company from Banco Santander, S.A. in exchange for ordinary shares of
the Company represents a combination of entities under common control. Transactions between entities under common control
are outside the scope of IFRS 3 - Business Combinations, and there is no other guidance for such situations under IFRS. In the
absence of authoritative guidance under IFRS, the transfer has been accounted for by the Group in a manner consistent with group
reconstruction relief under UK GAAP. As a result, the transfer of Alliance & Leicester plc has been accounted for by the Group
with effect from 10 October 2008, the date on which Banco Santander, S.A. acquired Alliance & Leicester plc.

The consolidated financial statements and related notes of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 have been
updated to reflect this treatment, as follows.

Updated consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2008

The effect of the acquisition of Alliance & Leicester plc on the Group’s consolidated income statement for the period from 10
October 2008 to 31 December 2008 is both quantitatively and qualitatively immaterial. The inclusion of Alliance & Leicester plc for
the period from 10 October 2008 to 31 December 2008 would have resulted in: (a) a decrease in the profit before tax and profit
after tax of the Group by 1% and 2% respectively; (b) no change in compliance with regulatory measures and loan covenants;
and; (c) an immaterial impact on key financial trends and performance indicators. Consequently, the Group has concluded that it
will not -ecast the consolidated income statement, or the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2008, to reflect the application of group reconstruction relief.
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Updated consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2008

The updated consolidated balance sheet of the Group set out below is based on the original audited consolidated balance sheet of
the Group at 31 December 2008 and the audited consolidated balance sheet of the Alliance & Leicester group at 31 December
2008 which have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the IASB in addition to being consistent with IFRS as adopted
for use in the European Union. Inter-company balances between Group companies and Alliance & Leicester group companies have
been eliminated. Finally, the acquisition adjustments originally recognised by Banco Santander, S.A. have been applied.

As at 31 December 2008

Santander UK Alliance & Leicester Inter-company Acquisition

Group™" Group eliminations  adjustments Total
£m fm £m £m £m

Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 2,464 1,553 - - 4,017
Trading assets 26,264 - - - 26,264
Derivative financial instruments 32,281 2,876 (32) - 35,125
Financial assets designated at fair value 11,314 63 - - 11,377
Loans and advances to banks 24,226 1,239 (9,464) - 16,001
Loans and advances to customers 129,023 51,402 - (249) 180,176
Avallabia-for-sale securities 1,005 1,658 - - 2,663
Loans and receivables securities - 14,250 (146) 3 14,107
Macro hedge of interest rate risk 1,475 713 - - 2,188
Investrrants in associated undertakings 735 - - (700 35
Intangible assets 556 17 - 774 1,347
Property, plant and equipment 581 223 - 50 854
Operating lease assets - 348 - - 348
Curren® tax assets 195 17 - - 212
Deferred tax assets 560 626 - 88 1,274
Other assets 1,063 259 - - 1,322
Total assets 231,742 75,244 (9,642) (34) 297,310

Liabilities

Deposi's by banks 3,337 11,516 (365) - 14,488
Deposis by customers 99,246 39,765 (8,766) - 130,245
Der vative financial instruments 26,309 1,533 (32) - 27,810
Trading liabilities 40,738 - - - 40,738
Financial liabilities designated at fair value 4,945 728 - - 5,673
Debit securities in issue 41,178 17,477 (144) - 58,511
Other torrowed funds 2,076 - - - 2,076
Suborginated liabilities 5,826 1,436 (335) (140) 6,787
Other liabilities 1,770 631 - (59 2,32
Provisicns 107 34 - 66 207
Current tax liabilities 517 1 - - 518
Deferred tax liabilities 86 278 - a1 405
Ret:rement benefit obligations 796 17 - - 813
Total liabilities 226,931 73,416 (9,642) (92) 290,613

Equity
Share vapital 1,148 328 - (328) 1,148
Share premium account 1,857 724 - 540 3,121
Preference shares and innovative Tier 1 - 605 - (605) -
Retaine=d earnings 1,678 210 - (210) 1,678
Other reserves 22 (39) - 56 39
4,705 1,828 - (547) 5,986
Non-centrolling interest 106 - - 605 mm
Total shareholders equity 4,811 1,828 - 58 6,697
Total liabilities and equity 231,742 75,244 (9,642) (34) 297,310

™ The santander UK Group figures include final acquisition adjustments for Bradford & Bingley savings business as described in Note 48.

Updated consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2008

The updated consolidated cash flow statement of the Group set out below is based on the original audited consolidated cash flow
statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 and the post-acquisition consolidated cash flows of the Alliance &
Leicester group for the period from 10 October to 31 December 2008 which have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued
by the 1ASB in addition to being consistent with IFRS as adopted for use in the European Union. Inter-company transactions
between Group companies and Alliance & Leicester group companies have been eliminated.
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Santander UK Alllance & Inter-company Acqulsition
Group  Leicester Group eliminations adjustments Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Net cash flow (used in)/from operating activities
Profit for the year 819 - - - 819
Adjustments for:
Non cash itemns included in net profit 1,297 - - - 1,297
Change in operating assets (40,978) 1,463 9,134 - (30,381)
Change in operating liabilities 8,135 1,539 (9,465) 209
Income taxes received/(paid) 43 - - 43
Effects of exchange rate differences 8,569 (2,000) - - 6,569
Net cash flow (used in)/from operating activities (22,115) 1,002 (331) - (21,444)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired 18,001 - - 666 18,667
Dividends received from associates 2 - - - 2
Investrrent in associates (708) - 700 - (8)
Disposat of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 1,605 - - 1,605
Purchase of tangible and intangible fixed assets (278) - - - (278)
Proceeds from sale of tangible and intangible fixed assets 15 - - - 15
Purchase of non-trading securities (1,222) 331 - (891)
Proceeds from sale of non-trading securities 290 - - - 290
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities 17,705 - 1,031 666 19,402
Net cash flow (used in)/from financing activities
Issue ot ordinary share capital 1,000 701 (700) - 1,001
Repayment of loan capital (7,787) - - - (7,787)
Dividerds paid (595) - - (595)
Net cash flow (used in)/from financing activities (7,382) 701 (700) - 7,381
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (11,792) 1,703 - 666 9,423
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 34,056 666 - (666) 34,056
Effects of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 3,042 - - - 3,042
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 25,306 2,369 - 27,675

Acquisition adjustments

The initial computation of the purchase price, the allocation o

on fair values estimated by Banco Santander, S.A. at 10 October 2008, and the resulting amount of goodwill were:

f the purchase price to the net assets of Alliance & Leicester plc based

£m £m £m
Purchase price:
Fair va ue of shares issued by Banco Santander, S.A. in exchange for Alliance & Leicester plc 1,281
Less:
Alliance & Leicester’s shareholders’ funds at 10 October 2008 523
Fair va ue adjustments:
- Loans and advances to customers (249)
- Loans and receivables securities 3
- Property, plant and equipment 50
- Subcrdinated liabilities 140
- Other liabilities 59
- Frovisions (66)
- Deferred tax (tax effect of the above adjustments) 47
(16)
507
Goodwill 774

The acquisition of Alliance & Leicester pic strengthened the Group's market position and critical mass. Intangible assets in respect
of brands, customer relationships (known as core deposit intangibles) and customer lists were identified. The values of these
intangible assets were determined to be immaterial; accordingly, no separate intangible assets for these items were recognised. No
otner intangible assets were identified, including any relating to key employees, patents or intellectual property rights.

The computation of the purchase price was based on the fair value (i.e. the published price) of 140,950,944 new Banco
Santander, S.A. shares of euro 0.50 par value each, with a share premium of euro 10.73 per share that were issued in exchange
for Alliance & Leicester plc common shares on 10 October 2008. The share capital, share premium and pre-acquisition reserves
(retained earnings and other reserves) of Alliance & Leicester plc have also been eliminated on acquisition. The Company’s existing
holding of 35.6% of Alliance & Leicester plc’s equity voting interests at 31 December 2008 was also eliminated.

Financial effect of the Transfer

The amounts of total operating income and profit before tax of Alliance & Leicester included in the Group's income statement for
the year ended 31 December 2009 were £1,253m and £420m, respectively.
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48. Acquisition of the Bradford & Bingley savings business, and transfer of Alliance & Leicester plc - initial
accounting

Bradford & Bingley savings business
The Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2008 reflected the acquisition of the Bradford & Bingley savings business with
effect from September 2008, under the purchase method of accounting. The total cost of the acquisition was allocated to the
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based upon their estimated fair values at the date of the acquisition. The preliminary
allocation resulted in an excess of fair value of acquired net assets over cost. The estimated purchase price allocation was
prel:minary and has now been completed.

The following table presents the preliminary and final allocations of the aggregate purchase price at the acquisition date:

Revised allocation Initial allocation Change
Net assets acquired: £m fm fm
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 18,613 18,613 -
Loans and advances to banks 1,549 1,624 (75)
Availab a-for-sale securities 3 3 -
Intangible assets 4 4 -
Property, plant and equipment 44 44 -
Other assets, tax assets and lease assets 449 428 21
Liabilities
Deposits by customers (20,434) (20,434) -
Other liabilities, tax liabilities and lease obligations an an -
Net identified assets and liabilities 217 271 (54)
Goodwill 395 341 54
Consideration 612 612 -

The adjustment since the initial aliocation wrote off the value of the £75m investment in Bradford & Bingley plc subordinated debt
held by Bradford & Bingley International Limited to reflect its impairment as a result of the outcome of discussions between the
Company and HM Treasury. The tax effect of the adjustment was £21m.

Alliance & Leicester plc

The Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2008 did not originally reflect the transfer of Alliance & Leicester pic to the
Company. As described in Note 47, the transfer has now been reflected with effect from 10 October 2008. The amended
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2008 reflecting the transfer with effect from 10 October 2008 was included in the
Group's 2009 Half Yearly Financial Report published on 28 August 2009. In that Financial Report, the total cost of the acquisition
was allocated to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based upon their estimated fair values at the effective date of the
transfer. The preliminary allocation resufted in an excess of fair value of acquired net assets over cost. The estimated purchase price
allocation was preliminary and has now been completed by Banco Santander, S.A.. Banco Santander S.A.s final acquisition
accounting has been reflected by the Group, in accordance with group reconstruction relief.

The following table presents the preliminary and final allocations of the aggregate purchase price at 10 October 2008:

Revised Initial allocation Change

Net assets acquired: allocati:n fm £m
m

Assets
Cash &nd balances at central banks 666 666 -
Derivative financial instruments 2,111 2,111 -
Financial assets designated at fair value 492 492 -
Loans and advances to banks 423 423 -
Loans and advances to customers 50,349 50,598 (249)
Availanle-for-sale securities 1,658 1,658 -
Loans and receivables securities 14,253 14,253 -
intancible assets 17 17 -
Propetty, plant and equipment 273 273 -
Other assets, tax assets and lease assets 2,051 1,963 88
Liabilities
Deposits by banks (10,216) (10,216) -
Deposits by customers (39,765) (39,765) -
Derivative financial instruments (933) (933) -
Firancial fiabilities designated at fair value (1,421) (1,421) -
Debt securities in issue (17,146) (17,146) -
Subordinated liabilities (1,296) (1,296) -
Other liabilities, tax liabilities, provisions and retirement benefit obligations (1,009) (956) (53)
Net identified assets and liabilities 507 721 (214)
Goodwill 774 560 214
Consideration 1,281 1,281 -

The adjustment to reduce Loans and advances to customers by £249m reflected the final assessment of the losses in the Retail and
Corporate Banking portfolios, which were higher than originaily estimated.
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The adjustment to increase Other liabilities by £53m represents the updated view of the cost of settling misselling claims with
respect to products sold by Alliance & Leicester prior to its acquisition. The adjustment to increase Other assets by £88m represents
the deferred tax effect of the above adjustments.

49. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortised cost. The Accounting
Policies section describes how the classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income and expenses, including fair
value gains and losses, are recognised. The following tables analyse the Group's financial instruments into those measured at fair
value and those measured at amortised cost in the balance sheet:

Group
Held at fair value Held at amortised cost Non- Total
31 December 2009 Trading Derivatives Designated Available- Loans and Financial financial
held for at fair value for-sale receivables liabilities at assets /
hedging through P&L amortised cost liabilities
£m £m £m £m £m £m £fm £m
Assets
Cash & balances at central banks - - - - 4,163 - - 4,163
Trading assets 33,290 - - - - - - 33,290
Derivative financial instruments 21,472 1,355 - - - - - 22,827
Financia: assets designated at FV - - 12,358 - - - - 12,358
Loans and advances to banks - - - - 9,151 - - 9,151
Loans and advances to cust.s - - - - 186,804 - - 186,804
Available-for-sale securities - - - 797 - - - 797
Loars and receivables securities - - - - 9,898 - - 9,898
Macro hedge of interest rate risk - - - - 1,127 - - 1,127
Investment in associates - . - - - - 75 75
Intangible assets - - - - - - 1,446 1,446
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 938 938
Operating lease assets - - - - - - 312 312
Current tax assets - - - - - - 85 85
Deferre tax assets - - - - - - 946 946
Other assets - - - - 999 - 75 1,074
54,762 1,355 12,358 797 212,142 - 3,877 285,291
Liabilities
Deposits by banks - - - - - 5,811 - 5811
Deposits by customers - - - - - 143,893 - 143,893
Derivative financial liabilities 16,775 2,188 - - - - - 18,963
Traging liabilities 46,152 - - - - - - 46,152
Financial liabilities at FVTPL - - 4,423 - - - - 4,423
Debt securities in issue - - - - - 47,758 - 47,758
Other borrowed funds - - - - - 1,352 - 1,352
Subnrd:nated liabilities - - - - - 5,597 - 5,597
Other liabilities - - - - - 2,263 60 2,323
Provisicns - - - - - - 91 91
Current tax liabilities - - - - - - 300 300
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - - 336 336
Retirement benefit obligations - - - - - - 1,070 1,070
62,927 2,188 4,423 - - 206,674 1,857 278,069
Company
Held at fair value Held at amortised cost Non- Total
31 December 2009 Trading Derivatives Designated Available- Loans and Financial financial
held for  at fair value for-sale receivables liabilities at assets /
hedging through amortised cost liabilities
P&L
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Cash & balances at central banks - - - - 3,266 - - 3,266
Dervative financial instruments 1,256 1,283 - - - - - 2,539
Financial assets designated at FV - - 37,145 . - - - 37,145
Loans and advances to banks - - - - 109,658 - - 109,658
Loans and advances to cust.s - - - - 131,749 - - 131,749
Availakre-for-sale securities - - - 30 - - - 30
Loans and receivables securities - - - - 2 - - 2
Investnrent in associates - - - - - - 76 76
Investnent in subsidiaries - - - - - - 7,038 7,038
intangible assets - - - - - - 552 552
Propery, plant and equipment - - - - - - 561 561
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 428 428
Other assets - - - - 513 " 138 651
1,256 1,283 37,145 30 245,188 - 8,793 293,695
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Company
Held at fair value Held at amortised cost Non- Total
31 December 2009 Trading Derivatives Designated  Available- Loans and Financial financial
held for  at fair value for-sale receivables liabilities at assets /
hedging through amortised cost liabilities
P&L
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Liabilities
Depcsits by banks - - - - - 116,414 - 116,414
Deposits by customers - - - - - 159,187 - 159,187
Derivative financial liabilities 3,001 352 - - - - - 3,353
Other borrowed funds - - - - - 539 - 539
Subordinated liabilities - - - - - 5.580 - 5,580
Other liaoilities - - - - - 1,611 - 1,611
Provisions - - - - - - 74 74
Current tax liabilities - - - - - - 92 92
Retirement benefit obligations - - - - - - 922 922
3,001 352 - - - 283,331 1,088 287,772
Group
Held at fair value Held at amortised cost Non- Total
31 December 2008 Trading Derivatives ~ Designated  Available- Loans and Financial financial
held for  at fair value for-sale receivables liabilities at assets /
hedging through P&L amortised cost liabilities
fm fm fm fm fm fm fm fm
Assets
Cast & nalances at central banks - - - - 4,017 - - 4,017
Trad ng assets 26,264 - - - - - - 26,264
Derivative financial instruments 31,713 3,412 - - - - - 35,125
Financial assets designated at FV - - 11,377 - - - - 11,377
Loars and advances to banks - - - - 16,001 - - 16,001
Loars and advances to customers - - - - 180,176 - - 180,176
Avai able-for-sale securities - - - 2,663 - - 2,663
Loars and receivables securities - - - - 14,107 - - 14,107
Macro hedge of interest rate risk - - - - 2,188 - - 2,188
Investment in associates - - - - - - 35 35
intangible assets - - - - - - 1,347 1,347
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 854 854
Operating lease assets - - - - - - 348 348
Current tax assets - - - - - - 212 212
Deferre tax assets - - - - - - 1,274 1,274
Other assets - - - - 1,200 - 122 1,322
57,977 3,412 11,377 2,663 217,689 - 4,192 297,310
Liabilities
Deposits by banks - - - - - 14,488 - 14,488
Deposits by customers - - - - - 130,245 - 130,245
Derivative financial liabilities 25,420 2,390 - - - - - 27,810
Tracing liabilities 40,738 - - - - - - 40,738
Financial Habilities at FVTPL - - 5,673 - - - - 5,673
Debt securities in issue - - - - - 58,511 - 58,511
Other torrowed funds - - - - - 2,076 - 2,076
Subord nated liabilities - - - - - 6,787 - 6,787
Other liabilities - - - - - 2,303 39 2,342
Provisicns - - - - - - 207 207
Curren- tax liabilities - - - - - 518 518
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 405 405
Retirement benefit obligations - - - - - - 813 813
66,158 2,390 5,673 - - 214,410 1,982 290,613
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Company
Held at fair value Held at amortised cost Non- Total
31 December 2008 Trading  Derivatives  Designated at Available- Loans and Financial financial
held for fair value for-sale receivables liabilities at assets /
hedging through P&L amortised cost liabilities
fm fm fm £m fm fm fm fm
Assets
Cash & balances at central banks - - - - 2,456 - - 2,456
Derwative financial instruments 2,112 623 - - - - - 2,735
Financial assets designated at FV - - 47,525 - - - - 47,525
Loans and advances to banks - - - - 116,486 - - 116,486
Loans and advances to cust.s - - - - 123,319 - - 123,319
Avalable-for-sale securities - - - 25 - - - 25
Investment in associates - - - - - - 741 741
Investment in subsidiaries - - - - - - 5,147 5,147
intangiole assets - - - - - - 484 484
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 569 569
Current tax assets - - - - - - 194 194
Defarred tax assets - - - - - - 458 458
Other assets - - - - 940 - 47 987
2,112 623 47,525 25 243,201 - 7,640 301,126
Liabilities
Deposits by banks - - - - - 124,846 - 124,846
Deposits by customers - - - - - 155,466 - 155,466
Derivarive financial liabilities 3,672 1,721 - - - - - 5,393
Trading liabilities 739 - - - - - - 739
Other norrowed funds - - - - - 905 - 905
Subordinated liabilities - - - - - 7.030 - 7,030
Other liabilities - - - - - 1,283 - 1,283
Previsions - - - - - - 99 99
Current tax liabilities - - - - - - 128 128
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - - 6 6
Retirement benefit obligations - - - - - - 797 797
4,411 1,721 - - - 289,530 1,030 296,692
The following tables analyse the fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value in the balance sheet:
Group
2009 Carrying value Fair value  Surplus/{(deficit)
£m £m fm
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 4,163 4,163 -
Loans and advances to banks 9,151 9,151 -
Loans and advances 1o customers 186,804 192,164 5,360
Lcans and receivables securities 9,898 9,447 (451)
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 5811 5.811 -
Deposits by customers 143,893 144,608 (715)
Debt securities in issue 47,758 47,483 275
Other borrowed funds 1,352 1,729 (377
Subordinated liabilities 5,597 6,173 (576)
Company
2009 Carrying value Fair value  Surplus/(deficit)
£m £m £m
Assets
Cast and balances at central banks 3,266 3,266 -
Laars and advances to banks 109,658 111,131 1,473
Loars and advances to customers 131,749 136,518 4,769
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 116,414 119,341 (2,927)
Depnsits by customers 159,187 159,814 (627)
Other borrowed funds 539 565 (26)
<ubardinated liabilities 5,580 6,494 (914)

175



Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Group
2008 Carrying value Fair value Surplus/(deficit)
£m fm fm
Assets

Cash an< balances at central banks 4,017 4,017 -
Loans and advances to banks 16,001 16,202 201
Loans and advances to customers 180,176 136,233 6,057
Loans and receivables securities 14,107 13,010 (1,097)

Liabilities
Depcsits by banks 14,488 14,473 15
Depasits by customers 130,245 130,818 (573)
Debt securities in issue 58,511 57,530 981
Other borrowed funds 2,076 926 1,150
Subordinated liabilities 6,787 5,137 1,650
Company
2008 Carrying value Fair value SurplusAdeficit)
fm fm fm

Assets

Cash and balances at central banks 2,456 2,456 -
Loans and advances to banks 116,411 116,777 366
Loans and advances to customers 123,319 128,148 4,829

Liabilities
Deposits. by banks 124,846 126,612 (1,766)
Deposits by customers 155,466 156,016 (550)
Other berrowed funds 905 485 420
Subordirated liabilities 7,030 4,708 2,322

The surplus/(deficit) in the table above represents the surplus/(deficit) of fair value compared to the carrying amount of those
financial instruments for which fair values have been estimated. The carrying value above of any financial assets and liabilities that
are designated as hedged items in a portfolio (or macro) fair value hedge relationship excludes gains and losses attributable to the
hedqed risk, as this is presented as a single separate line item on the balance sheet.

Fair value measurement

The far value of financial instruments is the estimated amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. If a quoted market price is available for an
instrument, the fair value is calculated based on the market price. Where quoted market prices are not available, fair value is
determined using pricing models which use a mathematical methodology based on accepted financial theories, depending on the
product type and its components. Further information on fair value measurement can be found in the Group’s Accounting Policies
from pages 109 to 123 and the Valuation techniques section below on page 179 to the Consclidated Financial Statements.

Fair value management
The fair value exposures, as tabled above, are managed by using a combination of hedging derivatives and offsetting on balance
sheet positions. The approach to specific categories of financial instruments is described below.

Assets:
Cash and balances at central banks
The carrying amount of cash and balances at central banks is deemed a reasonable approximation of the fair value.

Loans and advances to banks

The far value of loans and advances to banks has been estimated using the same valuation technigue for financial instruments
accounted for at fair value as described in the Valuation techniques section below on page 179 to the Consofidated Financial
Staterrents.

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to personal customers are made both at variable and at fixed rates. As there is no active secondary market in
the UK for such loans and advances, there is no reliable market value available for such a significant portfolio.

a) Variable rate

The Directors believe that the carrying value of the variable rate loans may be assumed to be their fair value.

b) Fixed rate

Certain of the loans secured on residential properties are at a fixed rate for a limited period, typically two to five years from their
commencement. At the end of this period these loans revert to the relevant variable rate. The excess of fair value over carrying
value of each of these loans has been estimated by reference to the market rates available at the balance sheet date for similar
loans of maturity equal to the remaining fixed period.
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Loan and receivable securities
These debt securities are valued with the assistance of valuations prepared by an independent, specialist valuation firm.

Liabilities:
Deposits by banks
The carrying amount is deemed a reasonable approximation of the fair value, because they are short term in nature.

Deposits by customers

The majority of deposit liabilities are payable on demand and therefore can be deemed short term in nature with the fair value
equal to the carrying value. However, given the long-term and continuing nature of the relationships with the Group’s customers,
the Directors believe there is significant value to the Group in this source of funds. Certain of the deposit liabilities are at a fixed
rate until maturity. The deficit of fair value over carrying value of these liabilities has been estimated by reference to the market
rates available at the balance sheet date for similar deposit liabilities of similar maturities.

The fair value of such deposits liabilities has been estimated using the same valuation technique for financial instruments

accounted for at fair value as described in the Valuation techniques section below on page 179 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Debt securities in issue and subordinated liabilities

Where reliable prices are available, the fair value of debt securities in issue and subordinated liabilities has been calculated using
quoted market prices. Other market values have been determined using the same valuation technique for financial instruments
accounted for at fair value as described in the Valuation techniques section below on page 179 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Intra Group balances

Included in the asset and liability categories on the Company balance sheet are outstanding intra group balances. The fair value of
these balances has been determined using the same valuation technique for financial instruments accounted for at fair value as
described in the Valuation techniques section below on page 179 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Fair value valuation bases

The following tables summarise the fair values at 31 December 2009 and 2008 of the financial asset and liability classes accounted
for at fair value, analysed by the valuation methodology used by the Group to determine their fair value. The tables also disclose
the percentages that the recorded fair values of financial assets and liabilities represent of the total assets and liabilities,
respectively, that are recorded at fair value in the balance sheet:

At 31 December 2009 Internal models based on
Quoted prices in  Market observable Significant Valuation
Balance sheet category active markets data unobservabie data Total technique
£m % £m % £m % £m %

Assets

Trading assets Loans and advances to banks - - 5,252 8 - - 5.252 8 A
Loans and advances to customers - - 10,628 15 - - 10,628 15 A
Debt securities 15,932 23 - - - - 15,932 23 -
Equity securities 1.471 2 - - 7 - 1,478 2 B

Derivative assets Exchange rate contracts - - 4,088 6 37 - 4,125 6 A
Interest rate contracts 4 - 17,223 25 - - 17,227 25 A&C
Equity & credit contracts 258 - 1,060 2 157 - 1,475 2 B

Financ:al assets at FVTPL Loans and advances to customers - - 6,116 9 263 - 6,379 9 A
Debt securities - - 4,498 7 1,481 2 5,979 9 A

Available-for-sale financial Debt securities 747 1 - - - - 747 1 -

assets Equity securities 20 - 30 - - - 50 - B

Total assets at fair value 18,432 26 48,895 72 1,945 2 69,272 100

Liabilities

Trading liabilities Deposits by banks - - 40,824 59 - - 40,824 59 A
Deposits by customers - - 4,115 6 - - 4,115 6 A
Short positions 1,071 2 - - - - 1,071 2 -
Debt securities in issue - - 142 - - - 142 - A

Deriva~ive liabilities Exchange rate contracts - - 521 1 - - 521 1 A
Interest rate contracts - - 16,208 23 - - 16,208 23 A&C
Equity & credit contracts 29 - 1,945 3 260 - 2,234 3 B

Financal liabilities at FVTPL Deposits by banks - - 45 - - - 45 - A
Deposits by customers - - 12 - - - 12 - A
Debt securities in issue - - 4,257 6 109 - 4,366 6 A

Total liabilities at fair value 1,100 2 68,069 98 369 - 69,538 100
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1
At 31 December 2008™" internal models based on
Quoted prices in ~ Market observable Significant Valuation
Balancz sheet category active markets data unobservable data Total technique
fm % fm % fm % fm %o
Assets
Trading assets Loans and advances to banks - - 4,947 7 - - 4,947 7 A
Loans and advances to customers - - 1.310 2 - - 1,310 2 A
Debt securities 16,80 23 - - - - 16,801 23 -
1
Equity securities 671 1 - - 37 - 708 1 B
Derivative assets Exchange rate contracts - - 10,788 15 5 - 10,793 15 A
Interest rate contracts 232 - 21,549 29 - - 21,781 29 A&C
Equity & credit contracts 843 1 1,559 2 149 - 2,551 3 B
Financal essets at FVTPL Loans and advances to customers - - 6.405 9 282 - 6,687 9 A
Debt securities - - 343 - 4,347 7 4,690 7 A
Available--or-sale financial Debt securities 2,618 4 - - - - 2,618 4 -
assets Equity securities 10 - 35 - - - 45 -
Total asse’s at fair value 2117 29 46,936 64 4,820 7 72,931 100
5
Liabilities
Trading liabiities Deposits by banks - - 34,341 47 - - 34,341 47 A
Deposits by customers - - 4,622 6 - - 4,622 6 A
Short positions 751 1 - - - - 751 1 -
Debt securities in issue - - 1,024 1 - - 1,024 1 A
Derivative liabilities Exchange rate contracts - - 1,680 2 - - 1,680 2 A
Interest rate contracts - - 21,489 30 - - 21,489 30 A&C
Equity & credit contracts 803 1 3,669 5 169 - 4,641 6 B
Financial habilities at FVTPL ~ Deposits by banks - - 153 - - - 153 A
Deposits by customers - - 252 - - - 252 - A
Debt securities in issue - - 5,021 7 247 - 5,268 7 A
Total liabilities at fair value 1,554 2 72,251 98 416 - 74,221 100

(1) Amanded for the transfer of Alliance & Leicester plc to the Company as described in Note 47

The following tables presents the fair values at 31 December 2009 and 2008 of the above financial assets and liabilities by product,
analysed by the valuation methodology used by the Group to determine their fair value. The tables also disclose the percentages
that the recorded fair values of products represent of the total assets and liabilities, respectively, that are recorded at fair value in
the balance sheet:

At 31 December 2009
internal models based on

Significant
Quoted prices in Market unobservable
Product active markets observable data data Total
£m % £m % £m % £m %
Assets
Government and government-guaranteed debt securities 3,061 5 - - - - 3,061 5
Asset-tacked securities - - 4,498 7 1,481 2 5,979 9
Floating rate notes 11,128 16 - - - - 11,128 16
Other debt securities 2,490 4 - - 263 - 2,753 4
UK Social housing association loans - - 6,116 9 - - 6,116 9
Term deposits and money market instruments - - 15,881 23 - - 15,881 23
Exchange rate derivatives - - 4,088 6 37 - 4,125 6
Interes: rate derivatives 4 - 17,223 25 - - 17,227 25
Equity & credit derivatives 258 - 1,060 1 157 - 1,475 1
Ordinary shares and similar securities 1,491 2 30 - 7 - 1,528 2
18,432 27 48,896 71 1,945 2 69,273 100
Liabilities
Excnar ge rate derivatives - - 521 1 - - 521 1
Interest rate derivatives - - 16,208 23 - - 16,208 23
Equity & credit derivatives 29 - 1,945 3 260 - 2,234 3
Ordinary shares and similar securities - - - - - - - -
Deposits and debt securities in issue 1,071 2 49,395 71 - - 50,466 73
Debt sacurities in issue - - - - 109 - 109 -
1,100 2 68,069 98 369 - 69,538 100

178



Financial Statements
Notes to the Financial Statements continued

At 31 December 2008
Internal models based on

Quoted prices in Market Significant
Product active markets observable data  unobservable data Total
fm % £m % fm % fm %
Assets
Governnent and government-guaranteed debt securities 9,804 14 - - - - 9,804 14
Asset-backed secunities - - 343 - 4,347 6 4,690 6
Float:ng rate notes 5,101 7 - - - - 5,101 7
Other debt securities 4,514 7 - - 282 - 4,796 7
UK Sacial housing association loans - - 6,405 8 - - 6,405 8
Term deposits and money market instruments - - 6,257 9 - - 6,257 9
Exchange rate derivatives - - 10,788 15 5 - 10,793 15
interest rate derivatives 232 - 21,549 30 - - 21,781 30
Equity & credit derivatives 843 1 1,559 2 149 - 2,551 3
Ordinary shares and similar securities 681 1 35 - 37 - 753 1
21,175 30 46,936 64 4,820 6 72,931 100
Liabilities
Exchange rate derivatives - - 1,680 3 - - 1,680 3
Interest rate derivatives - - 21,489 29 - - 21,489 29
Equity & credit derivatives 803 1 3,669 5 169 - 4,641 6
Ordinary shares and similar securities 751 1 - - - - 751 1
Deposits, and debt securities in issue - - 45,413 61 247 - 45,660 61
Debt securities in issue - - - - - - - -
1,554 2 72,251 98 416 74,221 100

(1) Amended for the transfer of Alllance & Leicester plc to the Company as described in Note 47

Valuation techniques

The main valuation techniques employed in the Group’s internal models to measure the fair value of the financial instruments
disclosed above at 31 December 2009 and 2008 are set out below. In substantially all cases, the principal inputs into these models
are derived from observable market data. The Group did not make any material changes to the valuation techniques and internal
models 1t used during the years ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007, except for the technique applied in 2009 to the
holdings of Portuguese mortgage-backed securities classified as FVTPL — Debt securities, described on page 182 for Instrument 7.

A In the valuation of financial instruments requiring static hedging (for example interest rate and currency derivatives) and
in the valuation of loans and advances and deposits, the ‘present value’ method is used. Expected future cash flows are
discounted using the interest rate curves of the applicable currencies. The interest rate curves are generally observable
market data and reference yield curves derived from quoted interest rates in appropriate time bandings, which match
the timings of the cashflows and maturities of the instruments.

B In the valuation of equity financial instruments requiring dynamic hedging (principally equity securities, options and
other structured instruments), proprietary stochastic volatility models are used. These types of models are widely
accepted in the financial services industry. Observable market inputs are used in these models to generate variables such
as the bid-offer spread, foreign currency exchange rates, credit risk, volatility, correlation between indices and market
fiquidity as appropriate. In limited circumstances, other inputs may be used in these models that are based on data
other than observable market data, such as the Halifax's UK House Price Index (‘HPI') volatility, HPI forward growth, HPI
spot rate, and mortality.

C In the valuation of financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk that require either static or dynamic hedging (such
as interest rate futures, caps and floors, and options), the present value method (futures), Black’s model (caps/floors)
and the Hul/White and Markov functional models (Bermudan options) are used. These types of models are widely
accepted in the financial services industry. The significant inputs used in these models are observable market data,
including appropriate interest rate curves, volatilities, correlations and exchange rates. In limited circumstances, other
inputs may be used in these models that are based on data other than observable market data, such as the Halifax’s UK
House Price Index (‘HPI") volatility, HPI forward growth, HPI spot rate, mortality, and the specific credit spread for that
instrument.

In determining fair value, the Group also considers the credit risk of its counterparties, as well as its own creditworthiness, on ali
over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives in the trading book. The Group attempts to mitigate credit risk to third parties by entering into
netting and collateral arrangements. Net counterparty exposure (counterparty positions netted by offsetting transactions and both
cash and securities collateral) is then valued for counterparty creditworthiness and this resultant value is incorporated into the fair
value of the respective instruments.

The credit risk adjustment is measured as a lifetime expected loss for each counterparty based on the probability of
default the loss given default and the expected exposure of the OTC derivative position with the counterparty.

The probability of default is calculated at the counterparty level through the use of internal rating models. The loss given
default (“LGD") is calculated at the facility level and takes into account the counterparty characteristics as well as the instrument
traded. Credit ratings and LGD are updated by the credit team as new relevant information becomes available and at periodic
reviews performed at least annually.

The expected exposure is calculated on a portfolic level and is based on the underlying risks of the portfolio. The main
drivers of the expected exposure are the size of the risk position with the counterparty along with the prevailing market
envirorment. The total credit risk adjustment on the Group’s counterparties was £7m (2008: £6m).
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Residential property derivative contracts, where the underlying is a specific property, are referenced to regional property indices for
valuation. The indexing of the contracts is appropriate due to the number and wide geographical dispersion of the portfolio. in
these circumstances, an adjustment to fair value is made to take account of specific risk against the index. llliquid commercial
property assets are written down with reference to actual and anticipated declines in the commercial property index to reflect a
realistic estimate of realisable value.

Broker quotes and external consensus market data are used for validating the fair values of some items in the trading
porttolio, or designated at fair value through profit or loss. Al derivatives pricing models are validated independently by the
Quantitative Risk Group (‘'QRG’). A validation report is produced for each model-derived payment that assesses the mathematical
assumptions behind the model and the implementation of the model and its integration within the trading system. Where there is
observanle market data the models calibrate to market. Where pricing data is unobservable then the input parameters are regularly
reviewed by QRG. The source of pricing data is considered as part of the process that determines the classification of the level of a
financial instrument.

The Group also considers its own creditworthiness when determining the fair value of an instrument, including over-the-

counter (‘OTC') derivative instruments and financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss if the Group believes market
participants would take that into account when transacting the respective instrument. The approach to measuring the impact of
the Group's credit risk on an instrument is done in the same manner as for third party credit risk. The impact of the Group's credit
risk is considered when calculating the fair value of an instrument, even when credit risk is not readily observable such as in oT1C
derivatives contracts. The Group has not realised any profit or loss on revaluing fair values of derivatives to reflect its own
crecitworthiness. If the Group had reflected such adjustments it would not have had a material impact on the valuations.
The far values of the financial instruments arising from the Group's internal models take into account, among other things,
contract terms and observable market data, which include such factors as bid-offer spread, interest rates, credit risk, exchange
rates, the quoted market price of raw materials and equity securities, volatility and prepayments. The main assumptions taken into
account when internal models use information other than market data can be found in the table below. In all cases, when it is not
possible to derive a valuation for a particular feature of an instrument, management uses judgement to determine the fair value of
the particular feature. In exercising this judgement, a variety of tools are used including proxy observable data, historical data and
extrapolation technigues. Extrapolation techniques take into account behavioural characteristics of equity markets that have been
observed over time, and for which there is a strong case to support an expectation of a continuing trend in the future. Estimates
are calibrated to observable market prices when they become available.

The estimates thus obtained could vary if other valuation methods or assumptions were used. The Group believes its
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants. Nevertheless, the use of different valuation
methods or assumptions, including imprecision in estimating unobservable market inputs, 10 determine the fair value of certain
financial instruments could result in different estimates of fair value at the reporting date and the amount of gain or loss recorded
for a particular instrument. Most of the valuation models are not significantly subjective, because they can be tested and, if
necessary, recalibrated by the internal calculation of and subsequent comparison to market prices of actively traded securities,
where available.

Internal models based on observable market data
During 2008 and 2009, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 financial instruments.

Internal models based on information other than market data

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments valued using internal models based on information other than market
data together with the subsequent valuation technique used for each type of instrument. Each instrument is initially valued at
transaction price:

Balance sheet value Amount recognised in
income/(expense)

2009 2008 2009 2008 20
Balance sheet line item Category Financial instrument product type £m fm £m £m fm
1. Trading assets Equity securities Property unit trusts 7 37 (1) 16 -
2. Derivative assets Exchange rate contracts Cross-currency swaps 37 5 14 5 4
3. Derivative assets Equity and credit contracts__Reversionary property interests 73 77 (4) 3 17
4, Derivative assets Equity contracts Options and forwards 84 72 (5) 91 11
5. FVTPL Loans and advances to Roll-up mortgage portfolio 262 282 (36) 58 12

customers

6. FVTPL Debt securities Reversionary property securities 263 265 (4) 1 33
7. FVTPL Debt securities Portuguese mortgage-backed securities - 2,474 - (144) (62)
Other asset-backed securities 1,169 1,608 62 (184) (10)
8. FVTPL Debt securities Collateralised synthetic obligations (CSOs) 50 - - - -
9. Derivative liabilities  Equity contracts Options and forwards (260) (169)  (82) (94 (14
10. FVTPL Debt securities in issue Non-vanilla debt securities (109) (247 (23) (5) 4
Total net assets 1,576 4,404 - - -
Total income/(expense) - - (79) (253) (13)

T Arrended for the transter of Alliance & Leicester pic to the Company as described in Note 47
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Valuation technique

1. Trading assets - Equity securities

These unit trusts are valued using Net Asset Values, which are regular third party asset valuations, with an adjustment for the
estimated discount to asset value inherent in current similar market prices, reflecting the specific asset characteristics and degree of
leverage in each unit trust.

2. Derivative assets - Exchange rate contracts
These derivatives are valued using a valuation model with interest rates, foreign exchange rates and long-dated foreign exchange

volatility as inputs to derive valuations. Long-dated foreign exchange volatility is extrapolated from the shorter-dated foreign
exchange volatilities which are directly observable in the market.

3. Derivative assets - Equity and credit contracts

These reversionary property derivatives are valued using a probability weighted set of the Halifax’s UK House Price Index ("HPY)
forward prices. These are determined using HPI Spot Rates adjusted to reflect estimated forward growth. Launched in 1984, the
Halifax House Price Index is based on the lending of the UK's largest mortgage lender and provides the longest unbroken monthly
data series of any UK housing index. The indices calculated are standardised and represent the price of a typically transacted house.
Regional and national HPI indices are published, which are similar except that the former reflects the national HPI indices
disaggregated into 12 UK regions and is published quarterly. The national indices are published monthly.

The inputs used to determine the value of the reversionary property derivatives are HPI spot, HPI forward growth and mortality
rates. The principal pricing parameter is HPI forward growth.

HPI Spot Rate

The regional HPI spot rate (which is observable market data) is only published on specific quarterly dates. In between these dates,
its vaiue is estimated by applying the changes in the national HPI spot rate (which is also observable market data and published
monthly) to the most recently available regional HPI spot rate. An adjustment is made to reflect the specific property risk i.e. the
difference in the actual regional composition of the property underlying the Group's reversionary interest portfolio and the
composition of the published regional indices. This adjustment is based on the average historical deviation of price changes of the
Group's actual property portfolio from that of the published indices.

HPI Forward Growth Rate

Long-dated HPI forward growth rate is not directly observable in the market but is estimated from broker quotes and traded
forward contracts. A specific spread is applied to the long-dated forward growth rate to reflect the uncertainty surrounding long-
dated data. This spread is calculated by analysing the historical volatility of the HPI, whilst incorporating mean reversion. An
adjustment is made to reflect the specific property risk as for the HPI spot rate above.

Mortality Rate

Mortality rates are obtained from the PNMAQO and PNFAQO Continuous Mortality Investigation Tables published by the UK
Institute and Faculty of Actuaries. These mortality rates are adjusted by acceleration rates to reflect the mortality profile of the
holders of Group’s reversionary property products underlying the derivatives.

4, Derivative assets - Equity contracts

There are three types of derivatives within this category:

European derivatives (vanilla call and put options)

These derivatives are valued using a modified Black-Scholes model where the HPI index is log-normally distributed with the forward
rates determined from the HP! forward growth.

Asian options

Asian (or average value) options are valued using a modified Black-Scholes model, with an amended strike price and volatility
assumption to account for the average exercise period, through a closed form adjustment that reflects the strike price relative to
the distribution of stock prices at each relevant date. This is also known as the Curran model.

Forward contracts

Forward contracts are valued using a standard forward pricing model.

The inputs used to determine the value of the above instruments are HP} spot rate, HPI forward growth rate and HPI volatility. The
principal pricing parameter is HP! forward growth rate. Discussion of the HPI spot and HPI forward growth rates for these financial
instruments is the same as for instrument 3 above.,

HPI Volatility

Long-dated HPI volatility is not directly observable in the market but is estimated from the most recent traded values. An
adjustment is applied to the long-dated HPI volatility rate to reflect the uncertainty surrounding long-dated data. This adjustment is
based on the empirical standard deviation of historical volatility over a range of time horizons.
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5. FVTPL - Loans and advances to customers

Roll-up mortgages are an equity release scheme, where the property owner takes out a loan secured against their home. The loan
is repaid upon the owner’s vacation of the property. The value of the loan is only repaid from the value of the property. This is
known as a “no negative pledge”. The Group suffers a loss if the sale proceeds from the property are insufficient to repay loan.
These roll-up mortgages are valued using a probability-weighted set of European option prices (puts) determined using the Black-
Scholes model, where the put represents the values of the no negative pledges.

The inputs used to determine the value of these instruments are HPI spot, HPI forward growth, HPI volatility, mortality
rates and repayment rates. The principal pricing parameter is HPI forward growth. Discussion of the HPI spot rate, HPI forward
growth rate, and mortality rates for this financial instrument is the same as for Instrument 3 above. Discussion of the HP! volatility
rate is the same as for Instrument 4 above.

Repayment rates

The costs to the Group arising from early repayment by customers (inherent specifically to this financial instrument) are estimated
from prices of swaptions which reflect the costs associated with unwinding the swap hedges held by the Group against these roll-
up mortgages in the event of early repayment. Early repayment most typically occurs following a fall in market interest rates.
Prepayment rates were taken from the academic paper ‘Pricing and Risk Capital in the Equity Release Market’, presented to the
Institute and Faculty of Actuaries in 2007.

6. FVTPL — Debt securities
Reversionary property securities are an equity release scheme, where the property owner receives an upfront lump sum in return
for payng a fixed percentage of the sales proceeds of the property when the owner vacates the property. These reversionary
property securities are valued using a probability-weighted set of HPI forward prices.

The inputs used to determine the value of these instruments are HPI spot, HPI forward growth and mortality rates. The
principal pricing parameter is HPI forward growth. The valuation methodology for these securities is similar to Instrument 3 above.

7. FVTPL - Debt securities

There are three types of debt securities within this category:

Portuguese mortgage-backed securities

In December 2009, Euro 190m of the Group's holdings of these securities were purchased by the issuer. As a result, the Group’s
remaining positions in these securities have been transferred to Level 2. Prior to 2009, these securities were valued using a
valuation model with reference to the most relevant generic curve {in this case, Portuguese residential mortgage-backed securities)
from a consensus pricing service and an assumption with respect to the specific credit spread for that instrument as inputs 1o
derive valuations.

Other asset-backed securities

These other asset-backed securities consist of residential mortgage backed securities, securities backed by small business and
automctive loans and other collateralised debt obligations almost all of which are AAA rated, and issued by Santander entities.
Each instrument was valued with reference to the price from a consensus pricing service. This is then corroborated against the
price from another consensus pricing service due to the lack of depth in the number of available market quotes. An average price
is used where there is a more than an insignificant difference between the two sources.

8. FVTPL - Debt securities
These debt securities are valued using valuations prepared by an independent, specialist valuation firm.

9. Derivative liabilities - Equity and credit contracts
These derivatives are the same as Instrument 4 with the exception that they have a negative fair value.

10. FVTPL - Debt securities in issue

These ebt securities in issue are valued using a three-factor Gaussian Model. The three factors used in the valuation are domestic
interest rates, foreign interest rates and foreign exchange rates. The correlations between the factors are assumed to be zero
within the valuation.

The Hull-White approach is used for estimating the future distribution of domestic and foreign zero-coupon rates,
constructed from the relevant yield curves. A Geometric Brownian Motion model is used for estimating the future distribution of
spot foreign exchange rates. The foreign exchange and interest rate volatilities are the most crucial pricing parameters; the model
calibrates to the relevant swaption volatility surface.

Unrecognised gains as a result of the use of valuation models using unobservable inputs (“Day One profits”)

The table below shows the amount that has yet to be recognised in the income statement that relates to the difference between
the transaction price (i.e. the fair value at initial recognition) and the amount that would have arisen had valuation models using
unobservable inputs been used on initial recognition, less amounts subsequently recognised. This is calculated and reported on a
portfolio basis:

2009 2008 2007

£m £m £m

At * January 55 45 18
New transactions 42 12 27
Amounts recognised in profit or loss during the year (5) (2) -
At 31 December 92 55 45
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Internal valuation review

In all instances, risk control teams review positions to assess a realistic realisable value for the position and develop a methodology
for any adjustment to fair value which marks the position to that value using information relevant to that asset. Consideration is
given to the quality of the information available that provides the current mark-to-model valuation and estimates of how different
these valuations could be on an actual trade, taking into consideration how active the market is. For spot assets that cannot be
sold due to illiquidity, forward estimates are discounted to provide an estimate of a realisable value over time. All adjustments for
illiquid positions are regularly reviewed to reflect changing market conditions.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
The following table provides a reconciliation of the movement between opening and closing balances of Level 3 financial
instruments, measured at fair value using a valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs:

Assets Liabilities
Trading Derivatives Fair value Total Derivatives Fair value Total
Assets through profit through profit
or loss or loss
£m £m £m £m £m fm £m
At 1 January 2009 37 154 4,629 4,820 (169) (247) (416)
Total gairs/(losses) recognised in profit/(loss):
- Fair value movements 1) 5 22 26 (82) (23) (105)
- Foreign axchange and other movements (3) 43 (106) (66) (18) 5 (13)
Purchasesfissues - - 30 30 - - -
Sales (26) - (121) (147) - - -
Settlements - (8) (499) (507) 9 156 165
Transters in - - 50 50 - - -
Transfers out - - (2,261) (2,261) - - -
At 31 December 2009 7 194 1,744 1,945 (260) (109) (369)
Total gairs/(losses) recognised in profit/(loss) (4) 48 (84) (40) (100) (18) (118)
relating to those assets and liabilities held at
the end of the year
Assets Liabilities
Trading Derivatives Fair value Total Derivatives Fair value Total
Assets through profit through profit
or loss or loss
fm £m fm fm fm fm fm
At 1 January 2008 - 118 4,515 4,633 (148) (276) (424)
Total gains/(losses) recognised in profit/(loss):
- Fair value movements 16 99 (269) (154) (94) (5) (99)
- Foreign exchange and other movements - (88) 286 198 73 17 90
Purchases 21 49 139 209 - - -
Settlements - (24) (42) (66) - 17 17
At 31 December 2008 37 154 4,629 4,820 (169) (247) (416)
Total gains/(losses) recognised in profit/loss) 16 11 17 a4 (21 12 (9)

relating to those assets and liabilities held at
the end cf the year

Financial instrument assets and liabilities at 31 December 2009
Financiai instrument assets valued using internal models based on information other than market data were 2% (2008: 7%) of
total assets measured at fair value and 0.7% (2008: 2%) of total assets at 31 December 2009.

Trading assets valued using internal models based on information other than market data decreased in 2009 principally
due to assets being sold.

Derivatives valued using internal models based on information other than market data increased in 2009 principally due
to gains reflecting changes in foreign exchange rates.

Assets designated at fair value through profit or loss valued using internal models based on information other than
market data decreased in 2009 principally due to settlements and transfers to Level 2. During December 2009, euro 190m of the
Group's holdings of AAA-rated prime mortgage-backed securities were sold to the issuer. As a result, the Group’s remaining
positions in these securities of £2,261m were transferred to Level 2. During 2009, there were acquisitions of £30m of financial
instrument assets valued using internal models based on information other than market data.

Financial instrument liabilities valued using internal models based on information other than market data were 0.5%
(2008: 0.6%) of total liabilities measured at fair value and 0.1% (2008: 0.1%) of total liabilities at 31 December 2009.

Derivative liabilities valued using internal models based on information other than market data increased in 2009
principaily due to losses reflecting changes in credit spreads, the HPI index and foreign exchange rates.

Liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss valued using internal models based on information other than
market data decreased in 2009 principally due to maturities of debt securities in issue.
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Financial instrument assets and liabilities at 31 December 2008
Financial instrument assets valued using internal models based on information other than market data were 7% (2007: 6%) of
total assets measured at fair value and 2% (2007: 2%) of total assets at 31 December 2008.

Financial instrument assets valued using internal models based on information other than market data increased in 2008
principally due to exchange rate movements on euro-denominated investments, During 2008, there were no sales of financial
instrument assets valued using internal models based on information other than market data.

Financial instrument liabilities valued using internal models based on information other than market data were 0.6%
(2007: 1%) of total liabilities measured at fair value and 0.1% (2007: 0.2%) of total liabilities at 31 December 2008.

Liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss valued using internal models based on information other than
market data decreased in 2008 principally due to maturities of debt securities in issue and changes in foreign exchange rates.

Gains and losses for the year ended 31 December 2009
Losses of £4m in respect of trading assets valued using internal models based on information other than market data principally
reflected the lack of market liquidity during the year.

Gains of £48m in respect of derivatives assets valued using internal models based on information other than market data
prircipally reflected movements in foreign exchange rates.

Losses of £84m in respect of assets designated at fair value through profit or loss valued using internal models based on
inforreation other than market data principally reflected changes in foreign exchange rates partly offset by an increase in the value
of the prime securities due to tightening of credit spreads of asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities.

Losses of £100m in respect of derivatives liabilities valued using internal models pbased on information other than market
data principally reflected changes in credit spreads, the HPI index and foreign exchange rates.

Losses of £18m in respect of liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss valued using internal models based
on information other than market data principally reflected changes in foreign exchange and interest rates. They are fully matched
with derivatives.

Gains and losses on assets and liabilities classified as held for trading are presented in the income statement under “Net trading
and other income”. Fair value changes on long-term debt designated at fair value and related derivatives are presented in the
income statement under ‘Changes in fair value of long-term debt issued and related derivatives’. The income statement line item
‘Net ncome/(expense) from other financial instruments designated at fair value’ captures fair value movements on all other
financial instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives.

Gains and losses for the year ended 31 December 2008
The value of the prime securities classified as FVTPL - Debt securities (Instrument 7) decreased due to an increase in credit spreads
reflecting a general lack of demand for asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities, exacerbated by the collapse of wholesale
funding activity which led to a significant decline in wider asset demand. The Group believes that the fair values of these
instruments have diverged materially from the amounts it currently anticipates realising on maturity, because the mortgages
underlying these securities continue to perform adequately.

The values of the HPI-related loans and advances to customers, debt securities and associated derivatives declined due to
a further lack of market liquidity.

The terms of the instruments presented as FVTPL - debt securities in issue (instrument 9) and related exchange rate
derivatives (instrument 2) are fully matched. The movement in these financial instruments reflects changes in foreign exchange
rates and interest rates.

The Group risk manages the unit trusts using derivative positions valued using quoted prices in active markets, or internal
models based on observable market data. The effects of these risk management activities are not reflected in the gains and losses
included in the table above.

Gains and losses for the year ended 31 December 2007
The value of the prime securities classified as FVTPL - Debt securities (Instrument 7) decreased due to an increase in credit spreads
reflecting reduced demand for asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities.

The values of the HPi-related loans and advances to customers, debt securities and associated derivatives
increased/(decreased) due to a lack of market liquidity.

The terms of the instruments presented as FVTPL - debt securities in issue (instrument 9) and related exchange rate
derivatives (instrument 2) are fully matched. The movement in these financial instruments reflects changes in foreign exchange
rates and interest rates.

Effect of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to reasonably possible alternatives
As discussed above, the fair value of financial instruments are, in certain circumstances, measured using valuation techniques that
ncorporate assumptions that are not evidenced by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument and
are not based on observable market data and, as such require the application of a degree of judgement. Changing one or more of
the inputs to the valuation models to reasonably possible alternative assumptions would change the fair values significantly. The
foliowing table shows the sensitivity of these fair values to reasonably possible alternative assumptions.

Favourable and unfavourable changes are determined on the basis of changes in the value of the instrument as a result of
varying the levels of the unobservable input as described in the table below. The potential effects do not take into effect any
offsetting or hedged positions.
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At 31 December 2009
Reflected in income statement

Balance sheet note line item and product Fair Assumptions shift Favourable  Unfavourable
value changes changes
£m £m £m
1. Trading assets — Equity securities: 7 Estimated discount to asset value 10% 1 (1
— Property unit trusts

3. Derivative assets — Equity and credit contracts. 73 HPI Forward growth rate 1% 11 an
~ Reversionary property derivatives HPI Spot rate 10% 8 (8)
Mortality rate 2yrs 1 )
4. Derivative assets — Equity and credit contracts: 84 HPI Forward growth rate 1% 3 (3
~ Options and forwards HPI Spot rate 10% 3 (2)
HP!I Volatility 1% 1 (1)
5. FVTPL — Loans and advances to customers: 263 HPI Forward growth rate 1% 28 (28)
_ Roli-up mortgage portfolio HPI Spot rate 10% 9 v
HPI Volatility 1% 5 (5)
Mortality rate 2yrs 7 (6)
6. FVTPL - Debt securities: 263 HPI Forward growth rate 1% 24 (24)
_ Revarsionary property securities HP! Spot rate 10% 27 (27)
Mortality rate 2yrs 5 (5)

7. FVTPL - Debt securities:
— Other asset-backed securities 1,169 Credit spread 75 bps 15 (15)
9. Derivative liabilities - Equity and credit contracts: (260) HPI Forward growth rate 1% 14 (14)
- Options and forwards HPI Spot rate 10% 32 (37)
HPI Volatility 1% 2 (2)

No sensitivities are presented for the FVTPL - debt securities in issue (instrument 10) per page 182 and related exchange rate
dervarives (instrument 2) per page 181, as the terms of these instruments are fully matched. As a result, any changes in the
valuat-on of the debt securities in issue would be exactly offset by an equal and opposite change in the valuation of the exchange
rate derivatives. In addition, no sensitivities are presented for the FVTPL — debt securities (instrument 8) as they have been valued by
an independent, specialist valuation firm.

50. Capital management and resources

Th's note reflects the transactions and amounts reported on a basis consistent with the Group’s regulatory filings, and thgrefore
has not been amended to reflect the application of group reconstruction relief to account for the transfer of Alliance & Leicester
plc tc the Company as reflected elsewhere in the financial statements.

Capital management and capital allocation

The 3oard is responsible for capital management strategy and policy and ensuring that capital resources are appropriately
monitored and controlled within regulatory and internal limits. Authority for capital management flows to the Chief Executive and
from him to specific individuals who are members of the Group’s Asset and Liability Management Committee (‘ALCO").

ALCO adopts a centralised capital management approach that is driven by the Group's corporate purpose and strategy.
This approach takes into account the regulatory and commercial environment in which the Group operates, the Group's risk
appetite, the management strategy for each of the Group's material risks (including whether or not capital provides an appropriate
risk mitigant) and the impact of appropriate adverse scenarios and stresses on the Group's capital requirements. This approach is
reviewed annually as part of the Group’s Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAPY).

The Group manages its capital requirements, debt funding and liguidity on the basis of policies and plans reviewed
reguiarly at ALCO and as part of the ICAAP process. To support its capital and senior debt issuance programmes, the Group is
rated on a stand alone basis.

On an ongoing basis, and in accordance with the latest ICAAP review, the Group forecasts its regulatory and internal
capital requirements based on the approved capital volumes allocated to business units as part of the corporate planning process
and the need to have access to a capital buffer. Capital allocation decisions are made as part of planning based on the relative
retusns on capital using both economic and regulatory capital measures. Capital allocations are reviewed in response to changes in
risk appetite and risk management strategy, changes to the commercial environment, changes in key economic indicators or when
additional capital requests are received.

This combination of regulatory and economic capital ratios and limits, internal buffers and restrictions, together with the
lelevant costs of differing capital instruments and a consideration of the various other capital management techniques are used to
shape the most cost-effective structure to fulfil the Group's capital needs.

Capital adequacy

Frem 1 January 2008, the Group has managed its capital on a Basel Il basis. Throughout 2009, the Group held capital over and
above its regulatory requirements, and managed internal capital allocations and targets in accordance with its capital and risk
management policies.
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Group Capital
31 December 2009 31 December 2008
£m fm
Core Tier 1 capital 6,520 4,694
Deductiors from Core Tier 1 capital (1,941) (792)
Total Core Tier 1 capital after deductions 4,579 3,902
Other Tier 1 capital 1,859 1,485
Total Tier 1 capital after deductions 6,438 5,387
Tier 2 capital 5,832 4,766
Deductions from Tier 2 capital (400) (284)
Total Tier 2 capital after deductions 5,432 4,482
Deductions from Tier 1 and Tier 2 - (988)
Total Capital Resources 11.870 8,881

Tier 1 includes audited profits for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 respectively after adjustment to
comply with UK Financial Services Authority rules.

The Group and Banco Santander, S.A. recognise the additional security inherent in Tier 1 capital in the current
commercial and regulatory environment. Consequently, on 12 October 2008, the Company issued ten billion ordinary shares of
10 pence each and these shares were issued at par to Banco Santander, S.A. on the same date.

These ordinary shares qualified as Tier 1 capital for the Group. This capital was, in turn, transferred to Alliance & Leicester
plc in late December 2008 as planned. At 31 December 2008 Tier 1 includes the Tier 1 capital of Alliance & Leicester plc on a
proportional consolidation basis.

On 9 January 2009, in order to optimise the capital, liquidity funding and overall financial efficiency of the enlarged
Santander group, Banco santander, S.A. transferred all of its Alliance & Leicester plc shares to the Company in exchange for
12.631,375,230 newly issued ordinary shares of the Company of £0.10 each.

Tier 1 deductions primarily relate to goedwill and expected losses. In addition, the Group has elected to deduct certain
securitisation positions from capital rather than treat these exposures as a risk weighted asset.

The expected loss deduction represents the difference between expected loss calculated in accordance with the Group'’s
IRB models, and the impairment provisions calculated in accordance with IERS. Details of the Group's accounting policy for credit
provisions are set out in the Accounting Policies Note on page 116. Expected losses are higher than the jmpairment provision as
the expected loss amount includes all losses that are anticipated to arise over the twelve months following the balance sheet date,
not just those incurred at the balance sheet date.

The increase in Tier 1 deductions primarily relate to additiona! goodwill following the transfer of Alliance & Leicester on 9
Jaruary 2009, and software capitalised during the year.

Increases in Tier 2 relate to interest rate and exchange rate fluctuations and the inclusion of the Tier 2 capital of Alliance
& Leicaster plc. Deductions from Tier 2 represent expected losses and securitisation positions described above.

At 31 December 2008, deductions from Tier 1 and Tier 2 represent lending which is capital in nature. This was repaid
durinig 2009.

The overall changes in the fair value of assets and liabilities during 2008 did not have a significant impact on the capital
pesition reported by the Group.

51. Consolidating financial information

Abbey National Treasury Services plc (ANTS pic) is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and was able to offer and sell
certain securities in the US from time to time pursuant to a registration statement on Form F-3 filed with the SEC (the ‘Registration
Siatement’). The Registration Statement expired in December 2008. The possibility of filing a new registration statement is being
kept under review. The Company has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the obligations of ANTS plc that have been, or will be
incurred before 31 July 2012: this guarantee includes all securities issued by ANTS plc pursuant to the Registration Statement.

ANTS plc utilises an exception provided in Rule 3-10 of Regulation S-X, and therefore does not file its financial statements
with the SEC. In accordance with the requirements 1o qualify for the exception, presented pelow is condensed consolidating
financial information for () the Company on a stand-alone basis as guarantor; (i) ANTS plc on a stand-alone basis; (iii) other
subsidiaries of the Company on a combined basis (‘Other’); (iv) consolidation adjustments ('Adjustments’); and () total
consolidated amounts (‘Consolidated’).

Under 1AS 27, the Company and ANTS plc account for investments in their subsidiaries at cost subject to impairment.
Rule 3-10 of Regulation 5-X requires a company 1o account for its investments in subsidiaries using the equity method, which
would increase/(decrease) the results for the year of the Company and ANTS plc in the information below by £443m and £(178)m,
respectively (2008: £517m and £127m, 2007: £334m and £218m).

The net assets of the Company and ANTS pic in the information below would also be increased by £584m and £316m,
respectively (2008: £1,552m and £497m).
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The Company ANTS plc Other Adjt its Consolidated
For the year ended 31 December 2009 fm £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 1,985 41 1,396 (10) 3,412
Fee, commission, net trading, and other income 963 721 138 (538) 1,284
Total operating income 2,948 762 1,534 (548) 4,696
Administration expenses (1,136) (144) (547) (¥3) (1,848)
Depreciation and amortisation (132) 3) (129) 4 (260)
impairment and provisions (645) (30) {650) 427 (898)
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,035 585 208 (138) 1,690
Taxation (charge)/credit (288) (29) 63 (191) (445)
Profit/(loss) for the year 747 556 271 (329) 1,245
The Company ANTS plc Other Adjustments Consolidated
For the year ended 31 December 2008 fm £m fm fm £m
Net interest income 1,185 198 391 2) 1,772
Fee, commission, net trading, and other income 1,807 180 490 (1,245) 1,232
Total operating income 2,992 378 881 (1,247) 3,004
Administration expenses (1,114) (136) (92) n (1,343)
Depreciation and amortisation (81) (3) (118) - (202)
Impairment and provisions (343) (26) 27 (23) (365)
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,454 213 698 (1,271 1,094
Taxation charge (126) (10) (204) 65 (275)
Profit/(loss) for the year 1,328 203 494 (1,206) 819
The Company ANTS plc Other Adjustments Consolidated
For the year ended 31 December 2007 fm £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 1,101 241 162 (5) 1,499
Fee, commission, net trading, and other income 900 22 623 (262) 1,283
Total operating income 2,001 263 785 (267) 2,782
Adminiszration expenses (1,163) (129) (92) 15 (1,369
Depreciation and amortisation (72) (2) (131) - (205)
jmpairment and provisions (346) 4 24 (26) (344)
Profit/(loss) before tax 420 136 586 (278) 864
Taxation charge (69) (29) (89) 8 (179)
Profit/(loss) for the year 351 107 497 (270) 685
Balance sheets
The Company ANTS plc Other Adjustments Consolidated
At 31 December 2009 £m £m £m £m £m
Cach and balances at central banks 3,266 448 449 - 4,163
Trading assets - 24,976 30,321 (22,007) 33,290
Detivative financial instruments 2,539 23,129 8,422 (11,263) 22,827
Financial assets designated at fair value 37,145 12,000 313 (37,100) 12,358
Loans and advances to banks 109,658 166,020 156,075 (422,602) 9,151
Loans znd advances to customers 131,749 20,266 105,421 (70,632) 186,804
Available-for-sale securities 30 - 767 - 797
Loans and receivables securities 2 896 12,244 (3,244) 9,898
Macra hedge of interest rate risk - 682 504 (59) 1,127
investment in associated undertakings 76 - - 1) 75
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 7,038 2,185 2,291 (11,514) -
Intangble assets 552 8 132 754 1,446
Property, plant and equipment 561 6 270 101 938
Operating lease assets - - 313 (O] 312
C-arrent tax assets - 3 82 - 85
Deferred tax assets 428 21 401 96 946
Other assets 651 67 548 (192) 1,074
Total assets 293,695 250,707 318,553 (577,664) 285,291
Depcsits by banks 116,414 166,169 81,097 (357,869) 5.811
Depcsits by customers 159,187 17,601 110,834 (143,729) 143,893
Cerivative finanaal instruments 3,352 24,330 2,71 (11,430) 18,963
Trading liabilities - 13,315 47,159 (14,322) 46,152
Financial liabilities designated at fair value - 4,282 141 - 4,423
Debt securities in issue 1 21,631 63,888 (37,762) 47,758
Other borrowed funds 539 - 958 (145) 1,352
subordinated liabilities 5,580 - 1,975 (1,958) 5,597
Other liabilities 1,611 135 762 (185) 2,323
Other provisions 74 - 17 - 91
Zunent tax liabilities 92 57 151 - 300
Jeferred tax liabilities - - 272 64 336
Retirement benefit obligations 922 - 148 - 1,070
Total liabilities 287,772 247,520 310,113 (567,336) 278,069
Total shareholders’ equity 5,923 3,187 8,440 (10,328) 7,222
Total liabilities and equity 293,695 250,707 318,553 (577,664) 285,291
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The Company ANTS plc Other Adjustments Consolidated
At 31 December 2008 £m fm £m £m fm
Cash and balances at central banks 2,456 8 1,553 - 4,017
Trading assets - 27,146 19,675 (20,557) 26,264
Derivative financial instruments 2,735 32,160 14,089 (13,859) 35,125
Financial assets designated at fair value 47,525 11,005 339 (47,492) 11,377
Loans and advances to banks 116,486 128,035 104,448 (332,968) 16,001
Loans and advances to customers 123,319 24,501 98,973 (66,617) 180,176
Available-for-sale securities 25 - 2,638 - 2,663
Loans and advances securities - 526 14,250 (669) 14,107
Macro hecge of interest rate risk - 1,475 713 - 2,188
Investren- in associated undertakings 741 - - (706) 35
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 5,147 2,335 2,050 (9,532) -
Intangble assets 484 6 375 482 1,347
Property, plant and equipment 569 9 226 50 854
Operating lease assets - - 348 - 348
Current tax assets 194 - 18 - 212
Deferred tax assets 458 75 744 3 1,274
Other assets 987 21 332 (18) 1,322
Total assets 301,126 227,302 260,771 (491,889) 297,310
Deposits by banks 124,846 123,366 32,728 (266,452) 14,488
Deposits by customers 155,466 9,743 97,185 (132,149) 130,245
Derivative financial instruments 5,393 33,511 2,926 (14,020) 27,810
Trading liabilities 739 22,996 36,672 (19,669) 40,738
Financial liabilities designated at fair value - 4,898 775 - 5,673
Debt securities in issue - 29,692 76,089 (47,270 58,511
Other borrowed funds 905 - 1,028 143 2,076
subordinated liabilities 7,030 - 2,558 (2,801) 6,787
Other liabilities 1,283 83 1,034 (58) 2,342
Other previsions 99 - 108 - 207
Current *ax liabilities 128 236 154 - 518
Deferred tax liabilities 6 - 408 (9) 405
Retirement benefit obligations 797 - 16 - 813
Total liabilities 296,692 224,525 251,681 (482,285) 290,613
Total shareholders’ equity 4,434 2,777 9,090 (9,604) 6,697
Total liabilities and equity 301,126 227,302 260,771 (491,889) 297,310
Cash flow statements
The Company ANTS plc Other Adjustments Consolidated
For the year ended 31 December 2009 £m £m £m £m £m
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (4,770) 12,150 (4,532) 81 2,929
Net cas~ flow from / (used in) investing activities (232) 126 1,539 - 1,433
Net casn flow from / (used in) financing activities (803) - (3,737) (81) (4,621)
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (5,805) 12,276 (6.730) - (259)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 61,203 38,020 (71,548) - 27,675
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents - (969) (83) - (1,052)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 55,398 49,327 (78,361) - 26,364
The Company ANTS plc Other Adjustments Consolidated
For the year ended 31 December 2008 £m £m £m £m £m
Nel cash flow from / (used in) operating activities 51,816 6,658 (79,918) (21,444)
Net cash flow (used in) / from investing activities (1,359 38 20,723 19,402
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities 152 (161) (7,372) - (7,381)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 50,609 6,535 (66,567) (9,423)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 10,594 29,137 (5,675) 34,056
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash eguivalents - 2,348 694 3,042
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 61,203 38,020 (71,548) - 27,675
The Company ANTS plc Other Adjustments Consolidated
For the year ended 31 December 2007 £m £m £m £m £m
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities 5,949 (1,874) (13,407) - (9,332)
Nat cash flow from / (used in) investing activities 14 9) (201) - (196)
Net cash flow {used in) / from financing activities (576) - 5,352 4,776
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,387 (1,883) (8,256) - (4,752)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 5,207 31,020 2,855 - 39,082
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents - - (274) - (274
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 10,594 29,137 (5,675) 34,056
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